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Glossary of key terms

Adjusted earnings per share
Adjusted earnings divided by the weighted
average number of shares in issue during
the year

Adjusted earnings

Profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders before exceptional items
amortisation of customer related intangible
assets and [AS 39 timing differences, all
net of tax and deferred tax restaternents
for customer related intangible assets

Exceptional items

Iterns classified by Alllance Boots as
exceptional In nature These are not regarded
as forming part of the trading activities of the
Group, and sa merit separate presentation to
allow sharehglders to understand the elements
of financial performance and to assess the
trends In financial performance In 2006/07
these malnty comprised costs inrelation to
merger synergles, systems rationalisation and
supply chain reconfiguration projects, and
restructuring activittes Inthe previous year
these mainly comprised the suppty chain
reconfiguration project, store refurblshment
costs and profit on sale and leaseback

IAS 39 timing differences
Derivative financial instruments are used to
hedge interest rate and currency exposures
IAS 39 dictates whether changes in the falr
value of these instruments can be matched In
the Income staternent by changes In the fair
value of the item being hedged Where they
cannot be matched, or do not fully match,
the unmatched amount represents a timing
difference that will ceverse over the life of
the flnancial instruments

Interest cover
Trading profit divided by underlying net
finance costs

Like for like revenue

Like for like revenue on a constant currency
basls compared to the cornparable period
In the previous year

Net (borrowings)/cash
Borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents
and derivative financlal Instruments

Net finance costs
Flnance costs net of finance income

Trading margin
Trading profit expressed as a percentage
of revenue

Trading profit

Profit from operations before exceptional
Items, amortisation of customer related
intangible assets and share of associates’
post tax earnings

Underlying net finance costs
Net finance costs adjusted to exclude
IAS 39 timing differences

Underlying tax charge

The underlying tax charge excluding tax

on exceptional ltems amaortisation of
customer related intanglble assets 1AS 39
timing differences, deferred tax restatements
for custorner related Intangible assets and
other exceptional tax credits *

Underlying tax rate

The underlying tax charge expressed as
a percentage of trading profit net of
underlying net finance costs



Highlights

Group highlights — pro forma

To assist investors In understanding the performance of the Group, pro forma financlal information
has been prepared to show the results from continuing operations of the Group as If the two former
groups had always been combined as was provided at the announcement of the Group’s Interim
results on 14 Novernber 2006 The pro forma revenue and profit statement for continuing operations
has been prepared on an adjusted basis, which means before exceptional items, amortisation of
custormer related Intangible assets and IAS 39 timing differencaes, all net of tax and deferred tax
restatements for customer related Intangible assets

Detalled pro forma financial information, including the basis of preparation, s set out in the
Additional pro forma financial informatlon for continuing operations™ section of this Annual Report

Revenue up 3 6% to £14,608 millon (2005/06 £14,096 million)
Trading profit’ up 6 3% to £641 milhon  (2005/06 £603 million)
Underlying trading profit? up 7 4% to £641 milion (2005/06 £597 million?)
Adjusted earnings® up 11 5% to £467 million  (2005/06 £419 milion)

Adjusted earnings per share!  up 114%to487 pence  (2005/06 43 7 pence)

1 Trading profit comprises profit from operations before exceptional iterms and amortisatlon of customer related intangible
assets and share of assoclates posttax earnings

2 Underlying trading profit is after adjusting the previcus year s trading profit to include a full year s rental charge on the 312
retail outlets which were sold and leased back in July 2085 so that the trading profits for both years are on a cornparable basis

3 Adjusted earmings comprises profit for the year attributable to equity sharehoklers before exceptional items amortisation of
customer related intangible assets and [AS 39 timing differences all net of tax and deferred tax restatements for customer
related intangible assets

4 Adjusted earnings per share comprise adjusted earnings divided by the pro forma weighted average number of shares in 1ssue
during the year of 959 million (2005/06 958 million}

Group highlights - statutory

The statutery financial results for the year ended 31 March 2007 contain a full year of results for the
former Boots Group PLC businesses and eight months results for the former Aliance UniChem Plc
businesses on an acquisition accounting basis The comparative figures contaln only the results of
the former Boots Group PLC businesses and Include within Profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders” a £1,470 milllon profit after tax from discontinued operations

Revenue — continuing operations £11,502 milion  (2005/06 £5,027 million}
Profit from operations — continuing £480 million (2005/06 £369 million)
Profit for the year attrnbutable
to equity shareholders £387 million (2005/06 £1,774 milhon)
Basic earnings per share — total 48 4 pence (2005/06 259 4 pence)
— continuing 45 8 pence (2005/06 44 4 pence)

Key reconciliations between pro forma and statutory financial results are provided after the
“Additlonal pro forma financial information for continwing operations” section of this annual report

Detalls of exceptional items are shown after the "Key reconciliations between pro forma and
statutory flnancial results” sectlon of this annual report

A glossary of key terms and principal businesses and associates by segment Is provided at the end
of this annual report
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Group highlights

On track to deliver promised merger
cost synergies

Retall Division
» good revenue growth

» UK trading margin ahead of
management's previous expectations

« Boots branded Health & Beauty
business increased profits for first ime
in five years

= biggest expansion of Boots pharmacy
brand te commence shortly

Wholesale Division

» performed well — reflecting strength
of geographically diverse portfolio

« successfully implemented Pfizer sole
logistics service contract in UK

» Chinese market entry agreed, subject to
regulatory approval for the joint venture
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Chairman’s statement

Welcome to the first annual report of Alllance Boots
When as two separate boards we first talked of the
merger between Alliance UniChem and Boots Group In
the summer of 2005 it did not take us long to see the
potential iIn what a combined company might look like.

Reporting to you now as the Chalrman of
Alliance Boots, I am pleased to be able to say that
elght months into the Iife of the newly merged
Group I remain confident of the potentlal that
exists within our businesses and excited by
the opportunity that our expertise In being a
pharmacy-led health and beauty group offers

This opportunity Is also what lies at the heart

of the recent interest shown In us by potentiat
bidders for the Group As a Board we have
evaluated every approach to ensure that they
best represent shareholders’ interests We did
not take the decision lightly to open our books
for due dillgence Inrecornmending the
Kohlberg Kravis & Roberts offer of £11 39 per
share you are receiving we are confldent that we
are acting in your best interests as a shareholder

Business as usual

The merger completed on 31 July 2006 and from
that tirne, the Board has focused on ensuring
that completing the merger was not seen as
the end In itself We have been determined
that the merger should not allow our businesses
to take their eyes off the ball of dellvering

day In day out, great service to our customers
which results in good performance for our
shareholders I am pleased to be able to be able
to report a set of results that shows Alliance
Boots has had a successful start to its ife

Across our businesses we have seen good
performance Our Retail Division has operated
well In all its markets with good performance In
our key areas of expertise health and beauty

Wholesale has also delivered a good set of
results with once again the value of our wide
geographical spread allowing us to mitigate the
competitive pressures felt in some of our markets

A common feature of the year has been the
continued intervention of regulators into many
of our market places to try and keep costs down
for the tax payer This is not unusual anditis a
testament to the skllls of our people and the
strength of our business model that we have
been able to cope with these and still deliver

1n line with our expectations

A new Board

As part of the merger we had to constitute

a new Board and adapt many of our working
practices to take In the demands of being

a company twice the size Your new Board
reflects the strengths of both companies when
they merged and It has been impressive the
way in which it has got on with the job so
quickly and effectively

We are clear that the role of the Board is to help
set the strategy and then hold the executive
accountable for delivery We firmly believe that
the executive have risen to the challenge set by
your Board

Clear objectives

As a Board we have set out the clear objectives
we want the company executive to go and
deliver They are outlined en pages 8 and 9 but
to us they are very simple We operate In the
attractive markets of healthcare and beauty

and we have strong positions In these through
our core divisions of wholesale and retail We
want to grow these divislons both In existing

and new locations by using our financlal strength,
our brand capabilities and the expertise of our
people This mix of good positions In attractive
markets and opportunitles to move into new
geographical regions underpins our aim to dellver
sustained profit growth for our shareholders

One of the common features of the former
Alliance UniChem and Boots Group companies
when we talked about the merger was the
fundamental bellef and commitment to
pharmacy This is true to the heritage of both
companies and something which runs right
through Alllance Boots Healthcare is a growing
market and today we see people not only live
longer but also have a real deslre to stay active
and look and feel good for as long as they can
This means that healthcare has to cope with not
only a higher demand for drugs but also a desire
for faster treatment better drugs additional
services and more Information than ever before

These are trends that are set to continue and for
a company like Alliance Boots this offers a real
opportunity However, we will face competition
to be the healthcare provider of choice and

we will also face continuing demands from
regulators and Governments to help them
control the costs of healthcare We should not
be afraid of this, they are what we have had to
cope with for many years The strength of the
combined Group will mean we are even better
placed to deliver against these challenges

Responsible and sustainable

In reading the report you will of course

notice many differences in our reporting and
content than you were used to The report we
present to you takes into account the latest
recommendations on best corporate practice
and also the best of what we both used todo as
Individual companies Because of the relative
short time we have been merged and our focus




on business as usual there are one or two
sectlons where we might not have as much
detall and In particular targets as you and we

as a Board wouild like This Is because we are
keen not to rush to put things in place for the
purpose of this report which wiil only necessitate
change and adjustment during the forthcoming
year We will of course keep you well informed

in these areas as we progress as a Company

Where you may feel you see the biggest
difference is In our corporate responsibility
section on pages 35 to 37 As a newly formed
Group we are at an early stage of rolling out a
Group approach to corporate responsibility and
key performance Indlcators have yet to be
finalised Please do not think that this means
there is any less of a commitment by the Board
to this very important topic While we have been
setting the future path for the Group’s corporate
social responsibllity it s pleasing to report that
our operating divislons remain highly committed
to the agenda and activities they have been
pursuing in the run up to the merger

Foundation for future success
Alllance Boots has taken two great companies
and made them into one even stronger
company The last year and our insistence on
continuing to dellver against our business
objectives while planning and then
implementing a sensible operation of the
merger has created a strong foundatlon for
future success

As a business, we are clear of the many
challenges that lie ahead Yet we know we have
the people and the skills in the erganisation to
meet these challenges All our people have
worked hard this year and dellvered more than
many commentators and observers ever
believed was possible On your behalf and on
behalf of the Board | would like to take this
opportunity to thank them for their hard work
and commitment

Looking ahead the pressures on Alliance Boots
will not change We must continue to be totally
focused on meeting our custorners rising
expectations and be highly efficlent

Regardless of who owns the business there

are real opportunities for this business to grow
act and be recognised as the world’s best
pharmacy-led health and beauty group Itisa
realistic ambitlon and there Is great excitement
at the challenge
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Chief Executive’s review

For all of us at Alllance Boots, it's been an extraordinary
year As you'll see below, there have been real successes
across the Group. But by far the biggest success story of
2006/07 has been the way that two very large groups
have come together to form a new company with real
International potential Not only have we achieved this
without significant disruption to any aspect of our
operation; we've actually delivered a set of results that
would do great credit to any long established business

Traditionally, chief executives reserve their
thanks for their closing paragraphs But, on this
occasion I'm very happy to break with tradition
our excellent performance since the merger on
31 luly last year directly reflects the hard work,
ability and determination of our 100 000 plus
people, and every single one of us should be
proud of what we've achleved together in our
first year as Alllance Boots

Making our merger work

Inevitably, the announcement of our merger
met with sceptlicism in some quarters So for
me one of the most satlsfylng moments of

the past year came when we put It to the

vote Despite having been exposed to alot of
negative media coverage, 99% of shareholders
in Alllance UniChem and Boots Group gave thelr
support to our viston of building a new global
power In healthcare

And perhaps this Is an even more remarkable
feat since the day of the merger we have kept
our management team together, and they
remain together as a team today

In both cases, what I think these stories
demonstrate Is that, from the outset we've
been entirely clear about our vision for the new
Company and what we stand for we ve known
precisely where Alliance Boots is heading and
we've worked extremely hard to communicate
how we belleve were going to get there

It’s this unanimity of purpose and ambitlon
that's ensured the success of the merger Put
very simply we've stuck together And from day
one, with that strong leadership backbone in
place our key people have known exactly what

Is expected of them, which has enabled
us to meet the targets we set for the new
merged Company

In short, we've delivered on our promises And
for a business whaose most important brand
value s trust nothlng matters more than that

Great people outstanding
execution

We have performed to plan since the merger,
and whife our clearty defined strategy can

take some of the credit for that our greatest
strength In 2006/07 has undoubtedly been In
quality of execution As I started by saylng our
people have done their jobs cutstandingly well

At the time of the merger, we coined the phrase
“Stronger together” as the theme for our
Integration programme, and, desplte the
massive challenges involved In blending and
harmonising two very different large groups,
we've achleved that aspiratlon Across every
business function — from HR to purchasing, [T
to legal, marketing to finance — we haven't just
been able to malintain “business as usual” in the
early months of Alllance Boots existence we ve
actually raised our garme

Wholesale highlights

Turning to a few of the year’s key achlevernents
across our businesses it's a pleasure to start
with our Wholesale Division’s continued double
digit profit growth In what is supposedly a
tough, low margin business, this Is a really
impressive performance reflecting both the
strength of our geographically spread portfollo
of businesses and the merger synergies which
we are starting to achieve In the UK

A particular highlight came in March 2007

when our UK wholesale business successfully
began its new sole loglstics contract with
pharmaceutical manufacturer Pfizer Over the
course of a single weekend, we geared up to
increase our daily deliveries to pharmacists from
nearty 8 000 to around 25 000, trebling the
scale of our operation almost overnight while
maintaining extremely high service levels

Great execution

Retail highlights

Meanwhile, within our Retail Division
performance was equally encouraging, with our
Health & Beauty business Boots The Chemists,
achleving good profit growth for the first time
In five years, as the large investment we've
made over that perlod began to pay off

Our positioning as trusted experts in healthcare
continued to give us a crucial competitive
advantage There was no better example of
this In 2006/07 than the success of the Boots
Health Club which we launched at the
beginning of the year Entitling members to
receive regular Information on healthcare
Issues, as well as discounts on our own brand
products, this innovative scheme has proved
incredibly popular, particutarly with our more
mature customers Of 1 5 million Health Club
members around 40% are aged 60 or over

it's equally clear that the trusted expertise our
customers expect from Boots Is vital to the
success of our beauty offering, where results
were also excellent And a very good year was
mernorably rounded off In March, when the
BBC's Horizon programme concluded — after
rigorous scientific analysis — that no other anti-
agelng product could match the effectiveness
of Boots No7 Protect & Perfect Serum Sales
rocketed by nearly 2 000% after the day

of the broadcast as our customers were
reminded once more that what we prornise
our products dellver

More accessible, more affordable
As the leading operator of retal] pharmacies

in the UK we belleve we have a key role to play
in making healthcare services easily accessible
and widely avallable That's why this year we
now have pharmacy services offered until
midnight in more than 50 outlets




We also continued to ensure that our prices
are competitive while delivering the kind

of keen competitive performance our
sharehoclders expect

Extending the Boots brand

In our Community Pharmacy business the most
exciting development carme towards the end

of the year when we successfully plloted a “best
of both” approach in a number of pharmacies
The idea was to glve our people from Alliance
Pharmacy and Boots a chance to learn from
each other and share ideas, which could then be
incorporated Into a new Improved community
pharmacy offering

In the pilot pharmacies both retail sales and
dIspensing volumes Increased significantly, and,
as a result, we'll be rolling out this new format,
under the banner “your local Boots pharmacy”
nationally over the next two years at a cost of
around £65 milllon It's the biggest extension of
the Boots retall brand In the history of Boots

[ can't end this brief gallop through the past
year s achievements without making a very
honourable mention of Boots manufacturing
They are the englne pumping away relentlessly
putting the products our customers want into
our businesses We never for a single moment
under-estimate the value of thelr contribution

Britain’s most responsible retailer
Over the last year there has been rore talk
than ever In the media about the need for
businesses to act responsibly particularly

In relation to the environment And a number
of major retallers have made themselves very
prominent in this respect, putting forward
impressive claims for therr green credentials
and asplrations

So we're very pleased to say that In

the Business In the Community Big Tick awards
- the UK’s leading awards for responsible
practice — we retained our position as the
country’s number one retaller Wherever you
lock in Alliance Boots you'll find great people
doing the right things in the right way

A future of real potential

Allin all then it's been a memorable year for
everycne at Alllance Boots As individuals, we ve
worked harder than ever before Within our
speclfic areas of the business, we ve scored
many notable successes {more of which you'll
read about in the following pages) But by far
our proudest achlevement is a collective one to
which over 100,000 people have all contributed
the creatlon of an entirely new group with a
clear vislon to become the world’s feading
pharmacy-led health and beauty group

It hasn't always been easy, mergers never are
But we've stuck at it, and met every challenge
And [ - and the rest of the executive team —
couldn't belleve more strongly that, over the last
year, we've laid the foundations for a fantastic
future for Alliance Boots for our people and for
our customers
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Market and business environment

Alliance Boots operates in highly attractive markets,
with potential for significant long term growth. Major
demographic and social trends are driving a rapid

Increase in demand for pharmaceuticals and healthcare

services; and the necessity for governments to control
health expenditure presents both challenges and
opportunities Meanwhile the growing focus on
personal wellbeing coupled with increased personal
wealth fuels an increase in awareness of personal care
and 1s driving growth in the health beauty areas.

An ageing population

a prescription for growth

The most important factor affecting our market
is increasing life expectancy As populations
age demand for healthcare services rapidly
increases (on average, around 75% of all the
pharmaceuticals used In an individual s lifetime
are required after the age of 65)

Changing attitudes are also playlng a significant
role As well as living longer, people have higher
expectations in terms of quality of life Across
Europe, and beyond, consumers want products
and services that will help them to feel and look
good te be readlly avallable

Another important trend, partly driven by medical
advances, Is for individuals to take greater
responsibllity for managing their own health
and wellbelng We expect these demographic
and social trends to fuel growth in the
healthcare market for at least the next 20 years

Governments’ need to control costs
As demand for medicines and healthcare
services increases governments are recognising
an urgent need to control costs, to remaln
within budgets and limit the burden on tax-
payers (In the UK for example, only 30% of the
population currently makes any contributions
towards the cost of prescriptions )

As aresult every part of the supply chain—
from manufacturers to wholesalers from
doctors to pharmacists — is coming under
increasing pressure to be more efficlent

We see this as little short of a healthcare
revolution, beginning to take place throughout
Europe, and with Important implications for
both the retall and wholesale markets we
operate in

Retail: a new focal point for
healthcare provision

The role of the pharmacist is changing in a way
that presents exciting growth opportunities

In continental Europe, pharmacists have
traditionally been regarded as trusted
healthcare advisers but In the UK these highly
qualified professionals have been an under-
valued resource

Now In order to mitigate primary healthcare
costs the UK government Is increasingly
directing patients to their local community
pharmacies, not just for medicines and
health-related products but for a widening
range of healthcare services

We belleve that If pharmacists seize the
opportunity the value of thelr role as providers
of personal healthcare advice will continue to
increase rapidly

The power of the supermarkets —
and the web

As expenditure on healthcare soars, the major
supermarkets are naturally keen to increase
their share of this valuable market Their
strategy Is to commoditise products and cut
prices Online sales of health and beauty
products are also growing rapldly

In both cases, this creates a need for pharmacy-
led retailers to differentiate themselves through
quality of advice and expertise, and also an
opportunity for the development of specialist
premium product ranges capitalising on a
relatlonshlp of trust with customers

The rise of generics and

over the counter medicines

As demnand for pharmaceuticals grows
governments are exerting increasing pressure
on doctors to prescribe cheaper generlc
medicines Throughout the supply chain,

the effect is to reduce revenues But for large
scale operators efficlent buying can secure
excellent prices on generics, which may
actually result in Increased margins

Similarly the rapidly increasing number of
medicines available over the counter — such as
treatments for hay-fever and high cholesterol -
has Important implications for our market As
own brands are developed, prices fall But our
healthcare expertise means that we are strongly
placed to secure a larger share of sales

A market driven by innovation

In a market like health and beauty where
customer expectatiens are getting higher all
the time innovation has a key role to play In
driving growth Technologlcal advances can
deliver products which offer significant benefits
over thelr competitors in fields such as anti-
agelng formulatlons and non-surgical “face-
lift” preparations



Wholesale opportunity in
consolidation

{n our core European pharmaceutical wholesale
markets consolldation is the key trend A small
number of very large wholesalers are achleving
an increasingly dominant position And
similarly major pharmaceutical manufacturers
are Joining forces in response to the rapidly
increasing costs involved in developing

new medicines

As a result, the entire business model in
these markets is changing Consolidation
leads to price control which In turn results
in the continued rise of generics In the short
term smaller local wholesalers will attempt
to compete on price in order to survive But,
in the longer terms, scale will prove crucially
important to ensure operating efflciency and
negotiating power A small number of very
large manufacturers will increastngly want

to do buslness with a small number of very
large wholesalers capable of providing them
outstanding efficlency and a highly flexible
tailored service

Rapidly increasing volume,

slower growth in value

In this environment opportunities clearly
exist Volume will continue to grow across
Europe though value will increase less rapldly
as cost control contlnues to tighten But
while governments can negotlate price with
manufacturers healthcare provision will
always be dependent on an efficlent
distribution system

In particular, one apparent threat in this
market Is that manufacturers will Increasingly
choose to cut out the middle man and
distribute direct to pharmacies But by securing
agency contract delivery deals this can be
turned to valuable advantage

Overall, though we recognise that long term
growth potential is [imited In our competlitive
and highly consolidated core markets, and that
major operators will therefore increasingly look
to expand into new geographical markets
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Group objectives and strategies

As you have read, the purpose of our merger last July
was to create a company capable of becoming the
world’s leading pharmacy-led health and beauty group
Below, we set out the key objectives that we set for the
merger And opposite, we outline the strategy that

we believe will enable us to achieve sustained growth,
and turn our vision for Alliance Boots into reality.

Capitalise on growth in demand for
healthcare and beauty products

We do business in large and very attractive
markets where there's strong potential for long
term growth As people live longer and have
higher expectations in terms quality of life,
Alliance Boots Is strongly placed to meet
Increasing demand for medicines and health
and beauty products

Create Europe’s leading retail

pharmacy business

Scale and financial strength are Increasingly
important in all our markets With a total of
around 2,900 retall outlets, of which around

2 600 are in the UK alone, Alliance Boots holds
a strong and profitable position in the
geographical markets where we operate

Pursue international growth opportunities
in new markets

As a result of the merger, Alliance Boots has the
skills resources and financlal strength to move
profitably into new international markets We
plan to capiltalise further on the strength and
Internatlonal appeal of Boots branded products,
and to make use of our well developed
acquisition skills In new markets where we see
potential for significant growth

Deliver cost savings of at least £100m
We've promised to deliver cost savings of at
least £100milllon per annum by the fourth full
year followlng our merger Initial steps in our
cost synergy plan Include harmonising buying
prices and reducing corporate costs and we
are on track with a longer term project to
strearnline our combined distribution network

Our Wholesale strategy

QOur Wholesale Division alms to provide
customers throughout Europe with high service
levels at the lowest possible cost to us

The wholesate business marries high customer
service levels with volume led efficlencies

Scale delivers crucial benefits In terms of
minlmising costs and maximising effectiveness
Currently Alllance Boots Is number one or two
in almost all the European markets In which it
operates and are also Europe s largest purchaser
of generics

Continued expansion is a priority and we
recognise that as our established markets
mature, we must invest to establish Alliance
Boots in new geographical markets with
major growth potential Organic growth
through continued Improvements In service
levels will be supported by growth through
corporate development

Achieving organic growth

To increase our competitiveness and achieve
profitable growth in our established European
markets, we are continually seeking to add value
to our offering to all parts of our customer base
pharmacists, dispensaries and manufacturers

In particular we are responding innovatively
to a changing business environment in which
some major pharmaceutical manufacturers are
looking to bypass wholesalers, and do business
directly with pharmacists By adjusting our
business model, we have turned this apparent
threat into an opportunity developing a new
contract dellvery service tailored to

manufacturers needs For Alllance Boots an
added benefit of this new service offering is
that manufacturers retain ownership of the
product which frees up working capital that
we can relnvest in other areas of the business

We will continue to respond promptly and
positively to emerging market trends, in order
to differentiate our wholesale businesses and
to maintain organic growth

Increasing efficiency, driving down costs
Since our merger Interaction between our
Wholesale and Retail Divisions has dellvered
significant business benefits Our position as

a major retaller enables us to increase the
efficlency of our wholesale operation through
combined buying the potential for predicative
ordering, and the implementation of joint
development in ordering and sourcing

In additlon our expertise in margin managerment
and the scale of our operation will continue

to enable Alllance Boots to abtaln productivity
savings and remain price competitive

Moving into new markets
[n assessing the attractiveness of new markets,
we take into account three main factors

1 Regulatory environment Is the
healthcare framework in place to
ensure stabllity and reimbursement?

2 Population size is It big encugh to fuel
significant growth and justify the cost of
market entry?

3 Opportunity can we see a way
achleving profile and scale within the
market relatively quickhy?

In most cases, we would want to make our move
Inte a new market when it Is at an early stage of
consolidation, with national wholesalers
beginning to emerge, so that we can see which
management teams have the strength and skills
to drive the consolidation and which are likely
to be left behind in that process




Our Retail strategy

Our core strategy for our retail business 1s to
capitalise on the largest pharmacy chain in
Europe and to maximise the value of the Boots
brand n established and new markets

Rolling out the Boots brand

Since our merger, we have focused on developing
a new dual format retall strategy in the UK, in
order to provide a higher level of service to
different sections of the market

Our community pharmactes will be rebranded
as your local Boots pharmacy” and will focus
on healthcare and dispensing Our much larger
health and beauty stores will offer “destination
shopping” with a far wider range of products
including all Boots leading brands such asNo 7
and Soltan

This major expansion of the Boots brand, with
its strong assoclatlon of expertise and trust,
will further strengthen our position In the
market In addition we expect to achieve
significant cost and revenue synergles Our
wholesale network will supply medicines while
the Boots distribution system will supply front
of shop products - enabling us to aptimise
product avallability while reducing stock levels

Developing the role of our pharmacists
Our outstanding pharmacists are the
embodiment of the trusted expertise

in healthcare that is at the heart of the
Boots brand

The continued recognition of the pharmacists
expertise and tralning has formed a significant
element of the evolution of the trend towards
self medication preventative healthcare and
advances in personal wellbelng both In the UK
and elsewhere

Our brand and positioning Is intrinsically
linked to this and the relationship that our
pharmacists have with thefr patients Is both at
the heart of and embodiment of, the publics
trust in Boots, Its products and its services

The range of advice driven wellbetng and
preventative programmes that we operate

across all our pharmacies from general
medication reviews to specific programmes

to screen for specific ailments or assist with
such areas as weight loss or smoking cessation
are carefully designed to help our pharmacists
reach thelr full potentlat as a healthcare
professional while praviding our customers

a genuinely valuable and high quality

service offering

The Implicit value of this service offering is
clear As well as improved patient loyalty and
the premiurn such trust places on our brand
the nature of this patlent interaction gives

It a significant and very real value to not only
our business but also to the pharmaceutical
companiles and of course, the national health
service The realisation of this value means
that these Inltlatives not only address genuine
customer needs but significantly strengthen
our commercial position, and enhance our
financlal performance

Continued UK growth

Despite the size of our UK retall network
there Is stllf conslderable potential for
growth in this market

We can further increase customer footfall by
optimising the use of our property portfolio
Since our merger we've conducted a review
which has enabled us to Identify many local
geographic areas In which we could better
serve the needs of our retall and prescription

customers through relocation or rationalisation

In addition, It s of great Interest to note that
around 40% of the UK population still does

not have easy access to one of our pharmacies

To address this need we plan to continue to
acquire pharmacles and open new stores

Potential for exciting European growth

{n continental Europe where we cummently operate
around 400 healthcare cutlets, we see enoimous

potential for medium to long term growth

Constraints on pharmacy ownershlp In countries

such as France and Germany mean that we will
have to walt for deregulation to occur before
we are able to capitalise on this opportunity
Meanwhile, we see considerable scope for
continued growth within our existing footfall

Overall, we belleve that the benefits resulting
from our merger — greater financial strength,
bigger talent pool wider skills base — put
Alllance Boots In a very strong position for
sustained and profitable international growth

Building on our brand expertise

Our brand expertise coupled with strong
product development and sourcing
capabilities, 1s an asset we will continue
tobulld on Boots brand products such as

No 7 and Soltan hold market leading
positions in the UK and provide a springboard
for further profitable brand development

In addition we see proven demand for a

new sulte of pharmacy-only front of shop
brands offering high quality at medium cost
Drawing upon our product formulation skifls,

we intend to develop such an offering and
through our wholesale network we will make
this new product range available to our
Independent pharmacist customers, enabling
them to maximise the value of their frant of store
operation Yet another example of how our retall
and wholesale businesses can increasingly be a
source of competltive advantage to each other
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Risk management

Like all businesses, Alliance Boots faces a variety of risks,
such as the possibility of changing trends in consumer
spending and increasing competitive pressures There are
also potential nsks specific to the healthcare market,
notably those relating to complex regulations and changes
In legislation And, finally, there may be risks associated
with the ongoing process of integrating the two very large
companies that have come together in Alllance Boots

Here we report on our approach to identifying,
monitoring and assessing risks that may affect
our business, and the steps we are taking, where
necessary, to mitigate them

Our nsk management process

Our executlve team plays the leading role,
monitoring the averall risk profile and regularly
reporting to the Board through the Audit
Committee In addition, the executive team Is
responsible for providing clear guidelines on
what Alllance Boots considers to be acceptable
levels of risk

These guidelines seek to enable people
throughout our Group to use thelr expertise
both to identify risks that could undermine our
performance and to devise ways of bringing
them within acceptable levels

Where we identify risks that are not acceptable,
we develop and agree action plans with clear
allocation of responsibilities and timescales for
completion and we ensure that the progress of
our action plans Is monitored and reported upon

The risks we face

Impact of regulation

Risk

Alliance Boots could be adversely affected by
changes to existing regutation, the Introduction
of new regulation and/for failure to comply with

new regulation leading to significant reduction
in market volumes or prices or increased cost
burden, resulting In substantial loss of profit

We operate In regulated markets and changes
to existing regulations could have a negative
Impact on our businesses In our Retall Division
our revenues could be adversely affected by
any change to the licensing regime for
pharmacles prescription processing regimes
or relmbursement arrangements for state-
funded pharmacies

Businesses in our Wholesale Division are subject
to a range of regulations relating to such things
as the conditions under which products must
be stored and dispensed and the integrity of
the supply chain Changes to these regulations
could affect our Wholesale Division's operations
and profitabillty

Mitigating the impact of regulation

Mast Importantly, we seek to control this type of
risk through active involvement in policy-making
processes, understanding and contributing to
government thinking on regulatory matters, and
bullding relationships with national regulatory
bodles In order to further increase our abllity

to influence decislons in this area we are
represented in relevant professional, trade and
industry assoclations

Changes and trends in consumer behaviour
Risk

Alliance Boots could be adversely affected by
changes in trends of consumer spending and
preferences or detrimental effect on brand
names, leading to adjusted consumer actions
resulting in reduction of sales and/or profit

In our Retail Divislon the success of our Health
& Beauty business depends very largely on
the continued strength of the Boots brand

If this were to be Impalred for any reason —
for example by any fallure to keep pace

with changing consumer preferences or

any decline in product quallty — our business
would inevitably suffer

Other wider trends could have a negatlve

effect on our Group, for example the increasing
use of the Internet for the purchase of health
and beauty products or a recesslonary perlod,
resulting in low consumer confldence

Mitigating the changes and trends in
consumer behaviour

Our long retailing experience means that our
commerdal skills and ability to respond flexibly
to changing consumer demand are highly
developed More specifically our strategy for
growth is based on further strengthening our
market position, with demand for health and
beauty products, backed by expert service,
expected to continulng to increase Targeted
marketing programmes continue both to generate
short term sales and bulld the Boots brand

Competition

Risk

Change In market dynamics or actions
of manufacturers or competitors could
detrimentally impact Alliance Boots
current or planned market share/profits

Although regulated in parts, the markets we
operate In are highty competitive Our Retall
Division has a wide varlety of competitors
tncluding natlonal, reglonal and loca! pharmacies,



supermarkets convenlence stores and
departrment stores In particular supermarkets
have Inrecent years used thelr greater financial
resources to Increase thelr market share

Our Wholesale Division faces competition
from direct competitors and alternative
supply sources including Importers domestic
opportunistic traders and manufacturers
who supply direct to pharmacies or patients

Mitigating the risk of competition

In our Retall Division, we actlvely manage
our brands and our relationships with both
customers and suppliers Our strategy for
continued growth is to capitalise on the
potentlal and strength of our Boots brand
and the trust in which it’s held to continue
to strengthen our position In the health and
beauty market Through our Community
Pharmacy business we will play an Increased
role In the delivery of local healthcare services
while our Health & Beauty stores will enable
us to compete more effectively In the wider
health and beauty market

In our Wholesale Divislon, we are continuing to
expand the scope of our operation in response
to a changing marketplace Our strategy is to be
a leader In all aspects of the supply chain, and to
this end we have moved into pre-wholesaling
as well as distribution agreements with major
manufacturers OQur successful development of
innovative own brand generic medicines will also
continue to improve our offering to pharmacists,
and strengthen our competitive position

Health, safety and environmental risks
Risk

Alliance Boots faces the risk of a health and
safety or environmental Incident leading to
serious injury loss of life loss of strategic asset
or impalrment of operations resulting in
financlal cost loss of reputation prosecution/
fines and adverse share price impact

For a company like Alliance Boots dedicated

to promoting good health and serving local
communitles any kind of major health safety
or environmental Incident could be especially
damaging And increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements In these areas increase the risk

of contraventlon with serious consequences
elther financially or in terms of reputatlon and
trust in our brand

Mitigating health, safety and

environmental risks

We set high health safety and environmental
standards throughout our Group, and these are
monitored and maintained by local health safety
and environmental committees as well as by
regular audits We carry out environmental
surveys to assess the Impact of our businesses
and we take a thorough and systematic approach
to maintaining plant and property in good
condition We have a system In place for logging
and analysing incidents in order to learn the
necessary lessons If mistakes are made

Product/services

Risk

For Alliance Boots there is a risk of control
failures resulting in supply of defective products
or provision of services, relating to current or
discontinued business activitles leading to
harm, liabllity claims or other action resultingin
material financial and other damage {health and
safety reputation and legal)

As manufacturers retallers and wholesalers
Alliance Boots has potential exposure to claims
arising from the manufacture or supply of
defective products [n particular we could
suffer damage to our reputation and suffer
financial penalties arising from Infiitration of
counterfeit products Into the supply chain
re-labelling of products and contarnination

or mishandling issues Through our pharmacies
we are also exposed to risks relating to the
professional services we provide

Mitigating the product/services risk
Throughout our Group, we have robust
purchasing and manufacturing processes

well developed contractual controls in relation
to suppliers and a cohesive product control
framework We have specific controls for the
identification of counterfelt product

In our pharmacies we have rigorous
governance framework In place and we
conduct regular dispensing compliance
reviews to ensure that Individual pharmacies
following approved processes

Major operational business failures

Risk

Absence or breakdown of key controls for
operational IT financial or other core
processes and internal or external created
threats to business continuity, could lead to
failure to control assets liabilities or resources
resulting In loss disruption or business failure

Alllance Boots sales are dependent on the
efficient operation of our warehousing and
loglstics infrastructure IT systems and the
operational systems of third partles who supply
them A major failure in any of these areas could
adversely affect our businesses Such a fallure
could result from many possible causes
including faulty equipment or IT systems,
disruption to supply of raw materials, labour
force shortages or events iImpeding transport
of products

Mitigating the risk of Major operational
business failures

We maintain and adhere to rigorously audited
control frameworks, and regularly updated

and tested business continuity plans are In
place We continually seek to improve control
of core buslness processes both through self-
assessment and through specific programmes
relating to the delivery of key strategic projects




12

Alliance Boots — 2007 Annual Report

Risk management (continued)

Merger execution rnisk

Risk

Following the merger of Alllance UniChem

and Boots there Is a risk of detayed or impalred
dellvery of synergy benefits or cost savings
due to failure of integration strategy, leading
to reduction of profit/sub-optimal operation
of key business processes

At the time of our merger we projected pre-tax
cost savings of at least £100 million per annum
by the fourth full year following completion
There is a risk that these synergy benefits will
not materialise or will be lower than we
estimated which could have a significant
Impact on our profitability

Mitigating the merger execution risk

We have a dedicated project team for
dellvering synergy benefits and clear and
commltted leadership from our merged
executlve committee which met weekly
during the first six months following the
merger A 100 day merger plan was adopted,
providing clear guldance on objectives

for successfully Integrating the two groups
We have embedded our new synergy
targets Into core budgets and plans as well
as adopting pro forma prior year comparative
reporting to give ourselves an effective
means of measuring the performance of

our merged Group

Acquisitions

Risk

Mergerfacqulsition activity exposes Alliance
Boots to unforeseen or unmanageable risks
in new markets resulting In reputational
damage or excessive costs or losses which
could materially impact Group performance
through impairment of competitive position
and growth prospects

Our strategy for continued growth includes
acquiring businesses and assoclate interests to
complernent our existing business portfollo

Fallure to select suitable acquisitions conduct
appropriate due dlligence and manage new
acquisitions, particularly in new geographic

markets, could have a negative impact on our
competitive position and growth prospects

Mitigating the risk mherent n acquisition

As Alliance UniChem, we acquired extensive
experlence in completing successful acquisitions
and developed well established processes which
are now in place within Alliance Boots We
closely monitor market intelligence continuously
assessing market trends and business
performance, and we conduct rigorous post-
acquisition reviews, to ensure the successful
Integration of business units and processes

Increased costs

Risk

Fixed and variable operating costs and
Interest rates may be subject to increases
outside the control of our businesses,
resulting In adverse effect on our financial
performance and profitabllity

Increases In oil, gas electricity labour and rent
costs — among others, — could all have a
negative Impact on our businesses Most of
these possible increases in operating costs are
beyond the control of Allance Boots and there
is no guarantee that we would be able to pass
them on to customers

Mitigating the risk of increases in costs

We take all reasonable measures to control
costs, Including wage negotiation and controls,
negotlation of lease renewal tenms and
procurement and competitive tendering
strategles To protect against increasing energy
costs we are carrying out wide-ranging energy
efficiency programmes throughout our Group
And we guard agalnst Interest rate escalation
through proactive treasury management

and forecasting

Pension contributions

Risk

Alliance Boots may be forced to increase
funding of future pension benefits or cover
shortfall in current penston schemnes, leading to
Increased costs and cash outflows, resulting in
adverse impact on operational results and
financial condition

The costs of providing adequate pension
provision for our people may continue to rise
for a number of reasons, including the Increased
life expectancy of pension scheme members
The possibility of pension fund asset under-
performance also represents arisk, in terms of
the Increased costs involved in making good
any resulting shortfall

Mitigating the risk of increased

pension contributions

To ensure an objective view of pension
performance Alllance Boots retains
independent actuarles to conduct regular
reviews Investment performance is also
reviewed quarterly by the Finance Committee
Defined benefit (“final salary™) schemes have
been closed for new entrants In the UK

Currency exchange

Risk

Currency exposures relating to dealings in
cumencies other than sterling could result in
an adverse effect on our performance

Like other internatlonal businesses we face

the risk of currency exchange exposure when
income or expense arise In currencles ather
than the business’s functional currency, and the
risk arising from the need to translate profits
denominated in currencles other than sterling

Mitigating the currency exchange risk
We have rigorous policies and procedures in
place to help us manage currency exposures
effectlvely In additlon, reporting from In-
country enables us to understand exposures
market by market




Pro forma financial results and
performance review

Pro forma

To assist investors In understanding the
performance of the Group pro forma financlal
information has been prepared to show the
results from continuing operatlons of the
Group as if the two former groups had always
been combined as was provided at the
announcement of the Group's interim results
on 14 November 2006 The pro forma revenue
and profit statement for continuing operations
has been prepared on an adjusted basls, which
means before exceptional ltems, amortisation
of customer related intangible assets and

IAS 39 timing differences, all net of tax,

and deferred tax restatements for customer
related Intangible assets

The results for the year are in line with
management s targets at the time of the
merger The Retall Division delivered good
revenue growth with trading margin in
the UK ahead of management s previous
expectations The Wholesale Division
performed well, reflecting the strength

of our geographically diverse portfollo

Revenue increased year on year by 3 6% to
£14,608 million Trading profit {which compnses

profit from operations before exceptional [tems,

amortisation of customer related Intanglble
assets and share of associates’ post tax
earnings) increased by 6 3% to £641 million
This reflects an underlying increase in trading
profit of 7 4% after adjusting the previous year s
trading profit to include a full year's rental
charge on the 312 retail outlets which were sold
and leased back In July 2005 so that the trading
profits for both years are on a comparable basls
Our share of associates’ post tax earnings
Increased by 4 3% to £49 million Underlying
net finance costs {(which exclude [AS 39 timing
differences from hedging interest rate and
currency exposures) reduced year on year by
£19 million Adjusted earnings (which comprises
profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders before exceptional Itemns,
amortisation of customer related Intangible

assets and [AS 39 timing differences all net of
tax and deferred tax restatements for customer
related intangible assets) increased by 11 5%

to £467 milllon Adjusted earnings per share
increased by 11 4% to 48 7 pence based on a
pro forma welghted average number of shares
in Issue of 959 million compared to 958 million
In the previous year

Dividends

The Board did not declare an Interim dividend
as dividends for the perleds up until the merger
an 31 July 2006 were paid to the respective
shareholders of both former companles on

3 October 2006

The Board would ordinarily be recommending
in the normal course of business, a final
dividend covering the perfod from 31 July 2006
until 31 March 2007 However the terms of the
recommended offer for the Company by AB
Acquisitions Limited, announced on 20 Aprll
2007, are such that the offer price is inclusive
of any final dividend Accordingly no such final
dividend will be pald However, if the Company
is not acquired by AB Acquisitions Limited (or
any alternative offeror), the Board intends that
the Company pay in due course an interim
dividend in respect of the year ended 31 March
2007 of an amount equal to the final dividend
that would have been paid

Merger update

Phase one - cost synergies

Following completion of the merger on 31 July
2006 the key Initial focus was on Implementing
our new organisational structure, establishing a
new corporate office In London utilising existing
office space and on delivery of our cost

synergy plan

Good progress has been made during the year
in delivering over £20 million of merger cost
savings primarily from harmonising buying
prices and reducing corporate costs and we
are on track with the longer term project to
streamline our combined distribution network

We remain confldent of dellvering annual
pre-tax cost savings of at least £100 million

er annum as a result of the merger by the fourth
full year following cornpletion of the merger
(belng the 12 month perlod ending on the
fourth anniversary of completion, completion
having taken place on 31 July 2006) We still
expect that aver 60% of the run-rate savings will
accrue by the second year following completion
and 100% by the fourth year As indicated In
March 2007 in our pre year end close period
announcement, the one-off costs related to
achieving these synergles are not expected

to exceed the £53 million estimate provided

at the time of the merger of which £23 milllon
was taken as an exceptional charge before tax
in 2006/07

Phase two — UK retail

The development of our UK retail offer
commenced shortly after the merger was
completed Followlng detalled work and various
pilots at the end of March 2007 we announced
2 major programme to capitalise on the
pharmacy-led opportunities that we have In the
UK market

“your local Boots pharmacy”

During the last four months of our financlal year
we successfully trialled a new ‘your local Boots
pharmacy” branded format for our community
pharmacles This combines a strong Boots
branded retall offer including own label
products and the Boots Advantage Card loyalty
scheme, with a tallored community focused
prescription and service proposition Following
the success of this trial, in which we are seeing
substantial Increases In both retall sales and
dispensing velumes in late March 2007 we
announced that we were ta roll out this new
format, investing around £65 million of capltal
to re brand and refit the majority of the
Community Pharmacy network over two years,
starting in the summer
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Pro forma financial results and

performance review (continued)

Property optimisation

Following the merger we reviewed our
combined UK retail property portfolio to
identify opportunities to optimise our position
in local markets to best serve the needs of our
retail and prescription customers This review,
the conclusions of which we announced In late
March 2007 identified around 100 localities
where we are seeking to relocate or, In a limited
number of cases rationalise our portfolio over
the next three years at a capital cost of around
£35 million

Systems harmonisation

In March 2007 we also announced our decislon
to harmonise cur UK pharmacy management
systerns over the next three years utilising
“"Nexphase” a system originally co developed by
our UK wholesale business for its customers and
used in our Community Pharrmacy business

As previously announced, the phase two
projects will result In approximately £75 milllon
of exceptional costs before tax of which
around £30 million will be In respect of non-
current asset write offs In 2006/07 these
exceptionals totalled £2 milllon

Phase three — international product offer
The third phase of our merger-related plans Is
focused on opportunities to Internationalise
the Boots brand and access new markets and
territorles utilising the skills and resources of
the combined Group While these plans are

at an early stage of development we remain
confident about the potential available to
shareholders over the longer term

Corporate developments

In Aprll 2006 Hedef Alliance, our Turkish-based
assoclate exercised Its aption to acquire control
and majority ownership of Its associate, UCP

a leading pharmaceutical wholesaler in Egypt

In June 2006 ANZAG, our German-based
assoclate acquired 60% of Farmexpert, the
third largest pharmaceutical wholesaler in

Romania Today we have wholesaling interests
in 14 countries, either through direct ownership
or vla our associates

In September 2006 we completed the
acquisition of Cardinal Health's UK short-line
pharmaceutical wholesale business for £38
milllon In cash, the business being subsequently
re-branded "Cordia Healthcare™ This has
further developed our wholesale offering to
independent pharmacy customers in the UK

In January 2007 we announced that we were
to enter the rapidly growing Chinese
pharmaceutical market, currently the ninth
largest in the world, through an agreement,
which s subject to regulatory approval to
form a 50 50 joint venture in Guangzhou
Pharmaceuticals Corporation, the third largest
pharmaceutical wholesaler in China The move
into China follows our entry into Russia last
year with the purchase of Apteka Holding

The programme to comply with the
undertakings glven to the Office of Fair Trading
at the time they approved our merger is now
nearly complete Of the 96 pharmacles in the
UK originally IdentIfied for disposal the Office
of Falr Trading has subsequently agreed to
withdraw two pharmacies from the agreed
divestment list To date 89 pharmacies have
been sold, of which 68 were completed befare
the end of our financial year, with the remainder
completed in Aprll 2007 Negotlations for the
sale of the remaining five pharmacies are
progressing The exceptional profit before tax
on those Health & Beauty pharmacies sold
during the year was £7 million There was no
recorded gain on those community pharmacies
sold as they were subject to fair value
accounting on merger

While fulfilling the Office of Fair Trading
requiremenit to dispose of these pharmacles
our Community Pharmacy business has not
acquired pharmactes at its historical rate This

will reduce the contrlbution from pharmacy
acquisitions in the new financial year Since

the beginning of 2007 we have stepped up

the rate of acquisitions in the UK acquirlng

16 pharmacies In the fourth quarter, bringing
the total acquired In the UK during our financlal
year to 29 pharmacies

Outlook

The Board expects the good trading
performance it has seen in 2006/07 to
contlnue in the current financlal year




Segmentation
New segrmenital reporting was Introduced in our interim results to reflect the composition of the merged Group the two principal segments being the Retail
and Wholesale Divisions

In the pro forma operating and financial review the Retail Division results are further split between the UK and International businesses given the relative
size of our UK retall businesses, and the Wholesale Divislon results are further split between Northern and Scuthern Europe to reflect the different
regulatory and market dynamics typlcally encountered in these regions Comparatives for the year have been prepared on the same basls

A glossary of terms and a list of principal businesses by segment are included In the information at the end of this announcement

Pro forma performance review

To asslst Investors In understanding the performance of the Group pro forma financial informatlon has been prepared to show the results from continuing
operations of the Group as if the two former groups had always been combined as was provided at the announcement of the Group s interlm results on

14 November 2006 The pro forma revenue and profit statement for continuing operatlons has been prepared on an adjusted basls which means before
exceptional items, amortisation of customer related intanglble assets and IAS 39 timing differences, all net of tax and deferred tax restatements of
customer intangible assets

Detalled pro forma financlal Information, including the basis of preparation Is set out In the “additional pro forma financial Information for continuing
operations” sectlon of this announcement

Divisional highlights
for the year ended 31 March 2007

Trading Year on year growth

Revenue profit Trading

Emillion £million Revenue profit

Retall 6,579 502 +4 2% +6 4%

Wholesale 9009 186 +3 4% +101%
QOther Commercial Activities & Corporate Costs 114 a7 +29 5%

Intra-group (1094) —

Group® 14 608 641 +36% +6 3%

Share of associates revenue & trading profit 2,118 70 +4 5% -14%

16,726 mnm +37% +55%

* Group trading profit comprises profit from operations before exceptional Items amortisatlon of customer retated intangible assets and share of associates post tax earnings

5
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Retail Division

Performance overview

The Retail Divislon dellvered good revenue growth with trading margin in the UK ahead of management's previous expectations Revenue increased
year on year by 4 2% to £6,579 million, trading profit Increasing by & 4% to £502 million This reflects an underlying Increase in trading profit of 7 7% after
adjusting the previous years trading proflt to include a full year's rental charge on the 312 retall outlets which were sold and leased back in July 2005

so that the trading profits for both years are on a comparable basis Trading margin increased by 01 percentage polnt to 7 6%, an underlying increase of
0 2 percentage points after adjusting for the sale and leaseback transaction On a constant currency basls, revenue Increased by 4 3% up 29% on a like
for llke basis and trading prefit increased by 6 2%, an increase of 7 6% after adjusting for the sale and leaseback transaction

Trading profit in the Retall Division in the second half of the year was £294 million an Increase of 8 1% on the second half of the previous year on revenue
up 2 9% to £3,454 million reflecting a particularly strong trading margin In the UK

Retail Division highlights
for the year ended 31 March 2007

Total Year on year growth
fmilllon Total Like for like
Revenue
UK
Health & Beauty 4945 +38% +30%
Community Pharmacy 101 +4 6% +2 1%
5956 +3 9% +29%
International
Republic of Ireland 155 +92% +7 5%
Norway 267 +31% +0 8%
The Netherlands 138 +12 2% +27%
Russia 1 n/a nfa
Italy 25 +4 2% +04%
Thalland 37 +121% -4 9%
623 +72% +2 8%
6,579 +42% +2 9%
Trading profit
UK 469 +73%
International 13 -57%
502 +6 4%
Trading margin
UK 79% +0 3pp
International 53% -0 7pp

76% +01pp




Retail outlets’
at 31 March 2007

With Without

a pharmacy a pharmacy Total
UK

Health & Beauty 1313 23¢ 1,543
Community Pharmacy 939 55 994
2252 285 2537

[nternatlonal
Republic of [reland 36 5 4
Norway 129 9 138
The Netherlands 75 - 75
Russia 6 - 6
[taly 20 i 21
Thailand 117 — 17
383 15 398
2,635 300 2935

1 Excludes franchised outlets
2 Includes 124 standalone optical practices

Retail — UK

In the UK total retail revenue Increased year on year by 3 9% to £5,956 million, like for like revenue increasing by 29% Trading profit increased by 7 3%

to £469 million and trading margin by 0 3 percentage points Ad|usting for the sale and leaseback transaction underlying trading profit increased by 8 8%
and underlying trading margin increased by 0 4 percentage points Trading profit in the second half of the year was £277 million, an increase of ¢ 9% on
the second half of the previous year on revenue up 2 5% to £3 133 million reflecting a particularty strong trading margin in what continues to be a highly

competitive market

UK revenue by product category
for the year ended 31 March 2007

Emillion Mix Year on year growth

Health' 3,089 519% +50%
Beauty & Tolletrles? 1,729 290% +54%
Lifestyle’ 1138 191% -10%
5,956 100 0% +39%

1 The Health category comprises the dispensing & related Income and retail healthcare sub-categorles the latter induding sales of non-prescription medicines and optical sales
2 The Beauty & Tolletries category comprises the cosmetics & fragrances and tolletrles sub categorles
3 The Lifestyle category comprises the baby nutrition photography etectrical seasonal and other lifestyle sub categornes

V7
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Revenue in the Health category increased by 50%
to £3,089 milllon with strong performances In both
our dispensing & related Income and healthcare
sub-categories Total dispensing volumes increased
year on year by 5 5% to 182 million iterns growth
being particularly strong In the care homes sector
and from our prescription collection services

In England and Wales the adjustments to the
reimbursement rate In relation to generic
prescription medicines which came into effect
from the beginning of October slowed market
growth In value terms In the second half of the
year as anticipated This regulatory action was
expected and we have taken steps to mitigate
the Impact of these changes

We continue to develop the role of retail
pharmacists In the provision of healthcare
services Total service Income, which came
primarily from Medicine Use Reviews and other
localty commissioned services while still relatively
maodest, increased year on year by more than 60%

Qver three quarters of our pharmacles now
incorporate private consultation facilities This,
together with our pharmacist accreditation
programmes has enabled us to Increase the
number of Medicine Use Reviews carrled out by
our pharmacists by over six times compared to
the previous year Over 184 000 reviews were
carried out during the year which we belleve

Is well above our overall healthcare market
share Atthe beginning of Cctober 2006 the
Oepartment of Health ralsed the fee rate for
Medicine Use Reviews from £23 to £25 per
review and for pharmacies that were already
carrying out such reviews further increased the
upper limit frorn 250 to 400 reviews per annum
The new pharmacy contract was introduced

in Scotland in April 2006 and since the Minor
Allment Service became fully operational in July
2006 we have signed up over 205 000 patients

Further developrnent of our service offering is
ongolng with nearly 12,000 private or publicly
funded chlamydla tests carrled out during the
year from around 500 pharmacies

In Scotand the smoking ban In public indoor spaces
was introduced at the end of March 2006 Since
then we have seen significant increases in the
provision of smoking cessation services and sales
of related products In our Scottish pharmacies
Similar bans in Wales and Northern Ireland have
just been implernented, with the ban In England
to take effect from the beginning of July By the
year end, around 850 of our pharmacies were
providing state funded stop smoking services

in support of the public health agenda

The National Health Service continues to plan for
electronic prescriptions to be fully operational
across all pharmades In England by the end of 2007
the introduction belng planned in phases The initial
service which has now been fully deployed into all
our pharmacies In England enables pharmacies to
scan barcodes on paper subscriptions printed by
doctors This service, coupled with smart cards
Issued by Primary Care Trusts to Individual
pharmacists who are registered users of the new
system, enables pharmacies to claim an allowance
of £200 per month for running the system Once
the vast majority of doctors and pharmacies have
the new system operational printed bar coded
prescriptions will be superseded by electronically
transferred prescriptions from the doctortc the
patient’s norminated pharmacy A simitar electrenic
prescription service Is scheduled to begin roll
out In Scotland In September 2007

During the year three central dispensarles were
opened which dispense high volumes of acute and
repeat prescriptions In a highly efficient way to local
pharmacies This brought the total number of
central dispensaries to 13 at the year end The
changes belng intraduced by the Department of

Health, including the introduction of electronic
prescriptions, rean that we see an Increasing role
for such central dispensaries over the coming years
thereby freeing up community-based pharmacists
to spend an increasing proportion of their time
providing services and advice to thelr patients,
In addition to dispensing acute prescriptions

As the leading operator of retail pharmacies in
the UK with signlificantly more outlets than any
other operator we remain committed to making
high quality healthcare more avallable and
accessible and now provide pharmacy services
up unti{ midnight in more than 50 pharmacies

Retall healthcare revenue In the UK benefited
from the programme to address historic under-
investment in Boots branded smaller Health &
Beauty stores and the good summer weather in
2006 A strong “Change One Thing” campaign was
run for the second consecutive New Year and the
Boots Health Club was launched in April 2006,
which enables customers to recelve targeted
healthcare information and offers on specific
health Issues on a periodic basis The Boots Health
Club now has 1 5 milllon members and particularly
appeals to our older customers with around 40%
of Its members now aged 60 or over who, as
members are entitled to a 10% discount on our
own brand products Thisis an age group which
was not previously highly represented In the Boots
Advantage Card loyafty scheme The most popular
topics for Health Club members of which
almost 0% are women are womens health
vitamins and supplements and weight loss

Revenue In the Beauty & Tolletrles category In
the UK where we have leading market positions
and brands Increased by 5 4% to £1 729 million
Revenue growth was strong In fragrances and In
both self selection and premium cosmetics,
these being key contributors to our biggest ever
trading week In the run-up to Christmas




supported by the “Gorgeous” advertising
campalgn and our successful post-Christrnas
sale Fragrances growth mainly came from new
product launches and the introduction of
fragrance cabinets into more Health & Beauty
stores In August 2006 we successfully re-
launched our Natural Collection range with its
cosmetics products all priced below £2, resulting
In very strong sales growth for this brand

No 7, our leading cosmetics brand, has continued
Its growth, assisted by a successful promotiona!
programme and continuing new preduct
development with a strong pharmaceutical focus
Recently we have experienced unprecedented
demand from customers for No 7 Protect and
Perfect Beauty Serum This follows extensive
media coverage highlighting Independent research
at Manchester University that concluded that our
patented antl-oxidant complex repairs photo-
aged skin and improves fine wrinkles associated
with photo-agelng We are currently stepplng
up praduction in our manufacturing facility In
Nottingham to meet demand

We continued to grow revenue In Tolletrles
helped by good growth in skincare due to
improved layout and merchandising and higher
sales of gradual tanning and premturn skincare
products Men's toiletrles performed particularly
well partly as a result of a new branded razor
launch in the first half of the year Sun care
revenues also grew, boosted by the warm
summer with Soltan retaining its market leading
poslition assisted by new product launches

Revenue in the Lifestyle category In the UK
decreased by 1 0% to £1 138 million This reflected
a continued decline In photographic revenue,
despite market share gains in traditional photo
products and growing digttal photo sales from the
Klosks we now have in 350 stores together with
flat sales of electrical beauty products [n contrast,
our seasonal baby and nutrition sub-categories all
performed well throughout the year Good
seasonal gIft sales combined with more selective

buying tight stock control and an excellent post-
Christrnas sale resulted in good sales and margin
growth In our seasonal sub-category Nutrition,
which is a strong driver of footfall benefited from
an extenslon in our "Meal Deal” lunchtime offer to
include more products Baby sub-category growth
reflected a particularly strong performance In
nursery products assisted by a successful re-
launch of our Boots own brand napples We
continue to provide value to our customers via
the Boots Parenting Club which we believe to
be the largest membership baby club In the UK

Qur own brands and exclusive ranges enable us
to differentiate our retail offer frorn that of our
competitors and remaln very important drivers
of revenue and margin No 7 and Soltan continue
to be leaders In their respectlve markets New
product developments include the launch In
August 2006 of the niche “Soap & Glory”
indulgent bathing range which Is exclusive to
Boots and in lanuary 2007 we launched the
“Expert” range of products which sold over a
million units In our fourth quarter and is now
being backed by a new marketing campaign in
our new financlal year Limited ranges of Boots
branded products have been sold through

aver 800 of our Community Pharmacy business
outlets since the merger was completed and
are proving a popular addition to the range
particularty consumner healthcare medicines
and our “Baslics” range of low priced tolletries

The Boots Advantage Card loyalty scheme
where customers earn polnts on purchases for
redemption at a later date, remains a key efement
of our customer offer in our Boots branded
stores At the year end the number of active
Boots Advantage Card holders (I e members who
have used thelr card at least once in the last 12
months) was 15 1 million Boots com sales which
are allocated to the relevant product category
Increased by 19 0% year on year to £29 milllon
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Looking at the individual
performances of our two retail
businesses in the UK

The Boots branded Health & Beauty business
increased both its trading margin and trading
profit year on year for the first time in five years
Revenue increased by 3 8% to £4,945 million,
like for like revenue increasing by 3 0% of which
we attribute about half a percentage point to
the warm weather during the summer Trading
margin increased particularly in the latter part
of the year, mainly as a result of improved stock
management following recent Infrastructure
Investments better buying (partlally as a result
of merger synergies) and better targeted
marketing programmes Boots Opticians made
a trading profit during the year, a further 15
practices being switched to the franchise model
bringing the total franchised to 23

The number of retail outlets the Health &
Beauty business operates with a pharmacy
increased by a net 23 during the year 39
new NHS pharmacy contracts were opened,
26 of which were in existing destination
Health & Beauty stores previously without a
pharmacy and one pharmacy was acquired
242 retail outlets underwent major refits,
many of which were part of our programme
designed to address historic under-Investment
in smaller stores, and we carried out 11
relocations At 31 March 2007 the Health

& Beauty business operated 1,543 retail
outlets of which 1313 had a pharmacy and
264 had an optical practice, 124 of which
were standalone optical practices

Our Health & Beauty business is on track

with its systerns rationalisatlon and supply
chain reconfiguration programme announced
In March 2006 Of the £40 milllon exceptional
costs before tax Identified when this
programme was announced £20 milllon

was incurred in 2006/07 and In addition, the
business exited certain third party logistics
activities in Nottingham which resulted in
incremental exceptional costs before tax

of £5 million

During the year our Health & Beauty business
implemented a new training and development
programme designed to raise the motlvation,
knowledge and enthuslasm of our people

in store Following the success of the Initial
programme in 80 stores we plan to roll out the
programme to all Health & Beauty stores over
the next two years

Qur Comrnunity Pharmacy business increased
revenue by 4 6% to £1,011 milllon Like for

like sales increased by 2 1%, this being lower
than in our Health & Beauty business due to
Community Pharmacy’s greater weighting
towards the dispensing market where
adjustments to the reimbursement rate In
relation to generic prescription medicines
came into effect from the beginning of
October 2006, which slowed market growth

In value terms Trading profit increased year
on year due to the like for like revenue growth,
trading margin being lower due to the generics
relmbursement rate adjustments

Following the successful trial of our new
“your local Boots pharmacy” branded format
for community pharmacies in which we are
seeing substantial increases in both retall sales
and dispensing volumes, we announced in
late March 2007 that we were to roll out this
new format, investing around £65 million of
capital to re-brand and refit the majority of
the Community Pharmacy network over the
next two years, starting in the summer This
is expected to further increase sales of
products excluslve to Boots

The number of pharmacies in the Community
Pharmacy business reduced by a net 23 in the
year as a result of the divestment programme
to comply with the undertakings given to the
Office of Fair Trading at the time they approved
our merger While fulfilling these undertakings
our Community Pharmacy business has not
acquired pharmacies at its historical rate Since
the beginning of 2007 we have stepped up the
rate of acquisitions, acquiring 16 pharmacles

in the fourth quarter bringing the total acquired

during the financial year to 29 pharmacies

At 31 March 2007 the Community Pharmacy
business operated 994 retail outlets, of which
939 were pharmacies

Retail - International

Total retall revenue in countries outside the UK
increased year on year by 7 2% to £623 milfion
Iike for like revenue increasing by 2 8% Trading
profit reduced by 5 7% to £33 million, trading
marglns reducing by 0 7 percentage points On
a constant currency basls, revenue increased
by 8 3% Trading profit In the second half of
the year was £17 million a decrease of 15 0%
on the second half of last year the reduction
being mainly as a result of higher costs In
Norway total second half revenue increasing
by 7 4% on the second half of fast year to

£321 miilion

43 retall outlets were added during the year,

the number of outlets with pharmacles
increasing by 38 The major areas of expansion
were a net 21 Boots openlngs In Thailand, six of
which are airport concessions and 12 additions
in Norway, elght of which sell specialist surgical
preducts into which we plan to Incorporate new
pharmacles At 31 March 2007 we operated 398
retail outlets outside the UK, of which 383 had
a pharmacy

In the Republic of Ireland revenue Increased by
9 2% to £155 million an increase of 75% on a
like for like basis, growth belng very strong In
the second half of the year due to a particularly
good perfarmance in the cosmetics &
fragrances and retall healthcare sub-categories
assisted by a well executed seasonal marketing
campalgn Trading profit and trading margin
both increased year on year as aresult

In Norway revenue increased by 3 1% to

£267 million an increase of 0 8% on a like for
Iike basis like for like growth being higher in
the second half of the year The total number
of pharmacies has continued to increase In

the Norwegian market newer openings taking
share from existing outlets Trading margin and



proflt was lower than in the previous year due
to higher operating costs, mainly as a result
of Increased employment costs partlcularly In
the latter part of the year and the addition of
new outlets which take time to reach maturity

[n The Netherlands revenue increased by

12 2% to £138 million an increase of 2 7% on
a like for llke basis As In Norway the total
number of pharmacies continued to increase
Despite strong competition, trading margin
Increased year on year mainly due to a more
favourable product mix Trading profit was
higher as a result

In Italy revenue increased by 4 2% 1o £25
million, an Increase of 6 4% on a lke for like
basis This increase together with an Increase
in trading margin due to reduced operating
expenses, resulted in a higher trading profit

[n Thailand revenue Increased by 12 1% to

£37 million a decrease of 4 9% on a 1ike for like
basls due to the difficult economic and political
climate and Increased competition from new
openings and on pricing which resulted ina
lower trading margin and trading profit Despite
this like for like transaction volumes increased
and No 7 was successfully re-launched 1n
Qctober 2006

Wholesale Division

Performance overview

The Wholesale Divislon performed well
reflecting the strength of our geographically
diverse portfolio of businesses Revenue
totalled £9,009 million an increase of 3 4%
trading profits Increasing by 10 1% to £186
milllon Overall trading margins Increased by
0 2 percentage points Adjusting for acquisitions
and disposals on a constant currency basis
like for like revenue increased by 1 0%, ke for
like trading profit increasing by 9 7% and like
for like trading margins increasing by 0 2
percentage polnts

Trading profit in the second half of the year
in the Wholesale Division was £101 million
an Increase of 13 5% on the second half of
the previous year, merger synergies being

increasingly realised In the UK, on revenue
up 5 8% to £4 621 milllon

In January 2007 we announced plans to
re-brand the Wholesale Division’s principal
businesses in each country under a common
brand name, “Alliance Healthcare” By the year
end we had completed the re-branding in four
of the elght countrles In which we operate plus
our associate in Portugal, with the programme
scheduled for completion In early 2008

Markets

We estimate that our wholesale markets grew
yeas on year by around 2 5% In value on a
constant currency basis this growth being
welghted on the basls of our wholesale revenue
This s lower than in the previous year mainly as
a result of negative volume growth in France as
its government attempts to bring consumption
down towards levels typically seen In other
European countries We expect that the overall
market growth in 2007/08 wiil be higher at
around 3 5%, largely because we belleve that
the rate of decline in consumptlon In France
will start to slow down

The growth in the market from the introduction
of higher priced new pharmaceuticals has
continued to be partially offset by growth in
market penetratlon of lower priced generic
drugs This percentage Is typically significantly
higher in our markets in Northern Europe than
In Southern Europe Compared to the previous
year penetration of generlcs grew in all markets
In which we operate

We estimate that the overall level of parallel trade
In Europe was broadly in line with the levelin the
previous year, with manufacturers continuing to
seek ways to curtail these activities

The continued growth of Almus, our exclusive
range of generic drugs Is providing marketing
and sourcing benefits aimed at offsetting the
tmpact of patent expiries The phased launch of
Almus outside the UK commenced with France
and Italy in April and May 2006 respectively,
with additional products subsequently having
been launched in these countries The roll-out
of Almus Into other European countries is set

to continue on a phased basls Alrmus has been
Introduced into all Boots pharmacies in the
UK, which Is increasing the brand’s sales and
market presence
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Wholesale Division highlights
for the year ended 31 March 2007

Year on year growth

Total
Emillion Total Like for like
Revenue
Northern Europe
UK 1978 +74% +32%
Norway 222 -04% H7%
The Netherlands 702 +31% +37%
Russia 195 n/a nfa
Czech Republic 247 +123% +76%
3.344 +12 8% +35%
Southern Europe
France 3746 -14% -08%
ltaly 931 +04% +03%
Spain 1053 +77% +22%
Portugal 3 nia +3 0%
5.733 -11% -01%
Intra-segrnent (68)
9,009 +3 4% +1 0%
Trading profit
Northern Europe 108 +149% +129%
Southern Evrope 78 +4 0% +56%
186 +101% +97%
Trading margin
Northern Europe 32% - +0 3pp
Southern Europe 14% +01pp +0 1pp
2% +0 2pp +0 Zpp

Wholesale — Northern Europe

Trading profit in the Northem Europe geographical
area of our wholesale division totalled £108
million, a year on year increase of 14 9% on
revenue up 12 8% to £3,344 milllon Trading
margln was in line with the previous year at

3 2% like for like improvements being offset by
the lower margin business in Russia which was
acquired In March 2006 Adjusting for acquisitions
and disposals on a constant currency basis like for
fike revenue increased by 3 5%, like for like trading
profits increased by 12 9% and like for like trading
margins increased by 0 3 percentage points
Trading profit in the second haff of the year was
£59 million an Increase of 20 4% on the second
half of the previous year on revenue up 16 8%
to £1 741 million

In the UK revenue Increased by 7 4% to £1,978
million, like for like revenue increasing by 3 2%
mainly as a result of higher intra-group sales to
our Health & Beauty business Trading margin

and trading profit both increased year on year
merger synergles being increasingly realised as
the year progressed

In September 2006 we completed the
acquisition of Cardinal Health s UK short-line
pharmaceutical wholesale business for £38
milllon In cash, the business being subsequently
re-branded as “Cordla Healthcare™ This has
further developed our wholesale offering to
independent pharmacy customers

In March UniChern our UK full-line wholesale
business successfully commenced Its previously
announced sole loglstics services contract with
Pfizer under which it provides delivery and
related services to all pharmacies In the UK
Implementation of the contract was well planned
and executed resuiting In high service levels
since its launch We are aware that other
manufacturers are also contemplating whether
to change thelr existing arrangements In April

2007 the Office of Fair Trading announced that It
had launched a market study into the distribution
of medicines in the UK which it has indicated will
be concluded by the end of 2007 Since our year
end, we have also entered into an agency
agreement with AstraZeneca to provide dellvery
and related services on a non-exclusive basis

In Norway revenue decreased by 0 4% to

£222 million, an increase of 17% ona like for
like basis which was ahead of our estimate of
market growth Increased benefits from running
our Norweglan retail and wholesale businesses
more closely together resulted in increased
trading margin and profit

In The Netherlands revenue increased by 3 1%
to £702 milllon an Increase of 3 7% on a lke for
like basis Trading profit increased as a result of
the revenue growth, trading margin being lower
due to increased customer discounts The
development of Kring our virtual chain of




pharmacies continued during the year with
over 300 pharmacies now participating in the
Kring programme including the 75 pharmacies
operated by our retall business In The Netherlands

In Russia revenue was £195 millien an Increase of
around 16% in local currency on the comparable
period in the previcus year when the business was
under pricr ownership The business traded
profitably during the year, its Integration Inta the
Wholesale Division proceeding according to plan

Inthe Czech Republic revenue Increased by

12 3% to £247 miilllon an increase of 76% on

a lkke for like basis, which was well ahead of

our estimate of market growth, the business
performing particularly well in the Independent
retall pharmacy sector throughout the year
Trading profit increased due to the revenue
growth trading margin being lower as a result
of higher costs

Wholesale — Southern Europe

Trading profit In the Southern Europe geographical
area of our Wholesale Division totalted £78 million
a year on year increase of 4 0% on revenue down
11% to £5 733 million In what remain competitive
markets Trading margin increased by 01
percentage points to 1 4% Adjusting for
acquisitions and disposals, on a constant currency
basls lke for [lke revenue was down 01 percentage
polnts year on year like for ke trading profit
increased by 56% and like for like trading margin
Increased by 01 percentage points Trading profit
in the second half of the year was £42 million, an
increase of 5 0% on the second half of the
previous year on revenue up 0 1% to £2910 milllon

In France, revenue decreased by 14% to £3 746
millicn, a decrease of 0 8% on a like for llke basis
the proportion of product which manufacturers
sell and distribute direct to phamacles continuing
to increase In the second half of our financlal year
the French government announced an additional
healthcare tax for 2006 allocated between all
pharmaceutical wholesalers and distributors Our
share of this tax was £4 million which resulted In

a reduction in trading margin in the second half of
the year our full year trading margin and trading
profit increasing year on year due to the
replacerment of the debtor securltisation
programme during the year which resulted in

a corresponding increase in net finance costs

We continue to counter the trend in direct sales
within the French market through actions such
as the roll out of a more competitive generics

offer and the launch of Almus In France In April
2006 As a result of these Initiatives our generics
revenue increased year on year by over 20%

Following the completion of our service
offering review in the first half of the year the
previously announced restructuring of the
warehouse network Is well underway, which
will improve operational efficiency and better
position our business to adapt as the market
continues to evolve £10 milllon of exceptional
restructuring costs before tax were charged
during the year one depot belng closed

In Italy revenue increased by 0 4% to £931
milllon an Increase of 0 3% on a like for like
basis, the market continuing to be Impacted by
government price cuts Trading margin and
profit were both higher than the previous year,
mainly as a result of a beneficial mix of business
in the second half of the year Good progress
has continued to be made in establishing our
virtual chain of pharmacies in Italy In May 2006
Almus was launched In the Itallan market
followed by Alvita, our own label range of
healthcare cormmodity products In July 2006

In Spain total revenue increased by 7 7% to
£1053 million, an increase of 2 2% on a like
for like basls revenue growth from existing
customers being particularly strong In the
fourth quarter Trading margin and profit
increased year on year due to Increased trading
actlvitles During the year the integration Into
our Spanish operations of the Farmacen and
CERFC businesses acquired in 2005 was
completed, with the closure of two depots
common IT systems belng Introduced and
administration centrallsed

Revenue in Portugal of £3 million was from
our wholly owned pre-wholesale and contract
logistics business

Other Commercial Activities

& Corporate Costs

Revenue from Other Commerctal Activities
totalled £114 million a year on year increase
of 26 5%

Within this, revenue from contract
manufacturing for third party health and beauty
brands, which utilises capacity in our three Health
& Beauty manufacturing facilities increased by
36 5% to £86 milllon as a result of contract
manufacturing for Reckitt Benckiser Volumes
manufactured for internal use increased by

nearly 30% The profit contribution from contract
manufacturing has been allocated to our Health
& Beauty business In the UK, as In prior years

At the time of the £19 billion disposal of Boots
Healthcare International in February 2006
Reckitt Benckiser entered into certain contract
manufacturing arrangements with us They
have served notice of their intent to exit these
arrangements at the beginning of 2008 To
mitigate the impact of this decision on the
efficlency of our manufacturing operations, we
announced In March 2007 the need for around
300 redundancles in our Nottingham facility
when the contract ends

Revenue from our own brand export business
increased by 12 0% to £28 million, higher sales
in North America from the opening of over

1 500 new “Implants” {l e dedicated
merchandising display units) In third party
retallers being partially offset by fower sales In
Asia At 31 March 2007 we had 2,413 “implants”,
of which 16892 were In North America Trading
lasses from our own brand export business
increased by £5 million to £8 million, as a result
of losses In Asla and adverse US Dollar currency
movements In the second half of the year the
business broke even at the trading profit level
compared to a loss of £1 million In the second
half of the previous year

A review of our own brand export business
completed in the fourth quarter of our financial
year concluded that Its activitles should be
focused on our own international businesses and
selected large export markets Accordingly, we are
In the process of withdrawing from a number of
smaller export markets in Asla and Europe, which
will result in a reduction of around 380 “implants”

Together the actions In respect of our
manufacturing operations and own brand
export business have resulted in exceptional
charges before tax of £23 milllion

Corporate Costs which include unrealised profit
in stock adjustments, increased year on year by
£4 million to £39 milllon, due to higher
unrealised profit in stock adjustments as our
Health & Beauty business increased the amount
of prescription medicines it buys from our UK
wholesale business Fixed corporate costs
reduced as a result of merger synergles, these
being largely offset by higher incentive
payments Fixed corporate costs are expected
to reduce further as more synergies are reallsed
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Intra-group

Intra-group revenue totalled £1 094 milllen a
year on year Increase of £79 milllon of which
£45 milllon resulted from higher sales from our
UK wholesale business to our UK Health &
Beauty retail business

Associates

Our share of assoclates revenue Increased year
on year by 4 5% to £2 118 million Our share of
trading profit at £70 milllon reduced year on year
by 14%, our share of adjusted earnings increasing
by 4 5% to £49 million Our results were adversely
Impacted by a 19% adverse change In the
exchange rate used to translate Hedef Alliance’s
results from Turkish Lira into Sterling compared
to the previous year Hedef Alllance contributing
over half our assoclate earnings

On a constant currency basis, adjusting for
changes in assoclate Interests including Alllance
Healthcare Portugal as an associate from the end
of June 2005 like for like revenue Increased by

6 6% like for lke trading proflt by 6 9% and like for
like earnings before exceptional items by 119%
Earnings benefited from an underlying tax rate
on assoclates earnings of 20 2% a year onyear
decrease of 77 percentage points which was
mainly due to a reduction In the Turkish tax rate

Hedef Alllance Increased its trading profit

year on year in local currency despite the more
difficult economic climate in Turkey, its net
flnance costs increasing as a result of higher
interest rates Alllance Healthcare Portugal
performed particularly strongly reflecting the
benefits of the strategic partnership we entered
into with the Portuguese national assoctation of
pharmacies in June 2005 We do not comment
on the performance of Galenica In Switzerland
and ANZAG in Germany as both associates are
quoted companies which report their own
results separately

Underlying net finance costs
Undertylng net finance costs (which exclude
1AS 39 timing differences from hedging Interest
rate and currency expaosures) were £42 milllon
This was £19 million lower than the comparable
figure for the previous year, of which £9 milllon
was due to higher net returns on our defined
benefit pension schemes, partially as a result of
additional contributions into the Boots Pension
Scheme The balance of the reduction was mainly

due to lower net borrowlings following the disposal
of Boots Healthcare [nternational and related
speclal dividend and the sale and teaseback of
312 retail outlets in July 2005, partially offset
by higher Euro Interest rates acquisition
expenditure and interest costs which replace
the fixed element of securitisation charged
against trading profit up untll the programmes
were replaced by standard borrowings Interest
caver (which we deflne as trading profit divided
by underlying net finance costs) was 15 3 times
compared to 99 times in the previous year

Net finance costs are expected to Increase in
the new financial year, partially due to higher
Interest rates and the full year impact of
replacing the securltisation programmes

Underlying tax

The underlying tax rate (which we define as

the underlylng tax charge (ie excluding tax on
exceptional items, IAS 39 timing differences and
exceptional tax credits), expressed as a percentage
of trading profit net of underlying net finance
costs), was 30 2% This was 10 percentage points
lower than in the previous year, mainly due to the
impact of a reductlon in the capital gains tax rate
in France and the resolution of prior year issues

Cash flow

Net cash generated by operations totalled £887
million This included a net working capital inflow
of £114 million of which around half was due to
the factoring of receivables on a non recourse
basis primarily In Italy, a £67 milllon decrease in
provisions malnly comprising store refurbishment
and system ratfonallsation In Boots, and a one-
off Boots pension outflow of £43 million The
one-off penslon outflow, which was in the first
half of the year, was the second and final
instalment of the £85 million additional
contributions which Boots agreed to pay into
the Boots Pension Scheme from the Boots
Healthcare International disposal proceeds

The net cash outflow on acquisitions and
disposals of businesses and associates was

£19 million The principal cash expenditure was
£38 million on the Cordla Healthcare wholesale
acquisition in the UK and the acquisition of

4 retail outlets, 30 of which were pharmacies
in the UX This was partlally offset by

£58 mlllion of cash proceeds from the

68 pharmacies sold before the year end under

the divestment programme agreed with the
Office of Fair Trading

Net cash capltal expenditure was £236 million, of
which £110 million was for growth and efficiency

projects Around 75% of the net expenditure was

Incurred In the UK In the Retall Division the major
area belng our store investment programme

Overall total cash inflow in the year was £297
million This compared to an outflow of £1 232
mitlion In the previous year, which included a
special dividend of £1 426 million

Financial position

At the year end net borrowings (defined as
borrowings, net of cash and cash equivalents
and derivatlve financial instruments) were
£1,048 million and shareholders’ equity was
£5,760 million

Retirement benefit obligations

The total charge before tax for retirement
benefit obligaticns was £76 milllon which was
in line with the previous year This comprised
£81 million of costs within trading profit a year
on year increase of £9 million, and net finance
income of £5 million compared to a net finance
expense in the previous year of £4 milllon

The Group's total net retirement benefit
obligations at 31 March 2007 on an accounting
basls were £26 million before deferred tax This
comprised a net surplus of £20 million for the
former Boots schemes and £46 million of net
obligations for the former Alllance UniChem
schemes

The net surplus in the former Boots schemes arose
due to the £43 million additional contribution
payment made In the first half of the yearand a
0 5 percentage point increase in the long-term
bond yield used to discount estimates of future
penslon obligations, partially offset by an
allowance for future improvements to longevity

At the date of the merger, the net retirement
benefit obligations for the former Afllance
UniChem schemes were £78 million The
decrease in the net obligations since then
arose due to additional contributions and

a 0 3 percentage polnt increase In the long
term bond yield used to discount estimates
of future retirement benefit obligations




25

Additional pro forma financial information
for continuing operations

Basis of preparation
The Group completed the acquisition of Alhance UniChern Plc on 31 July 2006 The statutory results for the Group for the year ended 31 March 2007 therefore
include trading of the former Alllance UniChem Plc businesses for the period from 31 July 2006 to 31 March 2007

To assist investors in understanding the performance of the Group pro forma financial information has been prepared to show the results from continuing
operations of the Group as if the two former groups had always been combined This information has been prepared for the year ended 31 March 2007,
with comparatives on the same basis for the year ended 31 March 2006 The pro forma revenue and profit statement for continulng operations has been
prepared on an adjusted basis which means before exceptional Items amortisation of customer related Intangible assets and IAS 39 timing differences
all net of tax and deferred tax restatements for customer related intangible assets

Pro forma combined Group revenue and adjusted profit statement for continuing operations
for the year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006
£mullion Emillion
Revenue including share of associates revenue 16,726 16123
Less share of assoclates revenue (2118) (2027)
Revenue 14,608 14096
Trading profit Including share of assoclates trading profit 711 674
Less share of assoclates’ trading profit {70) (71)
Trading profit 641 603
Share of assoclates’ post tax earnings before exceptional items 49 47
690 650
Underlylng net finance costs 42) (61)
648 589
Underlying tax (181) (169)
Adjusted profit for the year 467 420
Attributable to
Equity shareholders (adjusted earnings) 467 419
Mincrity Interests - 1
467 420

Adjusted earnings per share 48 7p 43 7p
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Additional pro forma financial information

for continuing operations (continued)

Pro forma combined Group adjusted segmental analysis for continuing operations — primary segments

for the year ended 31 March 2007

Group revenue and trading profit

2007 2006
£million frnillion
Revenue
Retail 6,579 6312
Wholesale 9,009 8711
Other Commercial Activities 114 88
intra-group {1,094) (1.015)
14,608 14,096
Trading profit
Retail 502 472
Wholesale 186 169
Other Commercial Activities & Corporate Costs an (38)
641 603
Retail revenue and trading profit
2007 2006
Emilhion frnillion
Revenue
UK
Health & Beauty 4,945 4764
Community Pharmacy 1,011 967
5,956 5,731
International
Republic of Ireland 155 142
Norway 267 259
The Netherlands 138 123
Russia 1 -
Italy 25 24
Thalland 37 33
623 581
6,579 6,312
Trading profit
UK 469 437
International 33 35
502 472
Additional UK retail revenue analysis
2007 2006
£million £million
UK
Health 3,089 2941
Beauty & Tolletries 1,729 1640
Lifestyle 1,138 1150
5,956 5731




Pro forma combined Group adjusted segmental analysis for continuing operations — pnimary segments (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2007

Wholesale revenue and trading profit

2007 2006
£miilion fmillion
Revenue
Northern Europe
UK 1978 1841
Norway 222 223
The Netherlands 702 681
Russia 195 -
Czech Republic 247 220
3,344 2,965
Southern Europe
France 3,746 3799
Italy 931 927
Spain 1,053 978
Portugal 3 94
5733 5798
Intra-segment (68) (52)
9,009 8711
Trading profit
Northern Europe 108 94
Southern Europe 78 75
186 169
Other Commercial Activities & Corporate Costs
2007 2006
Emillion Emillion
Revenue
Contract manufacturing 86 63
Own brand exports 28 25
114 88
Trading loss
Other Commercial Activities (8) 3
Corporate Cosls (39) (35)
47) 38)
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Additional pro forma financial information
for continuing operations (continued)

Pro forma combined Group adjusted cash flow for continuing operaticns
for the year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006

Emillion Emilllon

Cash generated by operations 887 770
Tax and Interest 131) (183)
Dividends (net) (225) (1,671}
Acguisitions and disposals (19) (90)
Capital expenditure (236) (266)

Fixed asset disposal proceeds 20 37
Other investments (net) 9 40
Other (8) (69)
Total cash inflow/{ocutflow) 297 (1,232

The pro forma combined cash flow exctudes cash outflows related to the merger which comprise capitalised transactlon costs and costs in relation to

merger synergles



Key reconciliations between pro forma and statutory financial results
for the year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006
£miflion fmlliion
Revenue — continuing operations
Pro forrma revenue 14,608 14096
Relating to pre acquisition (3106) {9 069)
Statutory revenue 11502 5027
2007 2006
£million fmillion
Trading profit/profit from operations - continuing operations
Pro forma trading profit 641 603
Relating to pre acquisition (92) (267)
549 336
Exceptlonal items {(77) 33
Amortisation of customer related intanglble assets {31) -
441 369
Share of associates’ post tax earnings 39 -
Statutory profit from operations 480 369
2007 2006
£million Emillion
Earnings/profit attnibutable to equity shareholders
Pro forma adjusted earnings - continuing operations 467 419
Relating to pre acquisition (69) (199)
398 220
Exceptional iterns (77) 33
Amartisation of custorner related intangible assets (31) -
Share of associates’ exceptional post tax earnings 6 -
IAS 39 timing differences 1 -
Tax credit on restatement of deferred tax for customer related intangible assets 6 -
Tax on exceptional items amortisation of customer related Intangible assets and 1AS 39 timing differences 35 39
Other exceptional tax credits 28 12
366 304
Discontinued operations 21 1,470
Statutory profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 387 1774
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Financial review

Financial review — statutory basis

Alliance Boots was created on 31 July 2006 through
the merger of Alliance UniChem Plc and Boots Group
PLC The merger took place by way of a scheme of
arrangement, Alllance UniChem Plc shares being
cancelled, its shareholders receiving 1332 shares in
Boots Group PLC for each Alliance UniChem Plc share
held For statutory accounting purposes the merger
has been accounted for as an acquisition of Alliance
UniChem Plc by Boots Group PLC On completion of
the transaction Boots Group PLC was renamed

Alllance Boots plc

Accounting policies

The financfal statements have been prepared
In accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
EU as they apply to the financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2007
The principal accounting policies applied in
the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set in note 2 of the notes to
the financial statements

The preparation of financlal statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgments estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of polictes and reported
amounts in the financial statements The areas
Involving a higher degree of judgment or
complexity or where assumptions or estimates
are significant to the financial statements are
disclosed in note 40 to the financlal statements

Financial results

The statutory financlal results for the year ended
31 March 2007 contaln a full year of results for
the former Boots Group PLC businesses and

eight months of results for the former Alliance
UniChern Plc businesses on an acquisition
accounting basls

Profit from continuing operations was

£480 million, compared to £369 million in the
previous year Within profit from contlnuing
operations was a net £77 millicn of exceptional
costs before tax and a £31 million charge for
the amortisation of customer related intangible
assets following the 31 July 2006 fair valuation
of the consolidated assets of Alliance UniChem
Pic. This cornpares with £33 million of net
exceptional Income before tax In the previous
year Net finance costs were £25 million compared
to £20 million In the previous year Total profit

for the year attributable to equity shareholders
including profit after tax from discontinued
operations was £387 milllon cornpared to

£1 774 million in the prior year which induded
profit after tax from discontinued operations

of £1 470 million Total basic earnings per share
were 48 4 pence compared to 259 4 pence Baslc
earnings per share from continuing operations
were 45 8 pence compared to 44 4 pence

Dividends

The Board did not declare a normal Interim
dividend, instead paying a merger dividend of
100 pence per share on 3 October 2006 covering
the period from the beginning of the financial
year up until the merger on 31 July 2006

The Board would ordinarily be recommending
In the normal course of business a final
dividend covering the period from 31 July 2006
until 31 March 2007 However, the terms of the
recommended offer for the Company by AB
Acquisitions Limited announced on 20 April
2007, are such that the offer price Is inclusive of
any final dividend Accordingly, ne such final
dividend will be paid However, If the Company
Is not acquired by AB Acquisitions Limited (or
any alternative offeror) the Board intends that
the Company pay In due course an interim
dividend, In respect of the year ended 31 March
2007, of an amount equal to the final dividend
that would have been paid




Exceptional items
Exceptional items In the year were as follows

Other
Commercial
Activities &
Corporate
Retail Wholesale Costs Totai
fmullion £milhion £rmllion £million
Costs In relation to merger synergles an n (5) 23)
Pharmacy systems harmonisation (2) - - 2
Systems rationallsation and supply chain reconfiguration (25) - - (25)
French wholesale network restructuring - (10) - {10)
Restructuring of Other Cornmmercial Activities - - {23) (23)
Health & Beauty pharmacy disposals 7 - - 7
Other - {1) - {1)
Net exceptional costs within profit from operatlons before share of associates post tax earnings (37) (12) (28) (77}
Net exceptional income within share of assoclates post tax earnings 6
Net exceptional costs within profit from operations 7N
Related tax credits 26
Other exceptional tax credits' 28
{17}

1 Other exceptional tax credits comprised a deferred tax release of £14 million In respect of pharmacy disposals where the taxable gains arising are covered by previously unrecognised losses and a
release of £14 million of tax provisions in respect of exceptional ltems recognised In prior years

Net finance costs

Net flnance costs were £25 million which was
£5 miflien higher than the figure for the previous
year The increase was due to higher average
indebtedness reflecting the cost of servicing
net borrowings arising from the acquisition of
Alllance UniChem and additional contributions
to the Boots Penslon Scheme, partially offset
by the retained proceeds from the disposal of
Boots Healthcare International the sale and
leaseback of 312 retall outlets in July 2005 and
the benefit from £9 milllon of higher net returns
on our defined benefit penslon schemes, part of
which was as a result of additional contributions
into the Boots Pension Scheme

Net finance costs are expected to increase in
the new financial year partially due to higher
interest rates and the full year Impact of the
absorbed merger debt and replacement of the
securitisation programmes

Tax

The tax rate which we define as the tax charge
expressed as a percentage of profit from
operations before share of assoclates’ post tax
earnings, net of net finance costs was 214%
This compares to a rate of 12 9% in the previous
year The increase in the rate was mainly due to
the utllisation in the previous year of previously
unrecognised losses to shelter the profit on a
sale and leaseback transaction, and also a
release of a deferred tax ltability no longer
required following this transaction

In the current year the effective tax rateIs
lower than the expected rate of 29 8% mainly
as a result of the recognition of previously
unrecognised tax losses, the uttlisation of
previously unrecognised capital losses and
the release of provisions no longer required
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Financial review — statutory basis (continued)

Cash flow
2007 2006
£million fmillion
Cash generated from operations — continuing operations 682 501
Tax and interest (90} (89)
Dividends {net) (182} (1,640)
Acquisitions and disposals (1,354} -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (213} (181)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 18 308
Other {12) (74)
Net cash outflow from continuing operations (1151) (1175)
Net cash inflow from discontinued operations - 59
Cash flows arising from disposal of discontinued operations (13} 1,854
Total cash (outflow)/inflow {1,164) 738
Currency translation differences and fair value adjustments on financial instruments 16 3
(Increase)/decrease In net (borrowings)/cash In the year (1.148) M
Net cash/(borrowings} at 1 April 100 641)
Net {borrowings)/cash at 31 March {1,048} 100

Net cash generated from continuing operations
totalled £682 million This included a net
working capital Inflow including provisions

of £25 milllon and a one-off Boots pensions
outflow of £43 million The one-off pension
outflow, which was in the first half of the year
was the second and final instalment of the
£85 milllon additlonal contributions which
Boots agreed to pay Into the Boots Pension
Scheme from the Boots Healthcare
International disposal proceeds

The net cash outflow on dividends was

£182 miillion which Included the dividends for
the periods up until the merger on 31 July 2006
pald to the respective shareholders of both
former groups and was net of the dividends
received from associates The previous year
outflow was £1 640 million, which Included

a special dividend of £1,426 million from

the proceeds of the Boots Healthcare
International disposal

The net cash outflow on acquisitions and
disposals was £1 354 miltion The principal cash
outflows were on the acquisition of Allance
UniChem where net borrawings at acquisition
were £1,312 million expenditure of £38 million
on the Cordia Healthcare wholesale acquisition
In the UK and the acquisiticn of retail outlets
This was partially offset by £58 million of cash
proceeds from the 68 pharmacies sold before
the year end under the divestment programme
agreed with the Office of Fair Trading

The cash outflow on the purchase of property,
plant and equipment was £213 million compared
to £181 million in the previous year Proceeds from
the disposal of property, plant and equipment
were £18 milllon compared to £308 milllon In the
previous year which included the sale and
leaseback of 312 stores

Overall total cash outflow from continuing
operations in the year was £1 151 million

Shareholders’ equity

Shareholders’ equity at 31 March 2007 totalled
£5 760 mililon a year on year increase of £4 108
million £3 820 milllon of the increase arose on
the acquisition of Alliance UniChem Plc as the
net shares Issued and to be Issued were
recorded at falr value Profits for the year
increased equity by £387 million which was
parually offset by dividends declared to equity
shareholders of £149 million

Financial position

At the year end net borrowlngs {defined as
borrowings, net of cash and cash equivalents
and derivative financial instruments) were
£1,048 milllon which compared to net cash
{defined In the same way as net borrowings)
at the beginning of the year of £100 million

Borrowings were raised under privately placed
notes, a medium term note programme, finance
leases and under bank facllitles Of gross
borrowings £365 million matures within 12
months £94 million in the year ended 31 March

2009 and £670 million thereafter The Group
does not have a prescribed maturity profile
for its longer term borrowings but manages
its refinancing risk by limiting the level of
maturitles within a 12 month perlod

Capital structure

Our policy as a publicly listed Company is to
have a strong balance sheet and maintain an
investment grade credit rating, providing a
robust financial framework from which to grow
our business As at 31 March 2007, the Group
had long term investment grade ratings from
Standard and Poor’s of BBB and from Moodys
of Baa2, these belng determined after the
resolution of the credit watches Imposed by
the agencies on announcement of the merger
with Alllance UniChem Followling the approach
made by Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co LP and
Stefano Pessina In March 2007 to make an offer
for the Company Standard and Poor's placed its
rating on CreditWatch Negative and Moody's
under review for possible downgrade

We finance our operations through mixture of
retained profits capital markets funding bank
borrowings and leases The oblective Is to ensure
that the Group has access to iquidity at all times
and can fund In a cost-effective manner

When considering appropriate debt levels for
the Group, we take into account both the level
of unfunded pension lizbllities and ongoing
operating lease commitments



Operating lease commitments

In common with UK retailers the Group has long term obligations to pay rents under property leases This means that the period over which operating lease

commitments extend falis beyond 30 years In some cases Mimimur operating lease commitments over this timeframe as at 31 March 2007 were

0-1 years 1-5 years 5-10years  10-20years  20-30 years 30+ years
£rmilion
Property 240 849 698 420 68 94
Other 6 9 - - — -

The capitalised value of these {labilities is
approximately £1 4 billion based upon
discounting the rentals, after taking into
account assumed property rental growth of

2 5% per annum at the Group’s estimated long
term cost of borrowing The Group, in common
with the credit rating agencies treats Its lease
liabilities as borrowings when evaluating
financial risk and investment returns

Treasury policies

The Group's treasury policies were approved by
the Board on 26 April 2007 Prlor to that date
the policies previously approved by the Boards
of Boots Group and Alliance UniChem, which
were broadly consistent, were applled

Treasury has responsibliity for the Group’s
funding and cash management and manages
the Groups financlal counterparty credit,
interest rate and currency risks It enters Into
financial instruments solely for the purpose of
managing these risks It does not act as a profit
centre and the undertaking of speculative
transactions Is not permitted

Treasury risk management actlvities (principally
foreign exchange and interest rate risk) will be
undertaken to protect the economic value of
the Group Where possible, the Group seeks to
apply hedge accounting to financial Instruments
transacted for the purpose of hedging underlying
exposures However the practical application

of IAS 39 means that, in some circumstances
timing differences in the recognition of financlal
instruments are recorded in the Group Income
statement These unwind over the life of

the Instruments

Liquidity and funding

Access to cost-effective funding Is managed
by maintaining a range of committed and
uncommitted facilities sufficlent to meet
unanticipated needs, arranging funding ahead
of requirements, developing diversified sources

of funding and maintalning good access to the
capltal markets through an investment grade
credit rating

Group liquidity Is optimised through cash
pooling and deposits with or loans from Group
treasury companies Surplus cash is Invested
for periods of three months or less

During the year the Group financed its
borrowing needs from the bank market existing
issues under its Euro Medlum Term Note
programme and private placements of notes

In limited circumstances the Group has also
used factoring to finance local activities

The policy is to spread maturity of debt such
that annual refinancing of term debt s limited

to £300 million and to maintaln a buffer of
committed facllitles in excess of the Group's
projected peak net Indebtedness At 31 March
2007 the Group had undrawn committed
facilities of £875 million under a syndicated
committed facility which matures in August 2011

During the year a £1 1 billion revolving credit
facllity was arranged to replace Boots Group's
£600 million syndicated facility agreement
and two Alliance UniChem revolving credit
facllities of €390 million and €435 millicn
respectively which were cancelled on
completion of the merger

This merger facllity was subsequently replaced
In August 2006 with an £875 milllon five-year
credit facility and a £225 million one-year
facllity This latter facllity was cancelled in
December 2006 and as at 31 March 2007 only
the £875 millicn facility maturing in August
2011, remained

At 31 March 2007 the Group was in compliance
with the financial covenants included in Its
borrowing agreements

The Groups net borrowings vary throughout
the year In a predictable seasonal pattern In
particular, net borrowings peaks In the period
September to December due to the working
capital requirernents of Christmas trading

The increase In borrowling at this time is met
through drawing committed and uncommitted
facllities or by reducing surplus cash

Interest rate risk management
The Groups policy is ta maintaln levels of
Interest cover that are commensurate with a
BBB/Baa2 Investment grade debt rating

The Board’s policy Is to limit the impact of
Interest rate volatility on profits The policy fixes
the Interest cost (either directly through fixed
coupons or synthetically through the use of
interest rate swaps) on that proportion of the
total of the Group's average projected net
borrowings including any financing linked to
securitlsation that will give a minimum 95%
statistically significant confidence level that the
Group's key financial metrics (as defined inits
borrowing agreements or as published by the
rating agencles from time to time) will be met
over a three year forward perlod Thisis
determined using Monte Carlo simulation
techniques taking into account the Groups three
year business plans forward Interest rates and
implicit volatility dertved from options pricing
The simulation model determines the minirmum
amount of the total of net borrowlings that is to be
fixed, but this can be increased to protect profits

At 31 March 2007, after taking account of cross-
currency and Interest rate swaps, 31% of the
total of the Group's net borrowings was fixed

Based on the net borrowing and hedging
position of the Group at 31 March 2007, and
assumning no changes, a 1% increase In interest
rates would increase the annual interest charge
by £7 million
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Currency risk management

The Group owns significant businesses and
investments in continental Europe which cause
a translation exposure on consolidation of thelr
earnings statements and balance sheets

The Group partially hedges these translation
exposures with borrowings denominated in

the same currency either directly or through
the use of cross currency swaps

At 31 March 2007 £1 183 million of the total
of the Group’s net borrowings and related
currency swaps was In Euros Since overall
Group borrowings were below that level at
that palnt In time this resulted In a Sterling
net investment position

The Group has a policy of hedging material
foreign currency denominated transaction
exposures other than those offset by
corresponding translatlon exposures, by
entering into forward foreign exchange
sale and purchase contracts where such
exposures arlse

Based on the hedging position and currency
mix of earnings of the Group at 31 March 2007,
movements in exchange rates relative to
Sterling would not have a significant impact

on the Group’s earnings

Counterparty risk

The Group seeks to protect itself against
financial loss arising from failure of finandial
counterpartles to repay cash when due or
honour settlements on derivative contracts
by spreading financial transactions Including
bank deposits, across an approved list of high
quality banks and AAA credit rated money
market funds Limits are established for each
counterparty based on thelr credit rating and
regularly monitored

Retirement benefit obligations

The total charge before tax for continuing
operations retirement benefit obligations

was £72 milllon which was a decrease of

£1 million compared to the previous year

This comprised £77 milllon of costs within
profit from operations, a year on year increase
of £8 million and net finance Income of

£5 million compared to a net finance cost

In the previous year of £4 million

The Group's total net retirement beneflit
obligations at 31 March 2007 on an accounting
basis were £26 million before deferred tax

This comprised a net surplus of £20 million

for the former Boats schemes and £46 millllon
of net obligations for the former Alllance
UniChem schemes

The principal Boots scheme Is the Boots Pension
Scheme This scheme, which is closed to new
members has continued with its investment
strategy of planning to hold 15% of assets In
equity and property to back long-term llabliities
and 85% of assets In a diverse portfolio of high
quality bonds to match liabllitles up to 35 years
The overall asset allocation provides a relatively
good hedge against lliabillties on an actuarial
basls and an accounting 1AS 19 basls In March
2006 and Aprll 2006 respectively the Group
made contributions totalling £85 milllon to the
scherne from the Boots Healthcare International
disposal proceeds These supplement the
additional contributions {over and above

the normal rate) of £12 million per year over

10 years agreed at the last full actuarial valuation
in April 2004 The net surplus [n the former
Boaots schemes arose due to the additional
contribution payments madeanda 05
percentage point increase In the long term

bond yield used to discount estimates of future
penslon obligations, partially offset by an
allowance for future Improvements to longevity
During the new financial year the Boots Pension
Scheme will undergo a full actuarial valuation as
at Aprll 2007

The principal Alllance UniChem schemne is the
Alliance UniChem UK Group Pension Scherne
This scheme which is closed to new members
has an Investment strategy of planning to hold
70% of assets in equlties and 30% in high quality
bonds and property The Group has agreed to
make additional annual contributions (over

and above the normal rate) of £12 million for
each of the years from 2007 to 2011 inclusive
At the date of the merger the net retirement
benefit obligations for alt of the former Alliance
UniChem schemes were £78 million The
decrease in the net obligations since then
arose due to additional contributions and a

0 3 percentage point Increase in the long

term bond yield used to discount estimates

of future retirement benefit obligations

Share price

The mid-market price of the Company’s shares
ranged during the year from a low of 6855
pence on 18 April 2006 to a high of 1036 5
pence on 23 March 2007 On 31 March 2007
the mid market price was 1026 5 pence giving
a market capitalisation of approximately

£9 9 billion

Financial reporting

The Directors have acknowledged thelr
responsibllities in relatlon to the financlal
statements in the Directors’ responsibllities
statement The Dlrectors are also responsible
for the publication of unaudited Interim
reports of the Group that provide balanced
and understandable assessments of the
Group's financial position for the first six
months of each accounting period




Corporate responsibility

A shared sense of responsibility

Merging two very large groups presents major
challenges and opportunities In terms of corporate
social responsibility (CSR), the biggest of these has been
to support the Integration of the Group by developing
a new framework and practical policies that can be
appled consistently across Alllance Boots, engaging

all our people

So we re delighted to report that In 2006/07
we've made excellent progress, having
developed and agreed a new unifled CSR
strategy which will be implemented this year to
corme Into full effect across the entire Group in
April 2008

But as you'li see overleaf while much of our
energy over the past year has been devoted

to planning for the future, a shared sense of
responsibllity within Alllance Boots is already
strongly in evidence Infact asfaras CSR1s
concerned, its been very much business as usual

The challenge of sustainable
business

These days, its easier than ever before to justify
the importance of CSR for modern businesses
Increasingly widespread concern about the
impact of climate change and other major
soclal trends such as the rise of the “ethical
consumer”, have combined to bring the concept
of sustalnability Into the mainstream

Asaresult the best managed compantes have
come to see CSR not Just as a social duty, or
legal obligation but as an important means

of gaining both competitive advantage and
valuable operational benefits (Reducing energy
consumption for example Is as good for the
bottom line as It Is for the environment )

For Alliance Boots then the need to be
recognised as a leader In sustainable business is
clear And, following the merger, we set ourselves
the challenge of achleving that in 2008

Developing an adaptive approach
From our consultation with stakeholders, the
nature of the challenge facing us became even
clearer Our new cross business CSR approach
would need to be based upon a consistent
framework, capable of accommodating the
widely varying levels of achlevernent acress our
two divisions, and of taking account of different
soclal, environmental and economic priorities
in each country where Alllance Boots operates

As our starting-point we took the CSR structure
successfully developed by Boots over the last
three years This defines four main areas in
which we have responsibllitles Marketplace
Community Environment and Workplace

To make this applicable throughout Alliance
Boots we Identlfied a key unifylng theme —
our highest priority — in each of the four
maln areas, as the diagram on page 37 shows
Crucially, these all support our broader aim
of building a truly sustainable 21st century
business And no less important, they reflect
the reality of our business as It is today

Delivering our unified strategy
Were delighted with the progress we ve made
during 2006/07 in laying the foundations for
a new unified Alllance Boots CSR strategy
that will play akey role in driving our business
forward And now comes the challenge of
embedding it throughout the business, In
time to go live in April 2008

To this end we ve devised a new support
structure, which will ensure that the very
conslderable expertise and understanding
within the Group is shared freely throughout
Alliance Boots
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In our Wholesale Divislon for example a
senior director from each country assisted by
a fully trained CSR Champion will lead a team
responsible for developing a detailed actlon
plan for implementation in 2008 This will then
be presented to our central CSR Action Group
for approval following which each country will
generate appropriate KPIs for independent
valldation early In 2008

A consistent approach to measuring
and reporting

Over the last three years, Boots has developed
its own bespoke CSR database working with
credit360 which has been used with great
success Having reviewed our new more
extenslve data capture requirements, we've
concluded that this system Is Ideally suited for
use throughout the Group, enabling a consistent
company-wide framework for measuring and
reporting on cur performance CSR Champlons
throughout the business wil, therefore be
introduced to the CSR database, as an
important part of their training

Next steps to sustainable success
Were excited about what we ve achieved aver
the last 12 months We've reaffirmed our bellef
that CSR has a cruclal part to play In helping
Alllance Boots achleve its strateglc objective

of becoming the world's leading pharmacy-

led health and beauty group We ve defined
precisely what we want to achieve recognition
for Alliance Boots as a leader In CSR from 2008
onwards And while there’s stlll a long journey
ahead, we've mapped out the route which were
confldent will take us forward successfully on
that journey
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Acting responsibly

business as usual

During 2006/07, our main strategic focus has
been on developing the role of Corporate Social
Responsibility within Alllance Boots

But, of course that doesn't mean we ve put CSR
on hold over the past 12 months Throughout
the Group, we've continued to pursue with
dedication and enthusiasm the many and varled
actlvitles which reflect our commitment to
doing business responsibly, and help to bulld the
trust upon which our continuing success depends

Here are just a few of our proudest
achievements in 2006/07 together with some
of our revised targets for the current year

Marketplace

In a highly competitive environment we belleve
it's crucial to our success that Alllance Boots Is
trusted by customers — both the general
shopping public and the pharmacists whose
businesses our wholesale netwark supports So
stewardship and integnty must be evident in
everything we do from product safety, through
suppiy chain management, to the relationships
we bulld with partners and suppliers

Packaging safer dispensing Helping
thousands of independent pharmacists
throughout Europe to serve their customers
better Is a very high priority And cne of our
most successful recent advances Is significantly
improving the safe dispensing of prescriptions
The secret? Qur Almus range of generic
medicines features innovative colour-coded
packaging greatly reducing the chances of
dispensing mishaps

Breast Cancer Care Forming close
relationships with leading charitles has played

a major part In establishing Boots reputation

as a trusted healthcare adviser none more so
than our partnership with the UK’s leading
breast cancer charity Inits 10th year we ralsed
over £800,000 for Breast Cancer Care a new
record figure We also helped to promote
greater awareness of breast care through our
innovative “41 000 faces” campalgn which
created a unique online showcase for photos of
some of the 41,000 people dlagnosed with the
disease each year (www 41000faces org uk)

(Targets for 2007/08 R

s Review shareholder communications to
ensure they reflect our mission, purpose
and values

» Work with leading charities to raise
awareness of key health concerns
among our customers

e Introduce a Code of Conduct to all

\_ oW employees J

Community

Wherever we do business, we believe Alliance
Boots should be seen to make a significant
contribution to community healthcare Most
obviously, we achieve that through our network
of community pharmacies, but, more widely
still, we want to encourage all our employees
to share thelr expertise to help people lead
healthler lifestyles and to build happier more
cohesive communities

Change One Thing Repeating a major
success for Boots in 2005/06, our New Year
campalgn to help customers achieve a single
health-related goal made a welcome return
With our expert advice a further 500 000
customers committed to stop smoking and
many thousands more set themselves targets
for weight loss or improved fitness this year,
a really valuable contribution to community
health and wellbeing Not all succeeded with
their aims but for those that did it has made
a huge difference to health and wellbelng

In our Community Pharmacy business we
once agaln helped to take important health
education out into the community by
sponsoring the Macmillan Moblle Cancer
Information Unit's 2006 countrywlde tour

Volunteering to make a difference We
strongly encourage our people ta get out into
the community and get involved in something
positive In our Cormmunity Pharmacy business
In the UK for example we Introduced a new
Volunteering Challenge for our pre-registration
pharmacy graduates — asking them to work in
regional teams, as part of thelr training. Meanwhile
In our Heatth and Beauty business in the UK,

we ve been developing our first ever natlonal
volunteering programme, Healthy Communities,
which will offer the people who work In our
stores a menu of volunteering opportunities

rTargets for 2007/08 h

« Increase community health activity
that makes a positive contrnbution to
the wider public health agenda and 15
aligned to our business priorities

s Increase customer and employee fund
raising for our key charity partners

+ Set up payroll giving schemes in our
corporate office, UK retail and
wholesale bustnesses

Environment

For Alliance Boots continuously improving
our carbon management is clearly our highest
environmental priority Because nowhere is
the connection between what’s good for the
environment and what’s good for our business
maore apparent In virtually everything we do,
from developing new products to heating and
lighting our stores, reducing carbon emisslons
can potentially deliver significant cost savings -
and, In many cases, Is already doing so

More energy-efficient stores Since 2002,
our Health & Beauty business in the UK has
been working with the Carbon Trust to improve
the energy efficiency of all its stores, with
resulting annual savings of around 10,000
tonnes of carbon dioxide and £1 35 million
Over the last year, our Community Pharmacy
business In the UK has followed suit —and at
the time of writing, is awaiting a detalled report
on how best to achleve energy efficiencles
both through improved store design and
educating branch teams



Products for the low carbon consumer’
We ve recently completed a flagship project

to assess and minimise the carbon footprint

of two shampoos in the Boots Botanlcs range
By analysing every aspect of the product life-
cycle from raw material production through to
customer use and ultimate disposal we are now
able to target specific opportunities to dellver
the best reduction in the carbon footprint of
both products We have already implemented
initiatives that have reduced their carbon
footprint by 20% We strongty belleve low carbon
products Iike this will enable us to achieve real
cost savings while taking a valuable share of

a potentially exciting new market segment.

On the road to lower emissions Inrecent
years, we ve significantly iImproved the
efficiency of the Boots supply chain and
updated our vehicle fleet, and we continued
to make good progress In this Important area
in 2006/07

By taking measures such as expanding our
double deck traller fleet from 16 to 41 vehicles
and collecting goods ourselves from our
suppllers, we've made additional annual savings
of around 8 5 million road kilemeters — further
reducing carbon emnissions by 5% and cutting
fuel costs by £14 milllon

/Targets for 2007/08

+ In hne with national and international
commitments on chmate change we
will establish a long-term corporate
strategy to reduce the carbon intensity
of our businesses including our
products, services and builldings

» We will continue to reduce waste at
source and work towards zero waste
to landfill, setting appropriate targets
within each business and reporting
annual progress

» We will continue to reduce ltke for
hke own brand packaging by 2 5% each
year until 2010, in ine with our UK
Government “Courtauld Commitment”

_/

Workplace

For any well managed business employee
wellbeing must be a pricrity But for Allance
Boots — a Group concerned with making

the world a happier healthier, more beautiful
place - it would be hard to exaggerate the
importance of looking after our people as well
as we possibly can And from helping with any
problems to setting the highest health and
safety standards thats precisely what we do

Someone to talk to In 2006/07, our
Community Pharmacy business formed a
partnership with Retail Trust a charity providing
help and support to people working in the retail
Industry and thelr families Its a free and
completely confidential service with a helpline
open seven days a week, providing independent
advice and information on virtually any Issue or
problem — work-related or personal Meanwhile
within our Health & Beauty business, a similar
service is provided by BootsHelp, which
recelved around 7,164 calls In 2006/07 and
carrled out 1,882 counselling appointments

A healthier place to work During 2006/07
the Boots Healthy Workplace team has been
hard at work embedding health promotion
activity into the way we do business To give
our healthy workplace initiatlve a major boost
we tled it into our customer-facing “Change
One Thing™ campaign All our Health & Beauty
employees recelved a free pack including a
pedometer, a healthy snack and a chance to
sign up to a programme to receive extra support
to give up smoking, or get fitter And over 1 000
employees signed up for a healthler future

(Ta rgets for 2007/08 )

« Establish a long term, cross-group
health and safety strategy to prevent
acaidents and report progress annually

« Deliver a workplace health programme
that is aligned to the business and
makes a positive contribution to the
health and wellbeing of our people

+ Introduce an induction day for new
joners across the Group

. J

Marketplace

Stewardship and
integrity

Community

Community
healthcare

Sustainabibity

Environment

Carbon
management

\Wenkplace]
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Board of Directors

Sir Nigel Rudd

Non-executive Chairman, 60

Was appointed to the Board in December 1999 as a
non-executive director, became Deputy Chaiman in
December 2001 and Chalrman in September 2003
He 1s also Chairman of Pandragon, Deputy Charrman
of Barclays, a non-executive director of BAE Systermns
and Chalrman of the Boardroom Issues Group of
the CBI Sir Nigel was previously Executive Chairman
of Wilhams for nearly 20 years and 1s a chartered
accountant

Stefano Pessina

Executive Deputy Chairman, 65

Was appointed to the Board on 31 July 2006
having been Executive Deputy Chairman of
Allance UmChem with responsibility for strategic
development including acquisitions and
previously Chief Executive for three years until
December 2004 He was appointed to the
Alliance Umichem board in 1997 when UmniChem
merged with Alliance Sante the Franco-Italian
pharmaceutical wholesale group which he
established in Italy in 1977 Stefano 1s an engineer
by profession

Richard Baker

Chief Executive, 44

Was appolnted to the Board when he joined the
Company as Chief Executive in September 2003
Before that he was Chief Operating Officer and
Group Marketing Officer at ASDA Prior to Joining
ASDA he worked for Mars where he held a number
of senior management paosltions

George Fairweather

Group Finance Director, 49

Was appointed to the Board on 31 luly 2006
having been Group Finance Director of Alliance
UniChem since 2002 Before that he held similar
positions with Elementis and Dawson International
and also worked for Dixons Group, Practer &
Gamble and KPMG Thomson McLintock George
Is non-executive director of Mitchells & Butlers
He 1s amember of the [nstitute of Chartered
Accountants of Scatland

Ornella Barra

Wholesale & Commercial Affairs Director, 53
Was appointed to the Board on 31 July 2006
having been an Executive Director of Alliance
UniChem with wholesale and commercial affairs
responsibilities since 1997 when Alliance Sante
became part of Alliance UniChern Before that,

she was a Director of Alliance Sante and General
Manager of Alleanza Salute Italia Sheisa
pharmacist by profession

Governance

Steve Duncan

Community Pharmacy Director, 56

Was appointed to the Board on 31 July 2006
having been the Executive Director of Aliance
UniChem responsible for its retail division since
Septemnber 2001 Steve was previously Managing
Director of Alliance Pharmacy having joined the
business In 1974 He is a pharmacist and a member of
the Royal Pharmaceutical Seciety of Great Britain

Scott Wheway

Health & Beauty Retail Director, 40

Was appointed to the Board on 31 July 2006
having previously held the position of Retail
Director at Boots The Chemists since joiming Boots
n January 2005 Before this he was CEQ of Tesco
Japan having previously held a number of senior
management positions with Tesco in the UK
onginally starting as a management trainee

in 1985

Guy Dawson

Senior Independent non-executive Director, 54
‘Was appornted to the Board in September 2003
He 1s senior independent non-executive director
chairman of the audit committee and a member
of the nomination and social responsibilities
committees Guy Is a founding partner of Tricorn
Partners, an iIndependent corporate finance
advisory business and a non-executive director
of The BOC Group He has previously held sentor
investrment banking positions at Merrill Lynch
and Deutsche Bank




Adrian Loader

Independent non-executive Director, 58
Was appointed to the Board on 31 luly 2006
having been an independent non-executive
director of Alliance UniChem since September
2003 He s a member of the audIt and
remuneration committees Adrian is Director of
Strategy and Buslness Development at Royal
Dutch Shell Chairman of the supervisory board
of Deutsche Shell, having previously held a number
of other senior management positlons within
Royal Dutch Shell He s a Fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Personnel and Development

Tim Parker

Independent non-executive Director, 51
Was appointed to the Board in January 2004
He Is chairman of the remuneration committee
and a member of the nominations committee
Tim is chief executlve of the Automobile
Association and a non-executive Director of
Compass Group He was previcusly chief executive
of Xwik-Fit and C & J Clark Before that he led
the management buy-out and flotation of
Kenwood Appliances

Helene Ploix

Independent non-executive Director 62
Was appointed to the Board in September 2000
and is chalrman of the social responsibilities
committee and a member of the audit and
remuneration committees Helene Is Chairman
of Pechel Industnes Partenawes a private equity
investment management company Sheis alse

a non-execulive director of BNP Parlbas Ferring
Lafarge and Publicis Groupe

Patnck Ponsolle

Independent non-executive Director, 62
Was appointed to the Board on 31 July 2006
having been an independent non-executive
director of Allance UniChem since December
1997 He is chairman of the nominations
committee and a member of the audit committee
Patrick is Vice Chairman of Morgan Stanley
International and chairman of Morgan Stanley
{France) Before that he was executive chairman
of Eurotunnel

Manfred Stach

Independent non-executive Director, 64
Was appointed to the Board on 31 July 2006
having been an independent ncn-executive
director of Alllance UniChem since December
2003 He is a member of the remuneration
nominations and social responsibilities
committees Manfred 1s head of the supervisory
board of Unilever Deutschland chairman of the
supervisory board of Unilever Austria and a
member of the supervisory boards of British
Amenican Tobacco (BAT) Germany and Neumann
Coffee Group Manfred was president of Unilever
Bestfoods Europe until June 2005 having
previously held a number of other senior
management positions within Unilever
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Directors’ report

The Directors present their report and audited
financial statements for the year ended

31 March 2007 For the purposes of this report,
“Company” means Alliance Boots plc and
“Group” means the Company, its subsidiaries
and assoclates

Principal activities, business review
and development

The Company Is the holding company for

the Group The principal activity of the Group
is pharmacy-led health & beauty retalling
wholesallng, distribution and related services
which It undertakes on an International basls

A review of Group activitles during the year and
likely future developments and the principal
rlsks and uncertalnties facing the business are
set out In the risk management performance
review and financial review on pages 10 to 34

The Group carrles out research and product
development to support existing actlvitles
and to ensure the adoption of best practice in
business processes used throughout the Group

The Company acquired Alliance UniChem Plc
("Alliance UniChem”) on 31 July 2006 and changed
its name to Alliance Boots plc from Boots Group
PLC on the same date This process is for the
purposes of this report, defined as a ‘merger”
The merger tock place by way of a scheme of
arrangement, whereby Alliance UniChem shares
were cancelled and Its shareholders received

1 332 shares in the Company for each Alllance
UniChem share held For the purposes of this
report “enlarged Group” means the combined
businesses of the Company and Alliance
UniChem Plc and its subsidiarles and assoclates

The principal subsidlary undertakings and
assoclates of the Group at 31 March 2007 are
lIsted in note 39 to the financial staternents

Results and dividend

The Group profit for the year attributable to
equity shareholders was £387 million (2006
£1 774 million)

The Board did not declare an interim dividend
as dividends for the periods up untll the merger
on 31 July 2006 were pald to the respective
shareholders of both former companies on

3 October 2006

The Board would ordinarily be recommending
in the normal course of business a final dividend

covering the perlod from 31 July 2006 until

31 March 2007 However, the terms of the
recommended offer for the Company by AB
Acquisitions Limited anncunced on 20 April
2007 are such that the offer price Is inclusive
of any final dividend Accordingly no such final
dividend will be paid However if the Company
is not acquired by AB Acquisitions Limited (or
any afternative offeror) the Board Intends that
the Company pay in due course an Interlm
dividend In respect of the year ended 31 March
2007 of an amount equal to the final dividend
that would have been paid

Directors

The Directors of the Company as at 31 March
2007 were Sir Nigel Rudd {Chaiman), Stefanc
Pessina (Executlve Deputy Chairman), Richard
Baker (Chief Executive) George Falrweather
{Group Finance Director) Ornella Barra
{Wholesale & Commercial Affalrs Director) Steve
Duncan {Community Pharmacy Director) Scott
Wheway (Health & Beauty Director), Guy Dawson
(senior independent non-executive Director),
Adrian Loader, Tim Parker Helene Ploix Patrick
Ponsolle and Manfred Stach (independent non-
executive Directors) Biographical detalls of the
Directors are shown on page 38 and 39

Stefano Pessina George Fairweather, Ornella
Barra, Steve Duncan Adrian Loader, Patrick
Ponsolle and Manfred Stach who all served

as Directors of Alliance UniChem before Its
acquisition were appolnted as Directors of the
Comnpany on 31 July 2006 Scott Wheway was
also appointed as a Director on 31 July 2006 All
these Directors were re-appointed to the Board
In accordance with article 88 at an Extraordinary
General Meeting held on 4 July 2006

Richard Baker Guy Dawson, Tim Parker and
Helene Ploix retire by rotation at the AGM

In accordance with article 89 and will seek
re-election at the meeting In addition Patrick
Ponsolle who has served for more than nine
years combined service as a non-executive
of the Company and Alliance UniChem will
seek re-election at the AGM in accordance
with the Combined Code

Dr Martin Read resigned as a Director on 20 July
2006 and Paul Bateman and Jim Smart resigned
as Directors on 31 Juty 2006

Details of Directors service contracts and a
staternent of their Interests in the share capltal
of the Company are set out In the Board report

Governance

on remuneration Coples of the service
contracts of executive Directors and of the
appolntment letters of the Chalrman and non-
executive Directors are avallable for inspection
at the Company's registered office during
normal business hours and at the AGM

The performance of each Director standing
for re-electlon has been formally evaluated,
regard being had to length of service on the
Board of each such Director and whether
they be executive or non-executive

The Board belleves that each Director standing
for re-election continues to demonstrate
commitment, to be an effective member of the
Board and to contribute to the balance of skills
and knowledge and experience Identifled by
the Board In the course of its review The Board
recommends re-election of the Directors
standing for re-election

Share capital

At 31 March 2007, there were 967 554 529
ordinary shares in issue held by 76 807
shareholders on the register Detalls of changes
1n the share capital are shown in notes 32 and
35 to the financlal statements

At an EGM held on 4 July 2006 it was agreed
subject to the Scheme of Arrangement being
sanctioned by the Court that the authorised
share capital of the Company would be
increased from £299,999,983 to £479,148 237
by the creation of 481 847028 new ordinary
shares of 37 7/30 pence each This Increase
became effective on 31 luly 2006 following the
Court approval of the Scheme of Arrangement
In addition the Directors were authorised to
allot relevant securities in connection with

the merger up to an aggregate nominal amount
of £179,148,254 for a five year period

An additional 481,837,297 ordinary shares
were Issued to former shareholders of Alllance
UniChem following the court sanction of the
Scheme of Arrangement on 31 July 2006

There were ne shares purchased in the market
during the year

The aggregate number of shares held by Boots
Qualifying Employee Share Trust Boots All
Employee Share Ownership Plan Boots ESOP
Trust and The Alliance UniChem 1992 Employee
Share Trust are shown in note 35 to the
financial statements




As at 27 April 2007 the Company has been notified pursuant to the Companles Act 1985 of the following material or notifiable interests In the issued

ordinary share capital

Name of shareholder

Number of shares

X of present issued ordinary share capital

S Pessina

AB Acquisitions Limited
Barclays PLC

Legal & General plc
State Street Global

146 158,129
131,444,856
45499822
4048490
31,004,612

151
1359
470
418
320

AB Acquisitions Lirmnited Is deermed to be acting In
concert with Stefano Pessina and Ornella Barra in
connection with the recommended acquisition
of the Company announced on 24 Aprll 2007

145 300,000 shares of the interest of Stefano
Pessina are held by Alllance Sante Participations

S A Stefano Pessina indirectly wholly owns
Alliance Sante Participations S A, which is
reglstered In Luxemmbourg and Its Directors Include
Stefano Pessina and Ornella Barra Stefano Pessina
holds 299,108 shares in his own name and Ornella
Bamra holds 559 021 shares In her own name

Asset values

The Directors are of the oplnion that the market
value of the Group’s land and buildings at 31 March
2007 are In excess of the net book value of £722
milllon stated in note 18 of the finandal statements

Credrtors and supplier payment policy
The Group applies a policy of abiding by the
payment terms negotiated with each of its
suppliers whenever it is satisfied that the
involced goods or services have been ordered
and have been supplied in accordance with
agreed terms and conditions The Company Is

2 holding company and has no trade creditors

Financial instruments

The Groups treasury poficles are described on
page 33 in the FInanclal review The exposure
of the Group to price risk creditrisk liquidity
rIsk and cash flow risk in respect of financial
instruments Is set out in notes 27 and 28

to the financial statements

Post balance sheet event

On 24 Aprl 2007 the [ndependent Directors of
the Company and the board of AB Acquisitions
Limited, a company controlled by certain funds
advised by Kohlberg Kravis Roberts and by
Stefano Pessina released an announcement
that they had reached agreement on the terms
of a recommended cenditional offer for the
acquisition of the Company at a price of 1,139
pence In cash for each share In the Company

A loan note alternatlve will be made avallable
for the cash price

Going concern

Having considered Group cash flow forecasts and
strategic plans the Directors are satisfied that the
Company has adequate resources to continue in
operatlonal existence for the foreseeable future
For this reason they continue to adopt the going
concein basis in preparing the financial statements

People

The Group communicates with Its people through
a wide varlety of channels reflecting the diversity
and geographical spread of the businesses

The aim Is to ensure that all its people are
inforrmed and engaged about thelr part of
the business locally augmented with deeper
understanding about the Group gverall and
its future direction

The Group has a varlety of approaches to
fulfll these alms - regular face-to-face team
briefings, conference calls magazines and
newsletters and a number of Intranet sites
Feedback is sought on the effectiveness of
the communications and surveys have been
instituted In the businesses to gauge the merale
of its people and what is important to them
New communication channels and meeting
forums have been set up since the merger last
year to bring people together from across the
businesses so that people can learn from each
other and share ideas

It Is critical to the success of the Group that It
continues to nurture the different and diverse
talents in the businesses — the employment
policles are designed to achieve this The Group
alms to provide equal opportunitles, regardless
of sex, race, religion or belief, sexual crientatlon,
disabllity or ethnic origin

The Group does all that 1s practicable to meet
its responsibilities towards the employment
and training of disabled people Where one
of Its people becomes disabled every effort
is made to provide continuity of employment
in the same job or a sultable alternative

The Group communicates closely with works
counclls and other employee forums around
Europe and has a European Works Councll
to brief and consult with representatlves on
pan-European Issues

The Group encourages the further interest and
involvement of its people in the Group s future
through performance-related bonuses and share
schemes There are a number of recognition
schemes within the businesses to highlight and
reward particular achlevements of the people

in providing service to its custorners

Charitable and political donations
The Group made charltable denatlons of

£1 7 milllon for the year (2006 £1 4 milllon)
of which £1 6 millilon were made in the UK
The Group has no affiliation to any political
party or group in any country and makes no
political donatlons (2006 £nil)

Auditors

The audit committee are to propose to the Board
the appointment of a single auditor prior to the
notice of meeting being sent to shareholders A
resolutlon to appolnt an audlitor selected by the
Board and to authorise the Directors to determine
their remuneration will be proposed at the AGM

The Directors who held office at the date

of approval of this Directors’ report confirm
that, so far as they are each aware there Is

no retevant audit information of which the
auditors’ of the Company are unaware and
each Director has taken all the steps that he

or she ought to have taken as a Director to
rmake him or herself aware of any relevant audit
Iinformation and to establish that the auditors
of the Company are aware of that information

Approved by and signed on behalf of the Board
of Directors

Marco Pagni
Company Secretary,
2 May 2007
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Governance

Board report on corporate governance

The requirernents of corporate governance are
set out in the Financial Services Authority (“FSA”)
Listing Rules together with the related Principles
of Good Governance and Code of Best Practice
(the “Combined Code”} adopted by the FSA

Directors are assisted In complying with the
internal control requirements of the Combined
Code by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales publication Internal
Control Guidance for Directors on the Combined
Code (the Turnbull guidance)

The Board considers that good corporate
governance is an essential element of achieving
Its overall objectives It has reviewed the Group’s
corporate governance policles and practices and
has determined that during the period 1 April
2006 to 31 March 2007 the Company complied
with the provisions of the Combined Code This
report, together with the audit committee report
on pages 64 to 66 and the Board report on
remuneration on pages 48 to 63, describes how
the Board applied the Combined Code during the
year under review

The Board

On 31 March 2007, the Board comprised the
Chairman, an Executive Deputy Chalrman five
executive Directors and sIx non-executive
Directors There were a number of changes to
the composition of the Board durlng the year
mainly as a result of the merger with Alliance
UniChem Detalls of the changes are set out on
page 40 of the Directors’ report The Board has
reviewed the compesition of the Board and the
balance of skllls, knowledge and experience Its
members brought and concluded that the Board
was of the appropriate balance for the Company
The Nominatlons Committee have requested
Spencer Stuart to asslst In finding an additional
non-executive Director

The appointment of Guy Dawson as the senlor
independent non-executive Director was re
confirmed by the Board following the merger
with Allance UniChem Blographies and other
details of members of the Board of Directors
are shown on pages 38 and 39 and, for those
seeking re-election, In the AGM notice

Fhe Chalrman meets with indlvidual Directors
privately at least once a year to review their
contribution to the Board and personal
development plans Including training needs
Further, the Chairman meets with the non-
executive Directors as a group in the absence
of the executive Directors As part of the Board
evaluation programme the non-executive
Directors led by the senior independent non-
executive Director review the performance
of the Chairman, having considered the views
of the executive Directors

During the year the Board formally evaluated

its own performance and that of the Board
committees Because of the significant changes
to the Board composition during the year It was
decided not to conduct a performance review
Involving consultants In 2006/07 The intemal
revlew process In the year took the form of a
questionnaire, supplemented by one-to-one
meetings between the Chalrman and each of

the Directors when they had an opportunity to
express their views on their overall Impression

of the Board and its cormmittees and thelr
organisation composition, involvement inthe
business and effectiveness, the roles and
contributions of Board members,
communications with shareholders, stakeholder
issues and successlon planning The results were
consolidated and reported to the Board and in so
far as they related to the Chalrman, to the senior
independent non-executive Director The Board
considers the outcome of the programmein its
evaluation of the skills, knowledge and experlence
of the Board and the nominations commitiee
applies the output In formulating its development
plans for the Board It Is likety that consultants will
be involved in reviews every other year

Non-executlve Directors are appointed for an
initlat term of three years from the AGM/EGM
following their Joining the Board, and subject

to performance and re-appointment where
appropriate there is an expectation of renewal
of that appointment for two further three-year
pericds Patrick Ponsolle, who has served under

a year as a non-executive Director of the
Company, was Initially appointed a non-
executive Director of Alliance UniChem in
December 1997 The Board have considered his
combined length of service on the Board of the
Company and on the Board of Alliance UniChem,
which exceeds the nine years recommended by
the Combined Code The Board recognises that
length of service can impact on the
independence of a non-executive Director and
has therefore considered his position carefully
The Board concluded that his significant
corporate and financial experience together with
his detailed understanding of the former Alllance
UniChem business makes a significant
contribution to the Company and provides
necessary continuity The Board undertook a
rigorous review following a formal performance
evaluation and concluded that Patrick Ponsclle
remnains as an independent non-executive
Director and he 1s being proposed for re-election
at the AGM It is the intention of the Board to
appoint an additlonal non-executive Director

Details of executive Directors’ service contracts
are given on page 56 All executive Directors
normally retire on reaching the age of 60
however In the case of Stefano Pessina, the
Executive Deputy Chalrman, his service contract
terminates when he reaches the age of 70
Coples of service contracts and letters of
appointment are avallable for inspectlon at the
company’s registered office and at the AGM




All Directors appointed by the Board must stand
for re-appolntment at the first AGM/EGM
followlng thelr appointment and thereafter at
least every three years In addition at least one
third of the continuing members of the Board
must retlre, and If willing, stand for re-election at
each AGM Directors retiring and those standing
for re-electlon at the 2007 AGM are Ident!fled
on page 40

The Chairman and the other non-executive
Directors bring a varlety of experlence and
expertise to the Board and they are all
considered to be Independent Sir Nigel Rudd was
consldered by the Board to be independent at
the date of his appointment as Chairman The
Board considers that an independent Director is
one who is Independent in character and
judgment, and whera there are no refattonships
or clrcumnstances which could affect the
Director's jJudgment Relationships or
cIrcumstances which could affect judgment
include having been previously an employee

of the Company having had close ties with any
of the Company’s advisars, Directors or senior
managers, having had a material relatlonshlp with
the Company recelving additional rermuneration
from the Company apart from Director’s fees
participating In the Company’s performance
related pay or pension schemes holding cross
directorships having significant links with other
Directors representing a significant shareholder
or having served on the Board of the Company
for more than nine years The Board undertook
a rigorous review following a formal
performance evaluation and concluded that
Patrick Ponsclle remalns as an independent
non-executive Director and he Is being
proposed for re-election at the AGM

The division of responsibilitles between the
Chairman and Chief Executive is in writing and
has been agreed by the Board The Chairmans
responsibilities follow the guidance glven in the
Combined Code Richard Baker, the Chief
Executive Is responsible for leading the

executive Directors of the Company Inthe
achlevement of the Company’s objectives
Stefano Pessina the Executlve Deputy
Chairman has responsibllity for integration and
strateglc development Including acqulsitions

The Board has a programme to enable It to
discharge its responsibllity to provide leadership
to the Company within a framework of prudent
and effective controls, and to assess and
manage risk The Board has ten regufar meetings
In the year Including one strategy meeting and
other meetings are convened as required In
2006/07 three additional meetings took place
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Social responsibilities

Board Audit committee  Nominations committee  Remuneration committee committee

MaxIrmurm Maximum Maximum Maximum Maximum

possible possible possible possible possible

Attended  attendance Attended  attendance Attended attendance Attended  attendance Attended attendance

Sir Nigel Rudd 12 13 — - 3 3 - - - —
S Pessina 8 10 - - 3 3 - - - -
R A Baker 13 13 - - - - - - 2 2
G R Fairweather 10 10 - - - - - - - -
O Barra' 8 10 - — - - - - 2 2
S W ) Duncan 10 10 - — - - = - — -
J S Wheway 10 10 - - - - - - - -
G N Dawson 13 13 5 5 - - - - 1 2
W A Loader 9 10 3 3 - — 6 6 - -
T C Parker 12 13 2 2 3 3 8 B 1 2
H Ploix 12 13 5 5 - — 8 -] 4 4
P Ponsolle 10 10 3 3 3 3 - - — -
M Stach 10 10 - - 3 3 6 6 2 2
P Bateman 4 4 - — - - - 2 2
J R Smart 4 4 — - — - — — — -
Dr M P Read 2 4 - - - — 1 2 - -

1 Stefano Pessina and Ornella Barra did not receive papers or attend the tast two Board meetings following the KKR and Stefano Pessina conditional approach for the Companty announced on 9 March 2007

The table above shows the attendance of
Directors at Board meetings and at meetings of
the audit nominatlons, remuneration and soclal
responsibilities committees during the year All
Directors have attended meetings of the Board
and of committees of the Board of which they
are members unless prevented from doing so
by prior commitments, particularly which may
have occurred In the case of additional
meetings called at short notice

A revised schedule of matters reserved for
decision by the Board and delegated authoritles
was agreed following the merger These matters
cover strategy and business plans, share capital
and dividends Board committees, remuneration
and employment benefits corporate reporting
capital and revenue commitments corporate
governance, Internal control and risk
management, corporate and soclal
responsibllities and the appointment and
removal of the Company Secretary The Board
delegates day to day management of the
business to the executlve Directors

For all Board meetings an agenda Is established
For regular meetings this generally comprises
reports from the Chief Executive the Group
Finance Director, the Executive Deputy

Chairman and the business Directars reports
on the financlal performance of the business
approval of major items of expenditure and
other significant policy issues The Board Is also
notifled of any permission given to Directors
and senlor managers to deal in the securlties

of the Company under the Company's dealing
code and receives reports from the committees
of the Board, to enable It to be informed of

and supervise the matters within their remit
Appropriate papers are provided to the
Directors In advance of each Board meeting

In addition the Board consliders at least annually
the strategic plans of the Group and of
tndividual businesses, and from time to time
Directors recelve presentations from
management concerning key areas of the
Group’s operations

Full year and Interim results are reviewed by
the audit committee and approved by the Board
prlor to publication

The composition and terms of reference of
Board committees and a summary of the
current terms of reference and details of
membership of major Board commiittees during
the year are set out on pages 45 and 46 and
have been published on the Company's website

In the furtherance of their duties, the Directors
have full access to the services of the General
Counse! & Company Secretary and may take
independent professional advice at the cost

of the Company In addition each of the
committees of the Board Is entitled to take
independent professional advice as appropriate
The Company maintains appropriate directors
and officers insurance In respect of legal action
against Its Directors and has granted deeds of
indemnity to each of the Directors and to the
Company Secretary

The Company provides corporate governance
training to those Directors for whom Itis thelr
first appolntment to a listed company board

and provides a taflored induction programme
for all Directors on appolntment. The Induction
programme includes detalls of Board and
Company policles and procedures, information
and briefings by members of management on the
Company s business and operations and on laws
and regulations particularly applicable to them
which Includes the “insider dealing™ obligations,
and visits to stores, factorles, warehouses and
other operations on a selective basis



The Board is regularly updated on
developments relating to the business of the
Group, corporate governance and other matters
of relevance, and non-executive Directors visit
the Group s operations

The Board's policy concerning executive
Directors seeking appointment as non-
executive Directors of other companies Is that
the addItional experlence and knowledge such
an appolntment brings benefits the Company
and accordingly, executive Directors are
permitted subject to the approval of the
Chalrman to accept one such appointment
where no confiict of interest arises, and to
retain the fees recelved

All non-executive Directors disclosed to the
Board prior to appointment thelr other
significant commitrments and they are required
to notify and have notlfled any changes to

or additional commitments from time to time
to the Chairman Sir Nigel Rudd 1s chairman
of Pendragon deputy chairman of Barclays
non-executive Director of BAE Systems and
Chatrman of the Boardroom Issues Group of
the CBI The Board is satisfied that Sir Nigel
Rudd meets his obligations to the Company

The Senior Independent Director is available

to shareholders if they have concerns which
have failed to be resolved through the normal
channels of Chalrman Chief Executive or Group
Finance Director, or for which such channels
are Inappropriate

The General Counsel & Company Secretary
acts as the secretary of all Board committees
and fulfils the responsibllities required of him
by the Combined Code

Board committees

There are four principal Board committees,

all of which operate within written terms of
reference Summaries of the terms of reference
and detalls of the membership of committees
are set out below Copies of the terms of
reference are available from the Company
Secretary and on the Company’s website Only
members of each committee are entitled to
attend the meetings of committees although
each committee may invite other Directors,
managers and advisors to attend and frequently
do so Membership of Board committees Is
regularly reviewed The Chalrman of the
remuneration committee does not serve on the
audit committee and vice versa and the Board

Is satisfled that no one Director exercises a
disproportionate Influence or has a
disproportionate burden of wark which is likely
adversely to affect his/her performance No
Director has served on any committee for six
years or more other than the Chairman who has
served on the nominatlons committee for seven
years The Board considers the Chairmans
continual service on this committee to be
appropriate as It ensures continulty following
the merger Attendance at meetings of
commlttees is set out on page 44

Audit committee

The independent non-executive Directors who
served on the committee during the year are as
follows

Guy Dawson' Patrick Ponsolle?
Adrian Loader? Tirm Parker?
Helene Plolx

1 Chairman appeinted September 2003
2 Appointed 31 July 2006
3 Resigned 31 July 2006

The Board approved revised terms of reference
for the audit committee on 4 October 2006 and
acopy Is avallable on the Company’s website

The role of the committee and detalls of how
1t carried out Its duties are set out in the audit
committee report on pages 64 to 66

The committee met five times during the year,
the attendance record of members is reported
In the table on page 44

Nominations committee
Directors who served on the committee during
the year are as follows

Patrick Ponsolle’ Manfred Stach®
Sir Nigel Rudd? Guy Dawson*
Stefano Pessina® Helene Ploix*
Tim Parker Dr Martin Read®

1 Appointed to committee and as Chalrman 31 July 2006
2 Chalrman unti 31 Juty 2006

3 Appointed to committee 31 July 2006

4 Resigned from committee 3§ Juty 2006

S Resigred from committee 20 July 2006

The Board approved revised terms of
reference for the nominations comrnittee
on 31 October 2006 and a copy Is avallable
on the Company’s website

Following the merger Patrick Ponsolle replaced
Sir Nigel Rudd as chalrman of the committee
Sir Nigel Rudd remalned a member of the
committee Stefano Pessina and Manfred Stach
were appolnted to the committee on 31 July
2006 Dr Martin Read retired from the Board
and ceased to be a member of the committee
on 20 July 2006 and Guy Dawson and Helene
Ploix resigned from the committee on 31 July
2006 The nominations committee meets as
required by its terms of reference and for any
additional matters arising in the year The
committee met three times during the year

The main responsibllities of the nominations
committee are to

¢ Review regularly the structure size and
composition of the Board and make
recommendatlons to the Board concerning
that

Give full conslderation to successlon
planning for Directors,

Evaluate the balance of skills knowledge
and experience of the Board,

Prepare a description of the role and
capabilities required for any particular
Board appolintment including that of the
Chairman,

Identify and nominate for the approval by
the Board candidates te fill Board vacancies
as and when they arise and

Review annually the time required from a
non-executive Director and assess whether
each of the non-executlve Directors
cantributes effectively and demonstrates
commitment to the role

The committee also makes recommendations
to the Board concerning the standing for
reappointment of Directors

During the year the committee determined the
desired capabllities, background and experience
of a further non-executive Director given the
current balance of skills knowledge and
experience on the Board and external
consultants have been instructed to identify
suitable candidates
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Remuneration committee
Directors who served on the committee during
the year are as follows

Tim Parker’ Manfred Stach?
Héléne Ploix Dr Martin Read?
Adrian Loader

1 Appointed as Chalrman 21 July 2006
2 Appolnted 31 July 2006
3 Reslgned as Chalrman and from the committee 20 July 2006

The Board approved revised terms of reference
for the remuneration committee on 4 October
2006 and a copy is avatlable on the

Company's website

The Executive Deputy Chairman and Chief
Executlve are Invited to attend meetings as
appropriate but are not present when their
own remuneration is discussed

The role of the remuneration cornmittee and
detalls of how It applied the principles of the
Combined Code and the Directors’ Remuneration
Report Regulatlons 2002 are set out [n the Board
report on remuneration on pages 48 to 63

The committee met eight times during the year
the attendance record of members is reported
in the table on page 44

Social responsibilities committee
Directors who served on the committee during
the year are as follows

Héléne Ploix' Manfred Stach?
Richard Baker? Paul Bateman*
Ornella Barra® Tim Parker'
Guy Dawson®

1 Chair

2 Appolnted 24 November 2006

3 Appolnted 31 July 2005
4 Resigned 31 July 2006

The social responsibilities committee met four
times during the year The main responsibility
of the committee Is to keep under review and
advise the Board on the company s policies and
practices in the areas of soclal responsibility,
including those relating to the environment,
diversity and equal opportunities race relations,
employment of the disabled charitable giving
and ethical matters, and the company’s values
and standards

During the year the terms of reference of the
soclal responsibilitles committee were revised
and these were enlarged to include a broader
stakeholders Interest and a copy s avatlable
on the Company’s website

The committee durlng the year reviewed

arevised Code of Conduct and Business
Ethics This code was released, following
Board approval in December 2006 and a
copy Is available on the Company s website
The code sets out the ethics principles and
standards which must be conslstently upheld
by each business and corporate function,

arevised Corporate Soclal Responsibility
approach taking Into account the best
practice from the businesses of the merged
Group involving a consistent approach for
data capture and reporting;

those matters and policies within its remit
and reviewed and monitored performance
against agreed targets

in the area of soclal responsibility, and

specific reports on business diversity and
transport, waste and recycling

The committee met four times during the year
the attendance record of members is reported
in the table on page 44

Disclosure committee

The disclosure cornmittee, which was
established in 2005, did not meet during the
year The proposed work for this committee was
dealt with by the other committees

Investor relations

Communications with shareholders are given
a high priority In addition to the annual and
Interimresults presentations and the AGM a
programme of meetings between Institutlonal
shareholders and analysts with the executive
Directers or the Chairman is held throughout
the year to discuss Information made public by
the Group and address any questions that may
arise The Company ensures that no price-
sensitive information Is disclosed in these
meetings This programme is led by the Chief
Executlve and Group Finance Director and
involves the Director of Investor Relations

A summary of the views expressed at these
meetings Is reported to the Board Non-
executive Directors are given an opportunity
to attend meetings with shareholders, and each
non-executive Director i1s prepared to do so

In addition to the programme described above
the Company's webslte provides financial and
other information about the Group Published
preliminary and Interim results as well as all
announcements to the London Stock Exchange
are on the Company's website

All members of the Board attend the AGM A
business presentatlon is given at the meeting,
followed by a question and answer sesslon In
accordance with best practice the notice of the
meeting, together with any related papers, Is sent
to shareholders at least 20 warking days before
the meeting or for those who have elected for
electronic communication notice ks given to such
shareholders of the avallabllity of docurments on
the Company’s webslite Shareholders are given
the opportunity to vote on each separate issue
Postal proxy votes are counted and the proxy
votes lodged for and against each resolutlon

as well as abstentions are announced after the
vote on show of hands on each item Summary
proxy figures are made avallable in writing at

the end of the meeting and are also published

on the Company s website

Internal control

The Directors have overall responsibility for the
groupss system of risk management and Internal
control and for reviewing its effectiveness

The system of Internal control Is designed to
manage, rather than eliminate the risk of falling
to achleve business objectlves and can provide
only reasonable, and not absolute, assurances
against material misstatemnent or loss

The Board considers an efficient risk
management and control frarnework to be
fundamental to the Company achleving its
corporate objectives with an actively managed
balance of risk and reward The effectiveness
of the ongoing process to identify evaluate and
manage significant risks in the Group's systemn
of risk management and Internal controls is
reviewed annually by the audit committee

on behalf of the Board the committee having
responsibility for overseeing management
action needed to remedy any shortcomings

or weaknesses Identified




Throughout the year and up until the date of
this report the risk management and internal
controls systems comply with the revised
Turnbull guidance for Directors as required
by the Code

Members of the Board have responsibility for
monitoring the conduct and aperations of
tndividual businesses within the Group This
mncludes the review and approval of business
strategles and plans and the setting of key
business performance targets The executive
management responsible for each business are
accountable for the conduct and performance
of their business within the agreed strategles

Key elements of the Group's system of internal
controls are as follows

« regular Board meetings with a formal
schedule of matters reserved by the Board
for decision,

« Board approval of the Groups strategic plan
and annual budget,

« an annual risk review by the audit
committee and subsequently by the Board,
based on business risk reviews and control
self assessments,

« clearly defined organisational structures and
appropriate delegated authorities for the
Group's businesses with delegated
authorities reviewed on an annual basls

« monthly reviews by the executive
management of key performance Indicators
to assess progress towards objectives, with
action being taken as required

« continuous monltoring of regulatory
developments,

« procedures for planning approving
executing and monitoring business
acquisitions divestments and capital
expenditure projects, supplemented by
post-investment performance reviews

Social, environmental and

ethical matters

The company has for many years recognised
the benefits that accrue from responsible
employment environmental and community
policies which are also described elsewhere in
this report Identifying and managing nisks to
the Company s reputation has been described
above and has & high priority The evaluation
of the Company’s performance In social
environmental, community and ethical
matters is ongeing

« dispensing and professional pharmacy
protocols which are reviewed and
against which compliance i1s audited
on a regular basis

« procedures for security and specialist
handiing of certain drug classes,

» arolling programme of surveys by the
Group’s Insurance brokers to advise on
physical risks,

» centralised treasury operations operating
within defined limits and subject to regular

reporting requirements, Compliance statement

The Company applied the provisions of
the Combined Code throughout the year
under review

» a Group internal audit function providing
independent scrutiny of Internal control
systemns and nisk management procedures,

» operational review teams within individual
businesses providing management
assurance on key controls primarily in
wholesale depots and retall outlets,

« regular monitoring of risks and control
systems throughout the year by operating
businesses with perlodic exception
reporting;

» a self-certification process whereby
operating businesses are required to confirm
In writing that the system of Internal control
Is operating effectively,

» the Director of Internal Audit & Risk
Management has the right of direct access
to the audit cormmittee and the Chairman
of the Company

« continuous monitoring by the Group legal
function of claims and litigation throughout
the Group, and

* a requirement for specialist legal financlal
and other professional advice
to be obtained as part of the Group's
business activities
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Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the Board, [ am pleased to present
the Board report on remuneration for the year
ending 31 March 2007

During the year the Remuneration Committee
conducted a review of remuneration with
particular focus on the Impact of the merger to
ensure continued alignment of remuneration
arrangements with the interests of our
shareholders, and with the executive Directors
and senior management team of the combined
entity focused on commen objectives

As a result of this review, the Committee has

» introduced revised bonus arrangements
to provide better alignment with, and
focus on, achieving merger benefits,

+» reviewed the performance conditions
for the Bonus Co-Investment Plan and
Perfermance Share Plan to take
account of the increased growth
potential of the Company, and

proposed the introduction of a one-off
long-term incentive plan {'Merger LTIP'}
which is subject to shareholder approval
These proposals are held in abeyance
following the recommended offer for
the Company by AB Acquisttions
Limited, announced on 20 Apnl 2007

We will continue to review our approach as
policy and practice Inevitably evolves over time

Tim Parker
Chalrman of the Remuneration Committee
2 May 2007

Comphance

This report has been prepared In compliance
with the Directors’ Remuneration Report
Regulations 2002 (the Regulations) and the
Combined Code

Remuneration committee

(the Committee)

The members of the Committee during the
year were

Tim Parker' Manfred Stach?
Helene Ploix Dr Martin Read’
Adrian Loader?

1 Appointed Chairman of the Committee 21 July 2006
2 Appointed 31 July 2006
3 Reslgned as Chairman and from the Committee

20 July 2006

The Committee meets on at least four
occasions each year The Committee met eight
times during the year as the result of the
merger The main responsibilities of the
Committee are surmimarised in the Board report
on corparate governance on page 46

The Board approved revised terms of reference
for the Committee on 4 October 2006 and a
copy Is available on the Company s website

Following a formal review the Cormmittee has
re-appolinted Kepler Assoclates as the primary
adviser to the Committee with effect from
February 2007

During the year, Kepler Associates and
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, who previously
advised Alliance UniChems remuneration
committee, provided the Committee with
external advice in determining the appropriate
remuneration, terms and conditions and bonus
schemes for Directors, and to assist It in reviews
of remuneration policies and practices
Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP provided additional
services ta the Group during the year In connectlon
with the merger cost savings project. The following
individuals also advised the Comrmittee to enable it
to make Informed declsions.

Governance

¢ Sir Nigel Rudd, Chairman of the Board

o Stefano Pessina Executive Deputy
Chalrman

« Richard Baker Chief Executive

= Marco Pagni General Counsel & Company
Secretary

« Paul Bateman, in his former role as Human
Resources & Operations Director of Boots
Group

» Andrew Stemp Director of Group Reward

» Mike Cutt Boots The Chemists Human
Resources Director

« Mike Higgins, Alllance UniChemn interim
reward consultant

A summary of the terms under which Kepler
Assaclates provide services to the Committee
Is available on the Company’s website

Remuneration policies

Policy overview

In determining its remuneration policies,
the Committee has followed the provisions
of the Combined Cade

The philosophy of the Committee is to

+ provide a total reward package designed to
retaln employees of the highest calibre and
provide genuine long-term wealth creation
opportunities for senlor management,

set basic salartes at competlitive levels In the
relevant market to help ensure the Group Is
able to attract and retain people of the
required standard and

set total remuneration almed at market
medlan for sustained levels of good
performance and upper quartile for superior
financial and personal performance

It is the practice of the Board to malntain
contact {(where appropriate) with its major
shareholders about remuneration issues

Nao Director is permitted to vote In respect of
thelr own remuneration or to be present when
his or her remuneration Is being discussed




Remuneration policies 2006/07 -
key elements of remuneration
Executive remuneration in the year comprised
the following key elements

« Basic salary

» Short Term Executive Bonus Scheme
» Bonus Co-Investment Plan

» Performance Share Plan

» All Employee Share Arrangements

s Pension

e« Other benefits

There are also outstanding awards In respect of
previous Boots incentlve arrangements These
awards were made under the Executive Share
Option Plan and the Long-Term Bonus Scheme
These two schemes ceased to be operated for
new awards after 31 March 2005

Each of these elements is described below

Basic salary

During the year, a review of executlve Directors’
salaries was undertaken This review took into
account the size and complexity of the
combined Group The basic salaries following
this review became effective from 1 August
2006 and the salaries approved are as shown in
the table below These are unchanged as at 31
March 2007

£
S Pessina 593000
R A Baker 810000
G R Falrweather 470000
O Barra 400000
S W I Duncan 380000
1 S Wheway 420,000

Before the merger, the existing executive
Directors’ basic salaries had been reviewed by
the Committee with effect from 1 June 2006
and the basic salary for Richard Baker had been
Increased to £696,000 The basic salaries for
Paul Baternan and Jim Smart were increased
to £378,000 and £385,000 respectively

Short Term Executive

Bonus Scheme

2006/07 arrangements

The former Boots and Alllance UniChem bonus
arrangements for executive Directors provided
a maximum bonus potential of 100% of annual
basic salary in respect of afinanclal year These
arrangements were in force up to 31 July 2006
Any bonus payable from these arrangements
was scaled back pro rata to allow for a
performance period of less than one year since
the start of each respective company’s financial
year [n the case of Boots, this period was four
months [nthe case of Alliance UniChem this
period was seven months

In the case of the former Boots bonus
arrangements, two-thirds of the available short
term bonus depended upon business
performance targets including operating profit
sales and return on capital and earnings and
one-third depended on Individual performance
against personal targets

Under the former Alliance UniChem bonus
arrangernent 80% of the short term bonus was
based on adjusted eamings and 20% was based
on personal performance In the case of Ornella
Barra and Steve Duncan half of their financial
perfaormance target was based on the results of
Alllance UniChem as a whole and half on the
combined performance of the businesses for
which they had responsibility

Over the eight month period from 1 August
2006 to 31 March 2007, a harmonlsed bonus
arrangement was put in place for all executive
Directors This was in two parts The first part
provided a maximum bonus potentlal of 100%
of salary, pro-rated for the elght month period
and consistent with arrangements already In
place for each Company Two-thirds of this
bonus was dependent on adjusted earnings
(including merger synergies) and the remaining
one-third was dependent on Individual
perfarmance agalnst personal targets The
second part provided a maximum bonus
potential of a further two thirds of annual basic
salary based on the attainment of stretching
earnings targets arising from the delivery of
synergy benefits with no personal performance
element The addition of the second part
effectively provided a doubling of the bonus
opportunity for the eight month period
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The bonus amounts actually earned by
each executive Director are detalled in the
emoluments sectlon cn page 59

For the 2007/08 financial year the short term
bonus arrangement for executive Directors will
provide a maximum bonus potential of 100%
of annual basic salary 75% of the bonus Is
dependent on adjusted earnings targets and
the remaining 25% on personal targets

Bonus Co-Investment Plan (BCIP)
The BCIP allgns executives’ interests with those
of shareholders as their Initial Investment in the
Company’s shares Is exposed to share price
rnovement over the performance period
Further matching shares are then provided only
in return for the achlevement of challenging
adjusted earnings per share growth targets over
a three-year period

Adjusted earnings per share is defined as profit for
the perlod attributable to equity shareholders
hefore exceptional items amortisation of
customer related intanglible assets and IAS 39
timing differences all net of tax and deferred tax
restatements for customer related Intanglbte
assets divided by the weighted average number
of shares in issue during the pericd

Under the BCIP executive Directors are entitled
to Invest up to S0% of their earned short term
bonus for the previcus year in shares of the
Company in return for a matching opportunity
of up to 21 The size of the match depends on
real earnings per share growth and continued
employment over a three-year performance
cycle Following the merger, the Committee
Increased the rate of growth required for
threshold and maximum vesting to reflect the
higher expected growth of the group

In respect of the 2006/07 bonus year, a
proportion of matching shares will be awarded
provided growth in adjusted earnings per share
exceeds growth In the RPI-X by 5% pa
compound over the next three years No
matching shares are awarded If growth is less
than this A maximum match of two shares is
earned If growth in EPS exceeds growth in the
RPI-X by 10% p a compound with pro rata
matching for performance In between these
levels (previously 3% p a and B% p a over the
growth In RPI} The policy of the Committee is
to review the targets at the beginning of each
cycle to ensure they remain sultable
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BCIP matching share vesting element
20

Numnber of matching shares awarded
for each deposit share purchased
>

5% 75% 10%
Real EPS growth annualised over 3 years

If real growth in adjusted earnings per share performance does not exceed 5% p a , the matching
awards will lapse There Is no retest

Matching shares are forfeited if an executive Director resigns or withdraws their investrment within
three years of the start of the performance perlod The second part of the short term bonus applying
over the last eight months of the financial year Is not eligible for Investment under the BCIP

The table below sets out the bonus Invested by the executive Directors during 2006/07 where they
were requlred to co-invest at least 25% of thewr annual bonus for 2005/06 No short term bonus was
earned by the executive Directors in 2004/05 and as a result, no co-investment opportunity arose
in relation to that bonus cycle

Bonus
invested Matching
in year Deposited opportumty Condltional
Director £ shares £ award in shares
R A Baker 140000 18116 466 667 65195
1 § Wheway? 35300 4 567 117667 16438

1 Deposited shares were purchased on 12 July 2006 at a price of 767 pence per share these interests are included in the
Directors shareholdings shown later in this report

Held at the date of appointment to the Board on 31 july 2006

Performance penod 1 April 2006 to 31 March 2009

Release date of matching award 13 huty 2009 subject to the satisfaction of the performance conditions

The conditional award in shares is calculated by dividing the matching opportunity by 715 8 pence being the average of the
muddle market dasing prices for the five days following the date of the preliminary announcement (18 May 2006)

The bonus invested is grossed up before the matching opportunity Is calculated

o

(=]




Performance Share Plan (PSP)

The Performance Share Plan, which replaced
the Boots Long-Term Bonus Scheme for
performance perlods commencling on or after
1 Aprl 2005 was designed to provide a direct
link between the pay of executive Directors
and the creation of value for shareholders

The Committee revised the PSP following
the merger to provide a focus on earnings
per share growth as well as relative total
shareholder return

In 2006/07, an award of 165% of basic salary
was granted to Richard Baker an award of 130%
of bastc salary was granted to Scott Wheway
and awards of 163% of baslic salary were granted
to Stefano Pessina George Fairweather, Ornella
Barra and Steve Duncan the former Alliance
UniChem executives The grants of 163% of
salary made to former Alliance UniChem
executives reflected the delay in making share-
based incentive grants as a result of the timing
of the merger Executive Directors can be

PSP earnings per share vesting element

L 7 e

Percentage of EPS elernent vesting

1. g QS

0x

granted awards worth up to 200% of basic
salary (250% for the Chief Executive}

The general prohibition on the grant of awards
more than four months after the start of the
performance perlod was removed following the
passing of a resolution at the 2006 AGM

67% of an award will be subject to real annual
growth In earnings per share If growthin
adjusted earnings per share exceeds the RPI-X by
5% pa compound, 20% of the earnings per share
award will vest This rises to 100% if real growth
in adjusted earnings per share exceeds the RPI-X
by 8% pa compound with straight line vesting
between these two levels Nothing vests for
performance below this as illustrated below

The remaining 33% of an award will be
subject to the Company’s total shareholder
return performance over the three-year
period relatlve to the FTSE 100 as at the start
of the performance perled 20% of the total
shareholder return award will vest If the total

5% 8%

Real EPS growth annualised over 3 years

shareholder return performance equals or
exceeds the median of the constituent
companies rising to 100% if the total
shareholder return performance reaches the
upper quintile of the constituent companles
with straight line vesting between these two
levels None of the total shareholder return
award wili vest for performance below median
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PSP total shareholder return vesting element
100%

Percentage of TSR element vesting

20%

0%

50th 20th 1st
Company three year total shareholder retum rank agalnst constituent companles of the FTSE 100 index

Dividends accrue over the performance period and are pald at vesting but only on shares that actually vest

For awards made under this plan in 2005/06, the performance conditions for the provisional award measured the Company's out-performance over a three-
year performance period of total sharehelder return performance relative to a UK retall Index comprising the FTSE 350 General Retallers [ndex and the
FTSE 350 Food & Drug Retallers Index (welghted 50% each) At the end of the performance cycle none of the award will vest unless the annualised total
shareholder return performance exceeds the index total shareholder return by at least 2% p a All the shares vest if the annualised total shareholder return
performance exceeds the Index total shareholder return by at least 10% p a (histarically equivalent to almost top decile performance), with pro rata vesting
In between

Unvested awards under the PSP
The table below sets out the unvested conditional awards (in shares) for each financlal year

Conditional award of shares 2005/06 2006/07 Total
$ Pessina - 115,779 MM5,779
R A Baker 273,605 160435 434,040
G R Fairweather - 88 537 88,537
O Barra - 74916 74916
S W J Duncan - 74916 74,916
1 § Wheway 53648 61976 115,624
P Bateman 118 851 - 118,851
J R Smart 28103 - 28103

The performance periods for the allocations are

Allocation 2005/06 2006/07
Period start 1 April 2005 1 April 2006
Period end 31 March 2008 31 March 2009




The share price used to calculate the 2006/07
conditional awards was 715 8 pence being the
average share price for the five business days
immediately following the preliminary
announcement In May 2006 The outcome for
this cycle and the related vested awards will not
be determined until June 2009 The share price
when the awards were first made was 719 5
pence on 1 April 2006

All Employee Share Arrangements
Boots All Employee Share Ownership Plan
(AESOP)

Boots established an AESOP in 2000/01 to
enable all employees to become shareholders

in the Company Under the free share part of
the AESOP, the participating executive Directors
were each given the opportunity to be awarded
34 shares (28 shares In 2005/06) the same
number as any employee with average
contracted hours of 35 or more per week All
the eligible executive Directors opted to recelve
this award Shares in this part of the AESOP
must normally be held in trust on behaif of the
employees for at least three years

The share investment plan element of the AESOP
gives employees, including executive Directors
the opportunity to purchase shares from their
pre-tax Income subject to a maximum of

£125 permonth Shares purchased under the
partnership plan are included in the total
shareholdings shown In the table on page 62

The Boots SAYE Share Option Plan 2002
This Scheme has been activated for the UK
executive Directors, who have glven up their
rights to recelve or purchase further shares
under the AESOP and the UK employees of the
former Alllance UniChem companles Details
of the Directors outstanding options under
this scheme are shown In the table on page 54

Alllance UniChem Savings Related Share
Option Scheme

Employees of former Alliance UniChem
companies Including UK executive Directors
were entitled to participate in this scheme
Detalls of the executive Directors’ outstanding
options under this scheme are shown In the
table on page 54

Share Ownership Guidelines

During the year the Company has revised Its
share ownership guidelines which require that
executive Directors retaln a holding in the
Company’s shares having a value equivalent to
one times {Chlef Executive one and a half times)
thelr basic salary The executive Directors are
required to retain 50% of shares (net of iIncome
tax and exerclse costs) from any vested
incentive share awards until the guideline is
achieved Unvested shares or optlons will be
excluded from the required holding Any shares
previcusly held by an executive Director can be
included as part of the required holding Once
the shareholding is met the number of shares
required to be held by the executive Director
will be fixed, so that fluctuations In the share
price will not require the executive Director to
purchase more shares

Legacy incentive awards

During the year there were awards outstanding
over two Boots incentive schemes the
Executive Share Optien Plan and the Long-Term
Bonus Scheme There were also awards vesting
under the Alllance UniChem Long Term
Incentive Plan for the former executlve
Directors

Executive Share Option Plan (ESOP) -
former Boots incentive arrangement
Under the Executive Share Option Plan, which
operated for performance perlods commencing
befare 1 April 2005, executive Directors could
be granted options to subscribe for ordinary
shares in the Company The maximum face
value of options that could be granted under
the plan to any executive Director In any
financlal year of the Company was twice baslc
salary Grants did not normally exceed one
times annual salary Optlons granted to
executlve Directors were granted subject to the
satisfaction of a performance condition

The ESOP aligns reward to executlves with
returns to shareholders if share price growth s
achieved and the performance condition is met
Annual growth In earnings per share over the
relevant perlod must be at least 3% p a plus RPI
In order for an award 1o vest in full

If the performance condition Is not met then
performance is retested annually until the end
of the sixth year, using the same methodology,
for optlons granted prior to 2004 If the
performance condition has stili not been met
at the end of the sixth year, the options lapse
For options granted In 2004, only one retest will
be permitted This retest will take place at the
end of the fifth year where the performance
condition 1s not met after the third year

The exercise price of options granted under
the scheme is the average market value of the
shares in the three days preceding the grant
of an option The rules of the plan allow the
exercise of vested options In the period
between three and ten years from grant Gains
arising from the exercise of share options are
set out below

The performance tests for options granted
in 2001 2002 and 2003 were not met as at
31 March 2007
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Optlons have been granted under these arrangements and in respect of all employee option plans as follows

Exerctsed/ Exercise Normal
1 April Granted lapsed in year 31 March price exercise
Director Type 2006 In year March 2007 2007 pence from
R A Baker a 181,950 - - 181,950 68700 180906to0 170913
b 90,975 - - 90,975 68700 18090610 170913
a 99,536 - - 99,536 64700 140607 to 130614
C - 1,482 - 1,482 63734 010210to 010810

372,461 1482 - 373,943 -
G R Fairweather [ 1,482 ~ 1,482 63734 010210t0 010810
S W 1 Duncan' d 4948 - = 4,948 33033 010709t0 311209
P Baternan? a 26428 - - 26,428 63000 12 0904 to 30 0507
40,944 - - 40944 63500 18 0605t0 300907
a 45,504 - - 49,504 60600 2306 06 to 300907
54,095 - = 54,095 64700 310307 t0 300907

170971 - - 170,971 -
J R Smart? a 25,371 - - 25,371 606 00 230606 to 300907
a 24,517 - - 24,517 64700 31030710300907

49,888 - - 49,888 -

1 Held at date of appointment 31 July 2006
2 Following the termination of thelr employment Paul Baternan and lim Smart have six months from 31 March 2007 to exercise unvested share options if these options were to vest at
31 March 2008 compensation would be paid to them

a = Executlve Share Option Plan

b = Richard Baker’s individual option plan (to accommodate a joining award of 3x his annual basic salary In share options conslsting of 2x his annual basic
salary under the ESOP and 1x annual basic salary under an Individual option plan)

¢ =The Boots Group SAYE Share Option Plan 2002

d = Alllance UniChern Savings-Related Share Option Scheme 1990

All options granted under the Executive Share Option Plan and the Richard Baker individual option plan are subject to the performance conditions
set out above

The market price of the Company’s shares at 31 March 2007 was 1026 5 pence and the range of market prices during the year was 685 5 pence
to 1036 5 pence

Directors’ interests in share options on 2 May 2007 remain unchanged

Gains on share options represent the number of shares under options which have been exercised valued at the difference between the market
price at the date of exerclse and the exercise price paid

The total gains on share options exerclsed during the year was £nl} (2006 £nil)




Long Term Bonus Scheme (LTBS) —
former Boots incentive arrangement
The LTBS was operated for performance periods
commencing before 1 April 2005 and provided
executive Directors with a maximum potentlal
bonus award (MPBA) worth up to 125% of basic
salary No awards were made under the LTBS
after the 2004/07 cycle The LTBS rewarded
Directors for the Company’s performance in
terms of TSR over a three-year performance
period relative to a peer group of ten other
leading companies There is no retest

The peer group comprised those companies
that the Committee considered at the
beginning of the cycle to provide the best
comparators for performance given the mix of
businesses carried on by the Company For the
2004/07 cycle the relevant peer group was

DSG International Reckitt Benckiser
Home Retail Group? Smith & Nephew
J Sainsbury Tesco
Kingfisher W H Smith
Marks & Spencer W M Morrison'

1 Replaced Alliance UmiChem
2 Replaced Great Universal Stores

For the 2004/07 cycle the TSR was below
median (and was below median for the 2003/06
cycle) Accordingly no long-term bonus units
were earned by executive Directors and no
payment will be made In June 2007 (2006 nil)

No share awards in respect of prlor perlods have
vested and been exercised In the year and none
were outstanding at 31 March 2007 (2006 nil)

Alllance UniChem Long-Term
Incentive Plan — former Alllance
UmiChem incentive arrangement
The former executlve Directors of Alllance
UniChem participated In the Alliance UniChem

Long-Term Incentive Plan under which
allocations were made with the aim of rewarding
them for creating shareholder value All
outstanding awards under this plan vested on the
date of the merger in accordance with the plan
rules The details of how these arrangements
affected former executive Directors of Alllance
UniChem including the former Chlef Executive
Tan Meakins are set out below in the pro forma
emoluments table on page 60

Pension

Richard Baker and Scott Wheway receive
pension entltlements from the Company s
principal UK defined benefit pension scheme
referred to in note 38 They also receive
supplementary penslon arrangerments which
are aimed at providing a pension {(when taken
together with retained benefits from other
employment) of two-thirds final basic salary
at normal retirement age There is no pension
arrangement for Stefano Pessina George
Fairweather is a member of the defined benefit
section of the Alliance UniChem Group UK
Pension Scheme and is a deferred member of
the Alllance UniChem 1993 Pension Scheme
Steve Duncan is a deferred member of the
Alliance UniChem Group UK Pension Scheme
and has ceased to accrue pension benefits In
respect of future service His accrued pension
benefit Is defined by reference to his final
pensionable salary as defined In the Alliance
UniChem Group UK Penslon Scheme From

6 April 2006, Steve Duncan has received a
supplementary payment set at 40% of his
basic salary Ornella Barra is a member of a
tax approved penslon schermne to which
defined contributions are made by the
Company Sublect to Ornella Barra only
selecting investments offered by the scheme,
a certain level of benefits are guaranteed to
be payable at retirement are guaranteed
Pension entitlement is calculated only on

the basic salary element of remuneration

Richard Baker and Scott Wheway were subject
to the farmer revenue caps and are subject to
the new revenue limits and accordingly have
been and will, where appropriate, continue to
be members of unfunded unapproved pension
arrangements which provide sirmilar benefits in
excess of the relevant caps George Fairweather
was subject to former revenue caps, but since
Aprll 2006, the earnings cap has been removed
in respect of his benefits under the Alliance
UniChem Group UK Pension Scheme As a
result he ceased membership of the Alllance
UniChetn 1993 Penslon Scheme, and an annuity
adjustment was made to his benefits under

the Alliance UniChem Group UK Pension
Scherne commensurate with the value of his
entitlement With effect from 1 June 2006

the Company closed its UK defined benefit
penslon schemes to new employees

Other benefits

Executive Directors are entitled to a company
car or car allowance, security costs and other
benefits comparable to those provided by other
major UK companies During the year Richard
Baker George Fairweather, Scott Wheway Paul
Bateman and Jim Smart participated in funded
unapproved death benefit scheres which
provided benefits on death comparable to
those contained in the Company’s approved
penslon schemes In respect of income above
the revenue income cap Stefano Pessina and
Ornella Barra are relmbursed the cost of travel
to and from work accommodation and
subsistence while working for the Company in
the UK The provision of these benefits reflects
market practice and does not relate to
performance The value of these benefits for
each Director serving during the year, including
expenses chargeable to UK incomne tax, are
detailed in the emoluments section of this
report Where a Director is entitled to a benefit
but chooses not to take that benefit, a cash
supplement is pald in lieu of that benefit
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Service contracts

Each of the executive Directors has a service contract which terminates when the Director in question reaches the age of 60 with the exception of Stefano
Pessina whose service contact terminates when he reaches the age of 70 All executive Directors’ service contracts are terminable by the Company on one
year's notice and the Committee has determined that one year s notice is the appropriate period of notice to be given to an executive Director Stefano
Pessina, Richard Baker and Ornella Barra have service contracts that can be terminated by each of them with notice of six months

Details of the contracts of executive Directors who served during the year are as follows

Date of contract Unexpired term Notice period
Stefano Pessina' 31 July 2006 1 year rolling 1 year
Richard Baker' 8 August 2003 1 year rolling 1 year
George Falrweather 31 July 2006 1 year rolling 1 year
Ornella Barra' 31 July 2006 1 year rolling 1 year
Steve Duncan 31 July 2006 1 year rolling 1 year
Scott Wheway 1 August 2006 1 year rolling 1 year
Paul Bateman 25July 2002 Terminated on 31 July 2006 1 year
Jim Smart 17 May 2006 Terminated on 31 July 2006 1 year

1 The service contracts for Stefano Pessina Richard Baker and Omella Barra can be terrminated by each of them with six months notice

There are provisions in the service contracts for
payment of current basic salary In lieu of the
required notice period to terminate a service
contract The Committee’s policy on
termination of executive Directors service
contracts Is that In the event of any service
contract being terminated by the Company
glving less than the contractual period of notice
the requirement for the Director to mitigate
their loss where appropriate is taken into
account In determining any resulting
compensation In the case of Richard Baker,
however, the Company at the date of his
appointment agreed provisions relating to pay
in lleu of notice under which if Richard Baker's
contract Is terminated with less notice than his
contract provides, then he will receive 85% of
the salary pension and short term bonus and
other benefits he would have received had he
been given the notice to which he was entitled
under his contract but without recelving any
compensatlon for loss of long-term incentives
or share optlons

Paul Bateman and $im Smart resigned as
executive Directors of the Company on 31 July
2006 Their emoluments for the year as
Directors and their payrnent for loss of office

are set out in the emoluments section of this
report Before the merger, the Company agreed
with JIm Smart that if his appointment as Chief
Financlal Officer was terminated without notice
as a consequence of the merger he would
recelve a redundancy payment calculated in
accordance with the Company s redundancy
policy His termination package which was
effective from 30 September 2006 included
ten months’ basic pay a sum equal to the value
he might reasonably have expected to receive
under the bonus schemes and share optlon
plans in which he participated, car allowance
and other benefits had he been given and
accepted 10 months’ notice In addition his
pension was enhanced for that period Paul
Bateman received the same terms for his
termination which was effective from 28
February 2007

It is recognised that executive Directors may

be invited to become non-executive Directors
of other companies and that the additlonal
experience and knowledge that this brings will
benefit the company Accordingly, the policy is
to allow executive Directors to accept up to one
such appointment where no conflict of interest
arlses, and to retain the fees received

Stefano Pessina Is a non-executive Director

of Galenica an assoclate company He walved
his entitlement to fees as part of the agreement
with Galenica George Falrweather Is a non-
executive Director of Mitchells & Butlers and
retalned fees of £36,616 paid for the perlod

31 July 2006 to 31 March 2007 for that
appointment

Each Director Is required to stand for re-election
every three years and may be required to stand
for re-electlon at an earller date in order to
satisfy the provisions In the Company s Articles
of Assoclation that not less than one-third of
the Board seek re-election at each AGM The
Articles of Associaticn of the Company contaln
provisions relating to earller vacation of office
without notice

Non-executive Directors

The Chairman and each of the cther non-
executive Directors has a written letter of
appolntment with the Company, terminable by
either party without notice or compensation
with the exception of the former Alliance
UniChem non-executive Directors whose
appolntments are terminable by either party on
one month's notice The letters of appointment
set out the expected time commitment




During the year the Board reviewed the fees
payable to the Chairman and each of the other
non-executive Directors following a
benchmarking revlew undertaken by Kepler
Associates The Chalrman's fee was Increased to
£500 D00 per annum with effect from 1
Novermnber 2006 These fees are pald In the form
of shares In the Company which the Company
purchase on his behalf The fee was flxed for a
three year period Before the merger the
Chairman’s fee had been increased to £360 000
per annum with effect from 1 June 2006

The fees for the other non-executive Directors
were also reviewed during the year The basic
fee for other non-executive Directors was
Increased to £55 000 per annum with effect
from 1 August 2006 Guy Dawson the senior

independent non-executive Director recelves a
fee of £70,000 per annum which includes an
additional fee of £15,000 per annum for chairlng
the audIt committee Tim Parker recelves a fee
of £70,000 per annum which Includes an
additional fee of £15 000 per annum for chairing
the remuneration committee Patrick Ponsolle
receives a fee of £65,000 per annum which
Includes an additional fee of £10 000 per annum
for chalring the nominations committee Héléne
Ploix recelves a fee of £65 000 per annum which
includes an additicnal fee of £10 000 per annum
for chairing the social responsibilities
committee Before the merger the basic fees for
the existing Boots non-executlve Directors had
been increased to £45 000 per annum with
effect from 1 June 2006 with an additional fee
for chairing the audit committee of £15 000 per

annum and an additicnal fee for chairing
the remuneration committee and social
responsibilities committee of £9,000 and
£7 000 per annum respectively

Non-executive Directors do not participate in
any pension scheme bonus or share option
scheme arrangements Sir Nigel Rudd 1s
reimbursed the expenses that the committee
considers reasonable for providing his own
car and driver whilst travelling on the
Company s business Non-executive Directors
are reimbursed travel, subsistence and
accommadatlon costs securlty costs (in some
cases) and where applicable, the related tax
benefit In kind

The Initial appointment date and the year of last appointment at an AGM/EGM for the non-executlve Directors are as follows

Director Imtial appointment date  Year of last appointment at an AGM/EGM
Sir Nigel Rudd 14 December 1999 2006
G N Dawson 15 September 2003 2004
W A Loader' 31 July 2006 2006
T C Parker 28 January 2004 2004
H Ploix 7 September 2000 2004
P Ponsolle? 31 July 2006 2006
M Stach’ 31 July 2006 2006

1 Appointed at the EGM held on 4 July 2006 Initially appointed to Alliance UniChem Board on 24 September 2003
2 Appointed at the EGM held on 4 July 2006 [nitially appointed to Aliance UniChem Board on 30 December 1967
3 Appeinted at the EGM held on 4 July 2006 Initiatty 2ppointed to Alliance UniChem Board on B December 2003
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Performance graph

The following graph shows the total shareholder return over the perlod since the merger to 31 March 2007 for the Company s shares relative to the
FTSE 100 ndex The FTSE 100 is considered to be an appropriate index for comparison as It Is well recognised the Company forms part of that index
and investors In the Company are likely to regard other FTSE 100 companiles as alternative Invesuments
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Ditution information

The Company share plans have always complled
with recommended guldelines on dilution limits
Assuming none of the outstanding Executive
Share Option Plan or SAYE options lapse and will
be exercised and having included all exercised
options under these plans since Aprll 1997 the
Company has utllised under 1% of the 10% In

10 years and under 1% of the 5% [n 10 years

in accordance with the NAPF corporate
governance policy

Audit

The following sections of the above report
form part of the financial statements on which
the auditors have expressed thelr opinion on
page 68 the statutory emoluments table the
Directors’ share Interest tables on pages 58 to 62
and the pension entitlement table on page 63

Nov 06 Dec 06 lan 07 Feb 07

Directors’ remuneration 2006/07
Analysis of emoluments and short term bonuses
are shown on pages 59 and 60 Details
ofwoutstanding share options and galns on share
options are shown on page 54 shareholdings

are shown on page 62, and pensicn entitlements

on page 63

Emoluments

An analysis of Directors emoluments relating
to salary and fees short term bonuses, pension
supplement other benefits (other than share
options LTBS and penslons) and termination
payments for the year ended 31 March 2007
are shown in the tables on pages 59 and 60

The first table is prepared on a statutory basls
and shows the emoluments for the Directors of
the Company that served during the reporting

]
Mar 07

perlods The emoluments relating to the former
Directors of Alllance UniChem are therefore
included for the period from 31 July 2006 to
31 March 2007

The second table is prepared on a pro forma
basis to assist investors and includes the
Informatlon from the first table with the
additlon of the emoluments of the former
Alllance UniChem Directors who were
appointed to the Board on 31 July 2006 for
the period from 1 April 2005 to 31 July 2006
and is based on thelr emolumenits recelved
from Alllance UniChem It excludes the
emoluments of the Directors of the Company
who resigned on or before 31 July 2006




Statutory information

Salanes Short term Pension Other Termination Total Total
£000 and fees bonuses supplement benefits payment 2007 2006
Executive directors
S Pessina? 395 680 - 49 - 1,124 -
R A Baker' 767 1167 - 53 — 1,987 1181
G R Fairweather? 313 531 - 15 - 859 -
O Barra? 267 463 - 17 - 747 -
$ W) Duncan? 253 436 101 14 - 804 -
1 S Wheway? 281 482 - 24 - 787 -
2,276 3,759 101 172 - 6,308 1181
Former directors
P Bateman ? 122 103 - 9 1,017 1,251 641
J R Smart* 121 129 - 5 788 1043 304
DrM P Read ® 15 - - 1 - 16 45
H Dodd ® - - - - - - 552
) Bennink’ - - - - - - 14
258 232 - 15 1,805 2310 1556
Non-executive directors
SIr Nigel Rudd ® 419 - - 31 - 450 312
G N Dawson 65 - - 1 - 66 54
W A Loader? 37 - - - - 37 -
T C Parker 61 - - 3 - 64 39
H Ploix 59 - - 20 - 79 54
P Ponsolle 2 43 - - - - 43 —
M Stach? 37 — - - - 37 -
721 - — 55 - 776 459
3,255 3,991 101 242 1,805 9,394 3196

5
]
7
[}
9

Highest pald director

Appolnted to the Board on 31 July 2006

Restgned from the Board on 31 luly 2006 Remained as an employee untll 28 February 2007 and received emoluments of £232 570 covering basic salary and car allowance Recelved payment on
termination of his employment This payment covered basic salary for an agreed ten months notice period a severance payment car allowance performance share plan bonus co Investment
AESOP and a bonus payment for the perlod to 31 Decernber 2007 based on target performance

Appointed to the Board on 3 October 2005 resigned 31 July 2006 and remained as an employee untl 30 September 2006 and received emaduments of £68 679 covesing basic salary and car
allowance Recelved a payment on termination of his employment This payment covered basic salary for an agreed ten months natice period a severance payment car allowance performance
share plan bonus ce-Investment life Insurance and a bonus payment for the period to 31 July 2007 based on target performance

Resigned from the Board on 20 Juty 2006

Resigned from the Board on 18 May 2005

Resigned from the Board on 21 July 2005

The 2006 comparitive has been adjusted by £15 000

Other benefits for non executive Directors comnprise travel subsistence and accommeodation costs and the related tax benefit in kind

The aggregate of directors emoluments before termination payrents was £7 589 000 (2006 £2 705 000)
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Pro-forma information

Salaries  Short term Pension Other Total Total
£000 and fees bonuses supplement benefits 2007 2006
Executive directors

S Pessina 565 794 - 69 1,428 872
R A Baker 767 1,167 - 53 1,987 1181
G R Falrweather 443 618 - 23 1,084 681
O Barra 377 537 - 24 938 580
S W J Duncan 363 510 145 21 1,039 589
1S Wheway' 391 546 - 29 966 617
2,906 4172 145 219 7442 4,520

Non-executive directors
Sir Nigel Rudd ? 1419 - - n 450 312
G N Dawson 65 - - 1 66 54
W A Loader 53 - - - 53 50
T C Parker 61 - - 3 64 39
H Ploix 59 - - 20 79 54
P Pansolle 60 - - - 60 50
M Stach 53 - - - 53 50
770 — - 55 825 609
3,676 4172 145 274 8,267 5129

1 The pre 31 July 2006 data cavers disclosure of emoluments recetved as an employee
2 The 2006 comparitive has been adjusted by £15 000
3 Other benefits for non executive Directors comprise travel subsistence and accommodation costs and the related tax benefit in kind

lan Meakins the former Chief Executlve of Alliance UniChem, received total emoluments of £1155 000 for the perlod 1 January 2006 to 31 March 2007
He resigned from the Alltance UniChem Board on 31 July 2006

These emoluments were made up as follows

£000
Salary 390
Bonus 201
Salary supplement 169
Compensation for loss of office 61
Payment In lleu of natice 297
Benefits 37

1155

Payment In lieu of notice will cover a twelve month perlod from 31 July 2006 and has been subjected to mitigation for the period from 1 January 2007
to 31 March 2007

Jeff Harrls resigned as Chairman from the Board of Alliance UniChem on 22 April 2005 He received fees of £40 000 for the period from 1 January 2006
to 31 March 2007 for acting as a member of the supervisory board of Andreae-Noris Zahn (ANZAG) an assoclate company In addition he recetved an
unfunded pension of £21,734 In the period and executive share option gains of £80 179

No termination payments were made to the former non-executive Directors of Alliance UniChem who were not appointed as non-executive Directors of the
Company The former non-executive Directors of Alllance UniChem recerved no increase in the rate of thelr fees between 1 January 2006 and 31 July 2006




In respect of the former executive Directors of Alllance UniChem the following awards were made on previous allocations between 1 January 2006 and

the date of the merger

Award

Award Alliance

nominal Option UniChem

Performance Allocation value price shares
period £ £ pence number Boots shares
S Pessina 01/01/03-31/12/05 2331333 210233 9140 23,001 Exerclsed
01/01/04-31/12/06 300000 300000 10180 29,469 39252
01/01/05-31/12/07 485,000 485,000 10180 47642 63,459
G R Falrweather 01/01/03-31/12/05 220,000 198 220 9140 21687 28,887
01/01/04-31/12/06 233333 233333 10180 22920 30529
01/01/05-31/12/07 375000 375000 10180 36,836 49065
O Barra 01/01/03-31/12/05 180,000 162,180 9140 17743 Exercised
01/01/04-31/12/06 193,333 193 333 10180 18991 25,296
01/01/05-31/12/07 310000 310000 10180 30451 40 560
S W J Duncan 01/01/03-31/12/05 156,667 141,156 9140 15443 Exercised
01/01/04-31/12/06 186 666 186 666 10180 18,336 24,423
01/01/05-31/12/07 315000 315000 10180 30,943 41 216

During the performance period from 1 January
2003 to 31 December 2005 Alllance UniChemn
was in the 68 4th percentile of the comparator
group on total shareholder return, which was
the FTSE 100 for the 2003 allocation and the
increase in diluted earnings per share was in
excess of RPl-x +6% On this basis awards
equivalent to 90 1% of the allocations were
made and converted into Alliance UniChern
share options at 914 pence per Alllance
UniChem share at the time of the merger

The Alliance UniChern remuneration committee
determined that all the applicable performance
targets were met at the time of the merger for
the 2004 and 2005 allocations Consequently
awards equivalent to 100% of the allocations
vested and converted Into Alllance UniChem
shares options at 1018 pence per Alliance
UniChem share following the sanction of the
merger by the Court

Each of these directors has voluntarily agreed to
continue to hold the shares awarded from the
2004 and 2005 allocatlons untll the earller of

the date they would have been able to realise
the value of the allocatlons under the rules of
the scheme If the merger had not occurred or
the date of ceasing to be employed by the
Company In the case of George Fairweather
and Steve Duncan sufficient shares were sold to
settle the income tax and National Insurance
liability arising on the vesting of the awards

Stefano Pessina and Crnella Barra exercised
their awards arising from the 2003 allocations
for £1 respectively on 16 March 2006 The
market price of an Alllance UniChern share on
the date of exercise was 933 5 pence Steve
Duncan exercised his award arising from the
2003 allocation for £1 on 14 March 2006 The
market price of an Alliance UniChem share on
the date of exercise was 918 pence

George Falrweather exercised 2,804 shares

at 337 pence which had matured under the
Alliance UniChem Savings Related Share Option
Scherne on 28 July 2006 the market price of an
Alllance UniChern share on the date of exercise
was 1068 0 pence

[an Meakins the former Chief Executive of
Alliance UniChem recelved an award equivalent
to 100% of his 2004 and 2005 allocations and
these provided an award of £1,025,000 In cash

Alllance UmChem lan Meakins -
share incentive plan

fan Meakins was granted an option to acquire
119946 Alliance UniChemn shares on 17
December 2004 In accordance with his service
agreement with Alllance UniChem he was also
granted a further option to acquire 153 571
Alliance UniChem shares matching the initial
award These awards vested as a consequence
of the merger and the Initial award and
matching award reallsed a total of £1.977430
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Board report on remuneration (continued)

Directors’ shareholdings

The beneficial Interests of the Directors in office at 31 March 2007 and their families In the share capital of the Company at 31 March 2007 are shown
below The Company s register of Directors’ interests which Is open to inspection contains full details of Directors interests In the Company s shares

Shareholdings Ordinary shares 2007 Ordinary shares 2006
Sir Nigel Rudd 49028 31,600
S Pessina’ 145,599.108 145048918
R A Baker 24,514 6226
G R Fairweather 83171 83171
QO Barra' 559,021 559,021
S W J Duncan' 44 419 64,419
} S Wheway' 4,567 4,567
G N Dawson 2,689 2689
W A Loader 8,159 8159
T C Parker 4,263 4263
H Ploix 2,740 2,740
P Ponsolle' 693 666
M Stach! 1,500 -

1 The holdings disclosed in 2006 are at the date of appointment on 31 July 2006

As at 31 March 2007 145,300 000 shares of the interest of Stefano Pessina are held by Alliance Santé Participations S A Stefano Pessina indirectly wholly
owns Alliance Sante Particlpations S A, which is registered In Luxembourg and its Directors include Stefano Pessina and Ornella Barra The other interests

of Ornella Barra in the Company s shares are as detailed in this report

Each executive Cirector is deemed as potentlal beneficiaries to have an interest in 4,321,954 (2006 5 374 115) ordinary shares of the Company held by Boots
(QUEST) Trustee Ltd on behalf of Boots Qualifying Employee Share Trust, established in connection with the Company s UK All Employee SAYE Share Option
Scheme in 3 749682 (2006 2 039,980) ordinary shares of the Company held by Boots Share Plan Trustees Ltd, on behalf of The Boots Company PLC AESOP

Trust and The Boots Group PLC AESOP Trust, established to hold shares for employees In connection with the Company s AESOP and in 589,619 (2006 589,619)
ordinary shares of the Company held by Boots ESOP Trust Ltd, on behalf of Boots Employee Trust established to facilitate the operation of the Company's

executlve bonus schemes

Stefano Pessina George Falrweather Ornella Barra and Steve Duncan are deemed, as potential beneficlarles, to have an interest In 3 333,029 ordinary
shares of the Company held by The Alliance UniChem 1992 Employee Share Trust The trust exists in connection with the discretionary Alliance UniChem
1997 Share Option Scheme The Trust has not acquired any shares In the Cormpany since the merger Under the terms of the Trust, the dividend recelvable
on shares held Is 0 001 pence per share This waiver was lIfted for the merger dividend No Director holds any loan capital The personal shareholdings

of Directors in office at 31 March 2007 remain unchanged on 2 May 2007 other than Richard Baker who now holds a further 11 shares purchased under
the share investment plan element of the AESOP and the number of shares held by Boots Share Plan Trustees Ltd has reduced thereby reducing each

Director’s deemed interest




Other interests
Save for the Interests mentioned In this report no Director was materially Interested in any contract during the financial year that Is or was significant
to the business of the Company or any subsldiary undertaking

No Director has common or other significant links with any other Director {(except in the case of executive Directors holding directorships of subsidlary
companies of the Company)

Pension entitlement
Detalls of pensions earned by the executive Directors in office at 31 March 2007 or at date of retirement are shown below

Directors’ Pension Entitlements 31 March 2007

Transfer Transfer

Increase Increase value of value of
Accrued in accrued In accrued accrued accrued Transfer
pension at pension dunng pension during benefits asat  benefits as at Increase in value of net
31 March 2007 the year to the year to Money 31 March 2006 31 March 2007 transfer of inflation
or date of 31 March 2007 31 March 2007 purchase or date or date of value of in sccrued
resignation gross of netof contributions joined resignation benefits benefits
from Board inflation inflation during Board from Board less directors  less Directors
£000 Age if earlier per annurm per annum the year if later If earher contributions  contributions
R A Baker 44 71 22 20 - 724 1124 347 271
G R Falrweather? 49 78 22 20 5924 883 277 212
O Barra' 53 - - 1392 - - - -
S W J Duncan® 56 115 - - - 16884 1,855 167 -
) S Wheway ? 40 16 8 8 - 1234 229 86 87
P Bateman * 53 88¢ 7 4 - 1462 17198 249 72
J R Smart 47 35°¢ 6 4 - 484 629 130 71

The information above has been based on data supplied by the advisers of the respectlve schemes

QOrnella Barra appointed on 31 July 2006 is a member of the Intemational Penslon Scheme (money purchase scheme)

Contributions paid since 31 July 2006

George Fairweather and Scott Wheway appointed on 31st July 2006

Flgures shown as at 31 July 2006

Jim Smart and Paul Baternan resigned on 31 July 2006

Flgures shown as at 31 July 2006

The increase in accrued pension during the year Is after deducting the increase due toinflation at the rate of 3 6% on the previous year s accrued pension

AVC contribution and benefits are excluded from the table

Steve Duncan was appolnted on 31 huly 2006 and he holds 2 deferred pension with the Alllance UniChern Group UK Pension Scheme His accrued pension has not increased between hus date
of appointment as director and 31 March 2007

O W~ bW A -

The pension entitiement shown is that which would be paid annually on retirement based on service to the end of the year Retained benefits from
previous employments are taken into account The Increase In accrued pension during the year is after deducting the Increase due to inflation at the
rate of 3 6%, on the previcus year's accrued pension Members of the schemes have the option to pay additional voluntary contributlons

By order of the Board

Tim Parker

Chalrman of the remuneration committee
2 May 2007
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Audit committee report

The audit committee consists of four
independent non-executive Directors Guy
Dawson (committee Chairman) Adrlan Loader
Hélene Ploix and Patrick Ponsolle The Group
Finance Director the Group Financlal Controller
the Director of Internal Audit & Risk
Management and representatives from the
external auditors are normally Invited to attend
meetings as appropriate The committee met
five times durlng the year the attendance record
of members belng shown in the table on page
44 In the Board report on corporate governance

The Director of Internal Audit & Risk
Management has the right of direct access to
the committee and the Chairman of the
Company The committee has the right to seek
and receive any Informatlion It requires to fulfil
Its dutles and all Directors and employees are
directed to co-operate with any request made
by the committee and to attend on demand any
meeting of the committee to answer questions

At each meeting the committee met the Director
of Internal Audit & Risk Management and
representatives from the external auditors
without executive management present. The
Chairman of the committee attends the AGM to
respond to any shareholder questions that might
be raised on the committee’s activities Following
each committee meeting, the Chairman of the
committee reports material matters to the Board
at the next avallable opportunity

Guy Dawson the Chairman of the committee
was, until 2002 Chairman of European
Investment Banking at Merrill Lynch and is
currently a partner In Tricorn Partners an
independent corporate advisory business,
and accordingly has recent relevant financlal
experlence

The committee agreed that for the period
following the merger KPMG Audit Plc would
continue to act as auditors for the former Boots
Group companles Including acting as auditors
of the Group and Company They have had
responsibility for issulng public opinions to the
members of the Group and Company for the
interim and full year consolldated financial

staterments Deloltte & Touche LLP have
undertaken audit work to an agreed scope for
the former Alliance UniChem businesses
reporting to KPMG Audit Plc Prior to the merger
Deloitte & Touche LLP were retained to deliver
nternal audit services to the former Boots
Group companies Under transitional
arrangements Deloitte & Touche LLP continue
to pravide these services to companies within
the Group which are not subject to external
audit by them, to provide continuity for Internal
control purposes No Deloitte & Touche LLP
staff undertaking Internal audit services were
allowed to be involved in any external audit
work and no staff working on the external audit
were allowed to undertake any Internal audit
services Following the recent appointment

of the Director of Internal Audit & Risk it is
intended that Deloitte & Touche LLP will phase
out their internal audit services by June 2007 by
which time Internal resources will be established
capable of delivering against a full audit and risk
managerment agenda

As disclosed In the Directors’ report the

audit committee will undertake a selection
process far the selection of a single external
auditor for the Group for 2007/08 and make
recommendations to the Board as appropriate
Details of the Board recommendations will be
set out in the notice of meeting of the AGM
to be sent out to shareholders

Terms of reference

The terms of reference for the committee,
which are available on the Company s website,
were reviewed and updated in October 2006

The main responsibllities of the committee, which
are set out In the terms of reference areto

« review the effectiveness of systems for
internal financlal control financial reporting
and risk management,

+ monitor review and challenge where
necessary the integrity of financia!
statements and formal announcements
relating to the financial performance of
the Group,

Governance (continued)

« consider the appolntment,re-appointment
and/or removal of the external auditors,

« consider any change to the independence
of objectivity of and fees to the
external audltors

conslder the effectlveness of the external
audit process taking into consideration
relevant UK professional and regulatory
requirements,

malntaln and monitor a policy on the
engagement of the external auditors
to supply non-audit services

agree with the external auditors the scope
and nature of thelr audit, review their quality
control procedures, ensure ¢e-ordination of
audlts review their management letter and
rmanagernent’s response and discuss any
issues arising from their audit,

review the programme, resourcing,
effectiveness and results of the internal
audit function and approve any change
to the Director of Internal Audit & Risk
Management,

oversee the process for dealing with
complaints received by the Group regarding
accounting Internal accounting controls or
auditing matters and the confidential
anonymous submission by employees of
concerns regarding questionable accounting
or auditing matters,

review the consistency of accounting
policies,

« monitor compliance with the Group's
borrowing limits

revlew the status of any material litigation
and contingent ligbilitles involving the
Group and

+ monltor compliance with the principles of
good boardroom practice




Operation of the audit committee
During the year the business consldered and
discussed by the committee included

« arevlew of the financial disclosures
contalned in the Interlm and Annual Reports
to shareholders together with the
assoclated Interim and preliminary
announcements

« a review of the Company's compllance with
the Code, including disclosures required to
be included in the Annual Report,

« areview of accounting policies

= areview of fair value adjustments under
IFRS 3 inrespect of intanglble assets
acquired during the year,

» a review of International Accounting
Standard 34 (' 1AS 34"} which established
that the standard would be followed for the
2007/08 interim resufts when it became
mandatory

» proposals from the external auditors KPMG
Audit Ple and Deloitte & Touche LLP about
thelr independent review of the financial
informatlon contalned within the 2006/07
Interim Report and thelr audit programrme
for the 2006/07 financial statements,

« the amounts of audit and non-audit fees
paid to the external auditors
(The amounts for the year are set out
in note 8 to the financlal statements)
The Company’s policy on non-audit services
provided by the external auditors is set
out on this page and page 66,

« areview of the objectivity, ndependence
and effectiveness of the external auditors,

= arevlew of Internal controls and practices
and risk management procedures including
an annual risk review A unified approach 1s
belng adopted covering policies and
procedures for risk management
commencing with a full business risk review
embedded as part of the annual strategic
planning process The committee monitored
and reviewed the effectlveness of the
Group’s Internal control systems accounting

policies and practices and risk ranagement
procedures, as well as the Company's
statement on internal controls The Board
retains overall responsibility for internal
control and the Identification and
management of risks

« proposals from the internal audit function
setting out the internal audit plan for the
first quarter of 2007/08 This involved using
the audit planning processes used by each
of the former Boots and the Alliance
UniChem businesses by establishing
business priorities and commen areas of
focus for the two merged businesses,

s the results of audits conducted
by the internal audit function and
management s response to Issues ralsed,

» an annual review of the effectiveness
of the internal audit function The
committee considered that the function
had been effectlve throughout the year

s a review of the arrangements for employees
to ralse concerns, in confidence about
possible wrongdoing in financial reporting
or other matters further details of which
are set out below,

« a review of the principal performance
measurement metrics for the enlarged
Group,

« a farr value review of the assets and liabilities
of the two businesses at the time of the
merger in accordance with IFRS 3,

« a review of the accounting assumptlons
used for the pension schemes of the two
businesses at the time of the merger

» a control self assessment process involving
letters of representation from each of the
business units which are presented to the
Committee at half year and full year
reporting perlods to provide a formal
process for confirmation of compliance
with fnternal controls, and

+» a review of the committee’s effectiveness
which concluded that It had discharged
its responsibilities as set out In its terms of
reference

Policy on non-audit services

As part of Its remit the committee keeps under
review the nature and extent of audit and non-
audit services provided to the Group by the
external auditors The committee has approved
a policy for the approval of non-audit services
provided by the external auditors Under this
policy the external auditors cannot be engaged
to perform any of the following services

+ bookkeeping for underlying accounting
records or preparatlon of financial
statements to be audited and used outside
the Group

+ appraisals or other valuation services where
the results may be incorporated in audited
financial statements,

« actuarial or pension advisory services,

« management functions including human
resources,

« Investment advisory services including
broking or investrment banking,

« legal services
« internal audit {on an outsourced basis),

» design and/or implementation of financial
Information systems and

» any other services that a listed company’s
external auditors are prohibited from
providing under UK or US regulations
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This list of prohibited non-audit services may
only be varled by the audit committee

Under this policy it has been agreed that dueto
their significant understanding of the Group's
business and therefore ensuring cost efficiency,
the external auditors may be engaged for the
fallowing non-audit services

» assistance in tax compliance activities
including tax advisory services,

» due diligence activitles assoclated with
potentlal acquisitions or disposals of
businesses,

» accountants reports for any Stock Exchange
purposes and ad hac reporting on historical
financlal information, and

« any other services which are not prohibited
and are authorised by the audit committee

The policy requires the fees for these permitted
non-audit services 1o be approved in advance
by the cormmittee Where such services are
considered to be recurring In nature such as for
tax and due diligence approval may be sought
for the full financial year at the beginning of
that year Approval for other permitted non-
audit services has to be sought on a case by
case basis Where no committee meeting is
scheduled within an appropriate time frame,
the approval Is to be sought from the Chairman
of the committee The fee threshold for
pre-approved services was set at £0 7 million
for each of the auditors KPMG Audit Plc and
Deloitte & Touche LLP after the merger The
transitional fees paid to Deloltte & Touche LLP
for internal audit services were in addition to
any pre pald fees paid to Deloitte & Touche LLP
and were specifically excluded from this policy
throughout the transitional period

Policy on employment of former
employees of the external auditor

As part of its remit the committee keeps under
review the oblectivity independence and
effectiveness of the external auditor The
committee approved a revised paper on the
policy on employment of former employees

of external auditors Under this policy

+ no member of the external audit team can
be recruited Into a Group role in the
Company for a perlod of two years following
their assoclation with the audit and

« no current or former partner of the external
auditor may be appointed as a Director of
the Company for three years after the
termination of their employment with the
external auditor

Until such time as the Company movesto a
single audit firm this policy shall apply to both
KPMG Audit Plc and Deloltte &Touche LLP

Wtustleblowing

24 hour helplines, managed by Expolink
operated in the UK during the year The
helplines provide reports to designated officers
of the Company including the Company
Secretary who In turn report cases to the
committee The committee monitor these
cases until resolution is completed Following
the merger a process to review the
effectiveness and harmonise the reporting lines
throughout the Group Is belng undertaken 1o
take account of the best practice framework
taken from the Public Concern at Work
reference material Throughout the rest of the
Group the Company's whistleblowing policy
sets out arrangements whereby employees can
report to the Company Secretary any concerns
or suspicions about possible wrongdoing in
financial reporting or other matters which are
reported to the committee

Guy Dawson
Chalrman of the audit committee
2 May 2007




Directors’ responsibilities statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the
Annual Report and the Group and Company
financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare
Group and Company financial statemenits for
each financial year Under that law they are
required to prepare the Group financlal
statements In accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the EU and have elected to prepare the
Company financlal statements on the same basis

The Group and parent Company financial
staternents are required by law and IFRSs as
adopted by the EU and applicable law to present
fairly the financial position of the Group and the
Company and the performance for that period,
the Companles Act 1985 provides In relation to
such financial statermnents that references in the
relevant part of that Act to financial statements
giving a true and fair view are references to their
achieving a falr presentation

In preparing each of the Group and Company
financial statements the Directors are required
to

+ select suitable accounting policies and then
apply them consistently,

« make judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent,

« state whether they have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
EU, and

« prepare the financial statements on the
geing concern basis unless it Is Inappropriate
to presume that the Group and the
Company will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records that disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the parent Company and enable
thern to ensure that its financial statements
comply with the Companies Act 1985 They
have general responsibility for taking such steps
as are reasonably open to them to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities

Under applicable law and regulations the
Directors are also responsible for preparing a
Directors’ report Board report on gorporate
governance and Board report on remuneration
that comply with that law and those regulations

The Directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the corporate
and financial information Included on the
Company's website Leglslation in the UK
governing the preparation and dissemination
of financlal statements may differ from
legislation in other Jurisdictions
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Independent auditors report

to the members of Allance Boots plc

We have audited the Group and Company financial statements (the “financial statements”) of Alliance Boots plc for the year ended 31 March 2007 which
comprise the Group income statement the Group and Company statements of recognised income and expense the Group and Company balance sheets
the Group and Company cash flow statements and the related notes These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set
out therein We have also audited the information In the Beard report on remuneration that is described as having been audited

This report Is made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companles Act 1985 Cur audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them In an auditor s report and for no cther
purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responslbility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s
members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors
The Directors responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the Board report on remuneration and the financial statements In accordance with
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU are set out in the Directors responsibilities statement

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements and the part of the Board report on remuneration to be audited in accordance with relevant legal
and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the financlal statements and the part of the
Board report on remuneration to be audited have been properly prepared In accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and as regards the Group financial
statements Article 4 of the [AS Regulation We also report to you whether in our opinlon the information given In the Directors’ report 1s consistent with
the financlal statements The Information glven in the Directors report includes that specific Information presented In the risk management, performance
revlew and financial review that is cross referred from the principal activities, business review and development section of the Directors report

In addition we repart to you if, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, If we have not recelved all the Information and
explanations we require for cur audit, or if information specified by law regarding Directors' remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed

We review whether the Board report on corporate governance reflects the Company's compliance with the nine provisions of the 2003 Combined
Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority and we report if it does not We are not required to consider
whether the Board’s statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group s corporate
governance procedures or its risk and control procedures

We read the other inforrmation contained in the Annual Report and consider whether It is consistent with the audited financlal statements We consider
the Implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencles with the financial statements Our
responsibllitles do not extend to any other Information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland} 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit
Includes examination on a test basls of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures In the financial statements and the part of the Board report
on remuneratlon to be audited It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the Directors in the preparation
of the financlal statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Groups and Company s circumstances, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanatlons which we considered necessary in order to provide us with
sufficlent evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements and the part of the Board report on remuneration to be audited are free
from rmaterlal misstatement whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of
the presentation of Information In the financlal statements and the part of the Board report on remuneration to be audited

Opinion

In our epinlon

» the Group financial statements glve a true and fair view in accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the EU, of the state of the Group s affalrs as at
31 March 2007 and of its profit for the year then ended,

« the Company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU as applled In accordance with the
provisicns of the Companies Act 1985 of the state of the Company s affairs as at 31 March 2007,

+ thefinancial statements and the part of the Board report on remuneration to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 and as regards the Group financial statements Article 4 of the IAS Regulation, and

l lnfor ati}(g—'i\vfsln thelrectors report Is consistent with the financlal statements

PMG Audit P
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor
London 2 May 2007




Group income statement

for the year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006
Notes £million £mifhon
Continuing operations
Revenue 4 11,502 5027
Profit from operations before share of associates post tax earnings 46 441 369
Share of associates’ post tax earnings 19 39 —
Profit from operations 8 480 369
Finance income 1 251 187
Finance costs 12 (276) (207)
Profit before tax 455 349
Tax 13 (89) (45)
Profit after tax from continuing operations 366 304
Discontinued operations
Profit after tax from discontinued operations 3 21 1,470
Profit for the year 387 1,774
Attributable to
Equity shareholders of the Company 387 1774
Minority Interests - —
387 1,774
Earnings per share - total
Basic 14 48 4p 2594p
Diluted 14 48 2p 256 0p
Earnings per share — continuing
Basic 14 45 8p 44 4p
Diluted 14 45 6p 44 4p

Dividends pald to equity shareholders in the year and shown In the cash flow statement totalled £14% million (2006 £1,640 million)

The Board would ordinarily be recommending In the normal course of business a final dividend covering the perlod from 31 July 2006 until 31 March 2007
However the terms of the recommended offer for the Company by AB Acquisitions Limited announced on 20 April 2007 are such that the offer price is
inclusive of any final dividend Accordingly, no such final dividend will be paid However, if the Company Is not acquired by AB Acquisitions Limited {(or any
alternative offeror), the Board intends that the Company pay in due course an interim dividend, in respect of the year ended 31 March 2007 of an amount
equal to the final dividend that would have been paid

Statements of recognised income and expense

for the year ended 31 March 2007

2007 2006
Group £million fmillion
Exchange differences on overseas operations
— cuirency translation differences (11) 8
— currency translation differences recycled on disposal of Boots Healthcare International - (12)
Deflned benefit pension schemes
- actuarlal gains and losses 55 (77)
Available-for-sale investments
— gains on revaluation deferred in equity 6 -
50 (81)
Tax (charge)/credit on items taken directly to equity {12} 23
Income and expense recognised directly in equity 38 (58
Profit for the year 387 1774
Total recognised income and expense for the year 425 1716
Attributable to
Equity shareholders of the Company 425 1.717
Minority interests - (1
425 1,716
Company

There Is no recognised Income or expense for the Company other than the profit for the year as stated In note 32
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Balance sheets

as at 31 March 2007

Financial statements (continued})

Group Group Company Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Notes fmillion Ernlilion £million Emlllion
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 15 2,388 - - -
Other Intangible assets 16 1.508 147 - -
Property, plant and equipment 18 1.671 1,268 - -
Investments in associates 19 628 - - -
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 20 - - 7.571 3046
Avallable-for-sale investiments 2 55 - - -
Other receivables 23 58 32 - 1
Derivative financial instruments 27 3 2 - -
Deferred tax assets 25 4 55 1 1
6,315 1504 71572 3048
Current assets
Inventories 22 1,360 594 - -
Trade and other receivables 23 1,985 461 1,546 1230
Current tax assets 2 14 - 12
Cash and cash equivalents 24 404 856 290 774
Derivative financial Instruments 27 2 1 - 1
Assets held for sale 5 29 1 - -~
3,782 1927 1,836 2017
Total assets 10,097 3,431 9,408 5,065
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Borrowlngs 27 (565) (183} (225) (291)
Trade and other payables 26 2na2) {632) (978) (754)
Current tax liabillties (115) (56) (2) -
Provislons 3 (75) (62) - -
Derivative financlal instruments 27 (7) (1) - =
(2,874) (934) {1,205) (1,045)
Net current assets 908 993 631 972
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 27 {764) {575) (314) (531)
Other payables 26 (39) (30) N -
Deferred tax habilities 25 (456) 97) - -
Retirement benefit obligations 38 (26) (56} - -
Provisions 3 (54) (87 - -
Derlvative financial instruments 27 {121) - {2) -
(1,451) (845) (323) (531
Net assets 5772 1,652 7,880 3489
Equity
Share capital 32,35 360 181 360 181
Share premium 32 2 2 2 2
Shares to be issued 32 1" - n -
Retained earnings 32 1,393 1131 1,052 1,154
Merger reserve 32 3972 3N 6,426 2,123
Capital redemption reserve 32 29 29 29 29
Other reserves 32 (7} (2) - -
Shareholders’ equity 5760 1652 7,880 3489
Minority interests 32 12 - - -
Total equity 5772 1652 7880 3489

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 2 May 2007 and are signed on its behalf by

Richard Baker

George Fairweather
Directors W 7



Cash flow statements

for the year ended 31 March 2007

Company
Group Group Company 2006
2007 2006 2007 restated
Notas Emillion £million £million fmillion?
Operating actlvities - continuing operations
Profit/(loss) from operations 480 369 622 (641)
Adjustments to reconclle profit/{loss) from operations to cash generated from operations
Share of associates post tax earnings (39) - - -
Depreciation amortisation and impairments 261 180 - -
Share-based compensation 9 5 - 5
Profit on disposal of businesses 7 - - -
Profit on disposal of property plant and equipment - a7y - -
{Reversal of iImpairment)/impairment of Investments in subsidlary undertakings - - (651) 632
Decrease in Inventories 9 65 - -
Increase In recelvables 10} 27) (315) {(510)
Increase/(decrease) in payables and provisions 26 127 222 {41}
Decrease In retirement benefit obligations (47) (47) — -
Cash generated from operations — continulng operatlons 682 501 (122) (555}
Tax (pald)/received (55) 69 3 (21}
Interest paid (92) (37) (88) (220}
Net cash from/{used in) operating activities — continuing operations 535 395 {207) (796)
Investing activities — continuing operations
Acquisition of businesses (96) - (30) (55)
Net cash of businesses acquired 76 - - -
Disposal of businesses 58 - - -
Purchase of investments in associates (2 - - -
Purchase of avallable-for-sale investments 7)) - - -
Dividends received from assaclates 14 - - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (213) (181) - -
Disposal of property, plant and equipment 18 308 - -
Interest received 64 21 156 289
Dividends received from subsidlaries - - 10 1,000
Net cash (used in)/from investing activities - continuing operations {88) 148 136 1234
Financing activities — continuing operations
Interest element of finance lease obligations N 4) - -
Dividends paid to equity shareholders (149 (1640) (149) {1,640}
Payment of Alliance UniChem dividend declared prior to acquisition 47) - - -
Net (repayment of proceeds from borrowIngs (786) 1 (104) 20
Repayment of caplital element of flnance lease obligations (26) (12) - -
Purchase of own shares - - (5 6)
Repurchase of own shares - (50) - {50}
Disposal of own shares 3 — - -
Repayment of loans to subsldlaries - - 16 291
Net cash used in financing activities — continuing operations {1,012) (1705) (242) (1385)
Net cash outflow from continuing operations (565) (1162) {313) 947)
Net cash inflow from discontinued operations' - 39 - -
Cash flows arising from disposal of discontinued operations (13) 1,854 - 1,539
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year {378) 73 {313) 592
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 813 80 589 (3)
Currency translation differences - 2 - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 24 235 813 276 589

I During the year ended 31 March 2006 discontinued operations had cash inflows from operating actlvities of £67 million cash autflows from Investing activities of £7 million and cash outflews from
financing activities of £21 million

2 Asset out innote 20 the Directors have identifled certain dividends received that shouid have been presented as reductlons in cost of investrnent rather than Income The reclassification has a
consequential effect on the recondiliation of profit from aperatlons to cash generated from operations from continuing operations There is no net impact on the cash flow statement
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Alliance Boots — 2007 Annual Report Financial statements (continued)

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2007

1 General iInformation

Alllance Boots plc (formerly Bocts Group PLC) is a public company Incorporated In the United Kingdom The address of Its registered office is disclosed

in the Information for shareholders section of the Annual Report The principal activities of the Group are described In the Directors report The principal
accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements of the Group and the Company are set out below These policies have been
applled consistently to all the years presented unless otherwise stated

2 Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted In the preparation of the financlal statements of the Group and the Company are set out below

Basis of accounting

The financial statements, prepared in Sterling rounded to the nearest £1 million have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the EU (adopted IFRSs) as they apply to the financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the year ended

31 March 2007

The financial staternents have been prepared on the historical cost basls, except for certaln areas where fair value measurement required by a specific
standard has been applied as identified in the accounting policies below

The preparation of financial statements In conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgerents, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policles and reported amounts In the financial statements The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions or estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note 40

A separate income statement for the Company has not been presented as permitted by section 230 (4) of the Compantes Act 1985

New accounting policies and future requirements

The accounting policles adopted are conslstent with those of the previous financial year except for the following new and amended [FRSs and IFRIC
interpretations durtng the year Adoption of these revised standards and interpretations did not have any material effect on the financial statements
of the Group and the Company

1AS 21 (Amendment) The Effects of Changes in Foretgn Exchange Rates,

IAS 39 (Amendment), Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Farecast Intragroup Transactions,

IAS 39 (Amendment) The Fair Value Option,

1AS 39 and IFRS 4 (Amendment) Financial Guarantee Contracts

IFRS 6, Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Rescurces,

IFRIC 4, Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease,

IFRIC 5, Rights to Interests arlsing from Decommissioning, Restoration and Environmental Rehabllitation Funds,
IFRIC & Liabilities arising from Particlpating In a Specific Market ~ Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

+ IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29 Financlal Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

Standards, amendments and interpretations that are not yet effectlve and have not been adopted early by the Group
The following standards, amendments and interpretations have been published and are avallable for early adoption but have not yet been applled by the
Group or the Company in these financial staterments

IAS 1 {Amendment), Capital Disclosures Effective for years commencing on or after 1 January 2007

IFRS 7 Financla! Instruments Effective for years commencing on or after 1 January 2007,

IFRS 8 Operating Segrnents Effective for years commencing on or after 1 January 2009

{FRIC 8 Scope of IFRS 2 Effective for years commencing on or after 1 May 2006,

{FRIC 9, Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives Effectlve for years commencing on or after 1 June 2006

IFRIC 10, Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment Effectlve for years commencing on or after 1 November 2006
[FRIC 11 IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions Effective for years comrencing an or after 1 March 2007,
[FRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements Effective for years commencing on or after 1June 2008

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these standards and Interpretations will have a material impact on the Group's financlal statements
in the perfod of initial application

Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended 31 March 2007 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries {together
referred to as the “Group™) and the Group's interest in assoclates

Subsidlarles are all entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities
The results of subsidlaries acquired or disposed of during the year are Included in the Group income statement from and to the date that control
COMmMmences or ceases as appropriate

An associate Is an entity over which the Group, elther directly or indirectly, Is In a position to exercise significant Influence by participating in but without
control, or joint control of the financial and operating policies of the entity Associates are accounted for using the equity method Unrealised profits
and losses recognised by the Group on transactions with an assoclate are eliminated to the extent of the Group's Interest In the associate concerned
Financial statements of some assoclates are prepared for different reporting perlods from that of the Group Adjustments are made for the effects of
transactions and events that occur between the reporting date of an associate and reporting the consolidated financial staterments of the Company




2 Accounting policies (continued)
All Intra-group transactions balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated on consolldation

In the Company balance sheet Investments in subslidlaries are stated at fair value at the date of acquisition less any dividends received out of the pre
acquisition profits of a subsidiary and provisions for subsequent impalrment. Where an Impairment is charged in the Income statement an equal amount
Is transferred from the merger reserve where avallable An Impairment reversal results in an equal transfer back to the merger reserve

Currency

Foreign currency transactions

At entity level, transactions In currencles other than the entity s functional currency are translated into the entity's functional currency at the exchange
rate ruling at the date of the transactions Monetary assets and llabillties denominated In foretgn currencles at the balance sheet date are translated at
the exchange rate ruling at that date Non-maonetary assets and llabillties that are measured in terms of historical cost in forelgn currencles are translated
using the exchange rates at the date of the transaction Non-monetary ltems measured at fair value In a forelgn currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined Exchange galns and losses are recognised in the income statement

Overseas operations

The assets and liabilltles of overseas operations including goodwilt and falr value adjustments arising on consalidation are translated into Sterling at
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date The results and cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Sterling at the average exchange
rate for the perlod which approximates to the underlying actual rates

Exchange differences arlsing from the translation of the results and net assets of overseas subsidiaries are recognised in the translation reserve
When an overseas operation s sold, the related balance in the translation reserve Is recognised in the Income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale
The cost of the Company's Investments in shares of overseas subsidiarles is stated at the rate of exchange In force at the date each investment was made

Revenue

Revenue shown on the face of the Income statement Is the amount derived from the sale of goods and services In the normal course of business outside
of the Group net of trade discounts value added tax and other sales-related taxes Revenue from the sale of goods 1s recognised when the Group has
transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership and control of the goods sold and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably Revenue
from services Is recognised when It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably

The accounting policies for the major revenue categories are as follows

Retail
Conslderation received from customers is recorded as revenue when the Group has completed full performance In respect of that consideration, which is
at the paint of sale

In respect of the Boots loyalty scheme (the Advantage Card), as points are issued to customers, the retail value of those points expected to be redeemed
is deferred When the points are used by customers they are recorded as revenue Sales of gIft vouchers are only included In revenue when vouchers
are redeemed

Wholesale
Revenue Is recognised upon despatch

When the Group acts [n the capacity of an agent rather than as the principal In a transaction revenue recognised is the net amount of commission
earned by the Group

When the Group acts as a logistics service provider, the service fees are recognised upon performance of the services concerned

Contract manufacturing
Revenue Is recognised upon despatch

Own brand export
Revenue is recognised upon despatch

Supplier rebates

Certaln suppliers offer rebates when purchases made in a period meet or exceed a predetermined level Rebates are only recognised when there 1s clear
evidence of this type of binding arrangement with the supplier and the rebate recelpt is both probable and can be reasonably estimated The rebate Is
recognised as a reduction in the purchase price

Exceptional items
Exceptional items are items dassifled by Alliance Boats as exceptional in nature These are not regarded as forming part of the trading activities of the Group
and so merit separate presentation to allow shareholders to understand the elements of finandal performance and to assess the trends in financial performance
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Alliance Boots — 2007 Annual Report Financial statemenits (continued)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2007

2 Accounting policies {continued)

Finance income

Finance Income comprises interest recelvable on funds Invested calculated using the effective Interest rate method, exchange gains expected returns
on pension scheme assets, gains on hedging instruments that are recognised in the Income statement and dividends received from investments

Finance costs
Finance costs comprise interest payable on borrowings calculated using the effective Interest rate method exchange losses, interest on penslon scheme
liabllitles the interest expense compenent of finance lease payments and losses on hedging instruments that are recognised In the income statement

Current/non-current classification
Current assets Include assets held primarily for trading purposes, cash and cash equivalents and assets expected to be realised In or Intended for sale
or consumption In the course of the Group’s operating cycle All other assets are classified as non-current assets

Current liabllittes include labllitles held primarlly for trading purposes, liabliities expected to be settled in the course of the Group s operating cycle and
those liabilitles due within one year from the reporting date All other liabilities are classifled as non-current ilabilities

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for under IFRS 3 using the purchase method of accounting The cost of acquisition is the consideration given in
exchange for the Identlfiable net assets This consideration includes any cash paid plus the falr value at the date of exchange of assets given liabllitles
Incurred or assumed and equity instruments Issued by the Group The cost of acquisition also Includes directly attributable costs

The acquired net assets are Inltially recognised at falr value ‘Where the Group does not acquire 100% ownership of the acquired company a minority
interest Is recorded as the minority’s proportion of the falr value of the acquired net assets Any adjustrnent to the falr values is recognised within twelve
months of the acquisition date

Goodwill on acquisitions comprises the excess of the fair value of the consideration plus any associated costs for investments in subsidlary undertakings
over the falr value of the Identiflable net assets acquired Any goodwill and fair value adjustments are recorded as assets and liabllities of the acquired
company and are recorded in the local currency of that company The costs of Integrating and reorganising acquired businesses are charged to the post-
acquisition income staternent

Goodwilll Is carrled at cost less accumutated impairment losses No amortisation Is charged

For acquisitions prior to 1 April 2004, goodwill is included on the basis of its deemed cost which represents the amount recorded under UK GAAP
Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to ¥ April 1998 was offset against reserves

Intangible assets

Retail pharmacy ficences

Retall pharmacy licences, being the exclusive right to operate as a pharmacy, are capitalised where there is an asset that can be separated from other
identiflable assets that together form a retall pharmacy business The cost of retall pharmacy licences less any impairment and accumulated amortisation
is included In Intangible fixed assets

Customer relationships and contracts

Customer relationships and contracts consist of established relationshtps with customers through contracts that have been acquired in a business
combination or non-contractual customer relationships that meet the requirement for separate recognition The falr value of custormer relatlonships
and contracts less any impairment and amortisation is included in intangible fixed assets

Software
Software that is not integral to an Item of property, plant and equipment Is recognised separately as an intangible asset Software Is stated at cost less
accurmulated amortisation and impairment losses

Certain direct and indirect development costs associated with Internally developed software including direct costs of materials and services, and payroll
costs for employees devoting time to the software projects, are capltalised once the project has reached the application development stage The costs
are armnortised from when the asset s ready for use Costs Incurred during the preliminary project stage, maintenance and training costs and research and
developrment costs are expensed as incurred

Amortisation

Amortisation is charged to the iIncome statement on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the intangible assets unless such lives are indefinite
Intangible assets with an Indefinite life are tested for impairment at each balance sheet date Other Intanglble assets are amortised from the date they
are avallable for use The useful lives are as follows

Retall pharmacy licences — indefinite
Customer relationships — 7 to 13 years
Custorner contracts - life of contract
Software costs — 3 to 8 years

* & & »

Amortisation perlods and methods are reviewed annually and adjusted if appropriate
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2 Accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment
All property plant and equipment is stated at cost or deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and impaimment losses

Depreciation of property plant and equipment s provided to write off the cost, less residual value in equal instalments over their expected useful
economic lives as follows

Freehold land and assets in the course of construction —not depreciated

Freehold and long leasehold buildings — depreciated to their estimated residual values over their useful economic lives of not more than 50 years,
Short leasehold propertles — remaining period of lease,

Plant and machinery - 3 to 10 years,

Fixtures fittings tools and equipment — 3 to 20 years

* & & & @

Residual values remaining useful economic lives and depreciation methods are reviewed annually and adjusted if appropriate
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount These are included In the income statement

Impairment of assets

The Group's assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether events or changes in circumstances exist that indicate that their
carrylng amount may not be recoverable If such an Indication exists, the asset s recoverable amount is estimated The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use An impalrment loss is recognised In the income statement for the amount by which the assets
carrying amount exceeds Its recoverable amount For the purposes of assessing Impairment assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately Identiflable cash flows (referred to as cash-generating units)

For goodwil!, other Intangible assets that have an Indefinite life and assets not yet avallable for use, the recoverable amount Is estimated annually or more
frequently when there is an indication that the asset is impaired

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrylng amount will be recovered through sale rather than through
continuing use The asset or disposal group must be available for immediate sale and the sale must be highly probable and within one year of the balance
sheet date

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of fair value less costs to sell and carrying amount

Impalrment losses on [nitial classification as held for sale are included In the income statement Gains reversing previous Impairment losses or losses on
subsequent remeasurements are also included in the income statement

Assets dassified as held for sale are disclosed separately on the face of the balance sheet and classified as current assets or llabllities with disposal groups
belng separated between assets held for sale and liabilities held for sale No amaortisation or depreciaticn is charged on non-current assets {(Including
those in disposal groups) classified as held for sale

A discontinued operation Is a component of the Group's business that represents a separate major line of business ar geographical area of operations that
has been disposed of, has been abandoned or meets the criteria for classification as held for sale

Discontinued operatlons are presented in the income statement as a separate line entitled 'Profit after tax from discontinued cperations’

Available-for-sale investments

The Group classifies its listed and unlisted investments as available-for-sale financlal assets and measures them at fair value The fair values of quoted
investments are based on current bid prices and for Investrments where there Is no quoted market price fair value is determined by using valuation
techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows or by reference to the current market value of simllar investments Gains and losses arlsing from
changes in fair values and exchange translation are recognised [n equity until the Investment is elther disposed or derecognised When an investment
is disposed, the related balance In the avallable-for-sale reserve Is recognised in the income statement as part of the gain or loss on sale

Inventories
Inventorles are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value With the exception of retall, cost Is determined using the first In, first out (FIFO)}
method Net realisable value Is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale

The cost of raw materials and packaging is their purchase price The cost of work in progress and finished goods comprises the purchase cost of goods
direct fabour and those overheads related to manufacture and distribution based on normal activity levels Retailing merchandise is valued at retail prices
and reduced by appropriate margins to take into account factors such as average cost obsolescence, seasonality and damage

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash in hand and short term deposits with maturitles of three months or less from the date of acquisition and bank
overdrafts Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings In current labilities on the balance sheet Bank overdrafts are incuded as a component of cash
and cash equlvalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement
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2 Accounting policies {continued)

Financial instruments and derivative financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilitles are recognised in the balance sheet at falr value when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
Instrument The Group uses derivative financlal Instruments to hedge Its exposure to forelgn exchange and Interest rate risks arlsing from operating,
financing and investing activities

In accordance with Its treasury policy the Group does not hold or Issue derivative financlal Instruments for trading purposes However, derivatives that
do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for at falr value with movements taken to the Income statement

Derivative financial Instruments are recognised initially at fair value with movernents on remeasurement recognised immediately in the Income
statement However where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being
hedged (see below)

The fair value of interest rate swaps Is the estimated amount that the Group would receive or pay to terminate the swap at the balance sheet date taking
Into account current interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the swap counterpartles

The fair value of forward exchange contracts Is thelr market price at the balance sheet date

Hedges

Cash flow hedges

Where a derlvative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the varlability in cash flows of a recognised asset or lfability or a highly probable
forecasted transaction the effective part of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is recognised directly In the hedging reserve

When the forecasted transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financlal asset or non-financial liabllity the associated cumulative gain
or loss Is removed from equity and included in the initial cost or other carrylng amount of the non-financial asset or liability

If the hedged forecasted transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a financial asset or financlal liabllity the assaclated galns and losses that
were recognised directly In equity are reclassified into profit or loss in the same period, or perlods during which the asset acquired or llabllity assumed
affects profit or loss

For cash flow hedges, other than those covered by the preceding two policy statements the assoclated cumulative gain or loss is remaved from equity
and recognised In the Income statement in the same perlod or perleds during which the hedged forecast transactlon affects profit or loss The ineffective
part of any gain or loss is recognised immediately in the income statement

When a hedging Instrument expires or Is sold, terminated or exercised or the entity revokes designation of the hedge refationship but the hedged
forecast transaction is stlll expected to occur the cumulative gain or loss at that point remains In equity and Is recognised In accordance with the above
policy when the transaction occurs If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place the cumulative unrealised gain or loss recognised in
equity Is recognised immediately In the income statement

Fair value hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument hedges the changes in the falr value of a recognlised asset or ltability or an unrecognised firm commitment

{or an identified portion of such an asset, liabllity or firm commitment) any gain or loss on the hedging instrument Is recognised in the income statement
The hedged item is also stated at falr value In respect of the risk(s) being hedged with any gain or loss recognised in the income statement

Hedge of monetary assets and habilties
Where a derivative financial instrument is used to hedge economically the foreign exchange exposure of a recognised monetary asset or liabllity,
no hedge accounting is applied and any gain or loss on the hedging Instrument s recognised In the Income staternent

Hedge of net investment in foreign operations

On consolidation the effective portion of the gain or loss on an instrument deslgnated as a hedge of net investment In a foreign operation that
Is determined to be an effective hedge Is recognised directly in the translation reserve The Ineffective portion Is recognised immediately In
the income statement

Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initlally at fair value less attributable transaction costs

Subsequent to Inlual recognition borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised
in the income statement over the perlod of the borrowings on an effective Interest basis

Employee benefits

Penstons

The Group operates a number of pension schemes under which contributions by employees and by the sponsoring companles are held in trust funds
separated from the Group's finances Where a pension arrangement is unfunded provision is made In the balance sheet for the obligation




2 Accounting policies (continued)

Defined benefit schernes

A defined benefit scheme Is a pension scheme that defines an amount of penston benefit that an employee will receive on retirement usually dependent
on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension schemes Is
calculated separately for each scheme by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned In return for thelr service in the current
and prior periods, that benefit Is discounted to determine its present value and the fair value of any scheme assets Is deducted

The discount rate Is the yleld at the balance sheet date on AA rated bonds that have maturity dates approximating to the terms of the Groups
obligations The calculauion Is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method Scherme assets are valued at bid price

Current and past service costs are recognised in operating profit finance costs include interest on pension scheme llabilitles and the expected return on
scheme assets is Included in finance income Past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested otherwise
they are amortised on a stralght-line basis over the average period untll the benefits become vested All actuarial galns and losses that arise in calculating
the Groups obligation in respect of a scheme are recognised immediately In reserves and reported in the statement of recognised income and expense

Defined contribution schemes
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are recognised as an expense In the Income statement as they fall due

Share-based compensation

The falr value of the employee services recelved In exchange for the grant of options Is recognised as an expense The total amount expensed over the
vesting period Is determined by reference to the fair vatue of the optlons granted excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions Non
market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to become exercisable At each balance sheet
date the Company revises estimates of the nurmber of optiens that are expected to become exercisable and the Impact of the revision of origlnal
estimates is recognised in the income statement and a corresponding adjustment 1s made to equity

Employee share trusts
Employee share trusts provide for the issue of shares to Group employees, including share issues under share options Own shares held by the Group's
employee share trusts are deducted at cost from equity

Leases

Leases, for which the Group assumes substantlally all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases including outsourced assets
held exclusively for the use of the Group The cost of assets held under finance leases is included under property, plant and equipment and depreciation
is provided in accordance with the policy for the class of asset concerned over the length of the lease The corresponding obligations under these leases
are shown as liabllities The finance charge element of rentals is charged to the income statement through finance costs to produce or approximate to,
a constant perlodic rate of charge on the remalning balance of the outstanding obligations Lease premiums pald are treated as prepayments and are
amortised over the period of the lease

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income statement on a straight-hine basls over the term of the lease Predetermined rental
increases included In the lease are recognised on a straight-line basis Benefits recelved as an incentlve to sign a lease, whatever form they may take, are
credited to the income statement on a straight-line basls over the lease term

Taxation
Tax on the profit or loss for the year represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax Tax Is recognised in the income statement except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly In equity, in which case it is recognised in equity

Current taxation

Current tax Is the expected tax payable on the taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported In the income staternent
because It excludes ltems of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and It further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and any
adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred taxatiorn

Deferred tax is provided in full using the balance sheet llabllity method It Is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on the temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financlal statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit The following temporary differences are not provided for those arising from the initial recognltion of goodwill, the Initial recognition of assets and
liabllities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit and differences relating to investments In subsidiaries to the extent that it Is not probable that
they will reverse in the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrylng amount of assets and labilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utillsed
The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be avallable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Additional income taxes that arise from receipt of dividends from the Group s subsidlary and associate interests are recognlised at the same time as the
payee recognises the llability to pay the related dividend except where the timing of the payment is not controlled by the Group In which case a deferred
tax liabllity is recognised In full against those distributable reserves
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2 Accounting policies {continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabllities are offset in the balance sheet when they relate to Income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group
Intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis

Provisions

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when there [s a present legal or constructive obligatlon as a result of a past event, it Is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and that cbligation ¢an be measured reliably If the effect of time value of money
Is material, provislons are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the llability

Dividends
Dividends are recognised through equity In the period in which they are declared

3 Exchange rates
The significant exchange rates relatlve to Sterling used in the preparation of the financlal statements were as follows

Average Year end
2007 2007 2006
Eight months Year ended Year ended
ended 31 March 31 March 31 March 2007 2006
Euro 1487 1475 1464 1472 1445
Turkish Lira 2843 2737
US Dollar 1936 1893 1778 1963 1734

4 Segmental information

Segmental information is presented In respect of the Group's business and geographical segments The primary format {business segments) is based on
the Group s management and internal reporting structure Inter-segment pricing is determined an an arms length basis Following the acquisition of
Alllance UniChem the Group reassessed its segmental analysls In the light of the size of the Group and Its structure Comparative information has been
restated to comply with this new segmental format

The Group comprises the following continuing business segments

Retall
Includes all the retail operations across the Group being principally Health & Beauty and Community Pharmacy In the UK along with retail businesses In
the Republic of Ireland Norway The Netherlands [taly and Thailand

Wholesale
Includes all the wholesale operatlons across the Group These include operations In the UK Norway, The Netherlands, Russia, the Czech Republic France,
Itaty and Spain
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Includes any activities which fall outside both the retall and wholesale segments being principally contract manufacturing own brand exports and

corporate costs, including unreallsed profit in stock adjustments

Other
Commercial
Activities &
Corporate
Retail  Wholesale Costs Eliminations Total
Revenue and profit for the year ended 31 March 2007 £milhon £million £rmillion £milhon £million
Continuing operations
External revenue 6,085 5,303 114 - 11,502
Inter-segment sales 14 735 - (749) -
Total revenue 6,099 6,038 114 (749) 11,502
Trading profit/{loss) 462 128 1) - 549
Exceptional Iterns (note 7) (37) (12) {28) - (7N
Amortisation of customer related Intangible assets — (31) - - (31)
Profit/{loss) from operations before share of associates post tax earmings 425 85 (69) - 441
Share of assoclates post tax earnings' 39
Profit from operations 480
Finance income 251
Finance costs {276)
Profit before tax 455
Tax? (89)
Profit after tax from continuing operations 366
Discontinued operations
Profit after tax from discontinued operations® 21
Profit for the year 387

1 Share of associates post tax eamnings Included exceptional Income of £6 million cormprising a profit on disposal of businesses of £3 millien and an exceptional tax credit of £3 million

2 Tax onexceptional tems amortisation of customer related Intangible assets and 1AS 39 timing differences amounted to a £35 milllon credit Tax also included a credit of £14 milllon In respect
of pharmacy disposals where the taxable gains arising are covered by previously unrecognised losses a release of £14 million of tax provislons in respect of exceptional items recogised in prior

years and £6 million of tax credits in respect of restating deferred tax for customer refated intangible assets following tax rate reductions in certain continental European countries

31 Profit after tax from discontinued operatlons included a £17 milllon release of a prior year tax provision no longer required and £4 milllon of other items net of tax

Other
Commercial
Activities &
Corporate
Retail Costs Total
Revenue and profit for the year ended 31 March 2006 £milhon Emillion £million
Continuing operations
External revenue 4939 88 5027
Trading profitf{loss) 352 (16 336
Exceptlonal items (note 7) 65 (32) 33
Profit/(loss) from operations 17 (48) 369
Finance income 187
Finance costs {207)
Profit before tax 349
Tax' (45)
Profit after tax from continuing operations 304
Discontinued operations
Profit after tax from discontinued operations? 1470
Profit for the year 1774

V Tax on exceptional items amounted to a £39 million credit relatingto continuing operations The tax charge also included a £12 million credit for adjustments In respect of prior periods

2 Profit after tax from discontinued operations induded an attributable tax credit of £31 milllon In respect of the disposal costs
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4 Segmental information (continued)
The primary segment assets and liabilities were as follows

2007 2006
Assets Liabilities Total Assets Liabilities Total
£million £milllon Emillion £million £million frnillion
Retall 4,857 (1,054) 3803 2400 (882) 1,518
Wholesale 4127 (1,405) 2,722 - - -
Other Commerclal Activlties & Corporate Costs 357 {154) 203 244 (69) 175
Discontinued operations - - - 1 2) m
Eliminations (343) 343 - (140) 140 -
Net operating assets 8,998 (2,.270) 6,728 2505 (813) 1,692
Investrnents In assoclates 628 -
Avallable-for-sale investments 55 -
Tax (565) {84)
Net (borrowlngs)/cash (1.048) 100
Retirement benefit obligations (26) {56)
Total 3772 1,652
Eliminations include inter-segrmental current accounts and interest bearing balances between subsidiary companies
Other segmental information In respect of the primary segments Is as follows
Other
Commercial
Activities &
Corporate
Retail  Wholesale Costs Total
Year ended 31 March 2007 £million £million Emillion Emillion
Amortisation of other intangtble assets 1 32 - 63
Capltal expenditure
- property, plant and equipment 181 22 1 204
—intangible fixed assets 28 13 S 46
Depreciation 159 18 - 177
Significant other non-cash expenses 15 1 1 17
Other
Commercial
Activities &
Corporate  Discontinued
Retail Costs Operations Total
Year ended 31 March 2006 Ermillon £milllon Emillion Emillion
Amaortisation of other intangible assets 25 2 - 27
Capital expenditure
- property, plant and equipment 156 7 4 167
- intangible fixed assets 33 4 43
Depreciation 140 7 - 147
Significant other non-cash expenses 5 1 - 6

Geographical segments

Segment revenue is based on the geographical location of the customers Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets

The secondary segment financial information was as follows

Revenue Segment assets Capital expenditure

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Emillion fmillion Emillion £mlllion £million £million

UK 6.530 4 895 6.443 3275 220 197
Norway 195 - 297 - 5 -
The Netherlands 499 - 600 38 2 -
France 2,516 - 1,220 27 " 2
Italy 619 - 485 - 6 -
Spain 697 - 277 - 2 -
Other 573 245 1118 231 4 n
Intra-group {127) (113) (343) (140} - -
11,502 5,027 10,097 3431 250 210
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5 Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Discontinued operations

in the year ended 31 March 2007 profit after tax from discontinued operations of £21 million related to a £17 millon release of a prior year tax provision
no longer required in respect of previously disconttnued operations and £4 million of other items net of tax, relating to operations discontinued In
previous years

The principal disposal in the year ended 31 March 2006 was the Boots Healthcare International business to Reckitt Benckiser {completed on 31 January
2006) The consideration was £19 billion The Portland Ceramics business was also disposed of in the prior year The disposal of Boots Healthcare
Internaticnal was largely tax free due to the substantial shareholding exemption rules and the utllisation of capital losses previously not recognised

for deferred tax purposes The tax credit of £31 million related to tax rellef due on the costs associated with the disposal

The results of the discontinued operatlons in the year ended 31 March 2006 were as follows

2006
Emillion
Revenue 444
Profit from operations S0
Flnance income 2
Finance costs (2)
Profit before tax 90
Attributable Income tax expense (22)
Proflt on disposaf of discontinued operations 1,371
Attributable tax credit 31
Profit for the year 1470
The effect of the disposal on Individual assets and liabilities of the Group was as follows
20086
£million
Other Intangible assets (295)
Property plant and equipment (49)
Inventories (56)
Trade receivables (146)
QOverdrafts (net of cash and cash equivalents) 40
Trade payables 129
Income and deferred tax {17)
Net identifiable assets (394)
Conslderatlon received' 1878
Disposal and other termination costs (125)
Exchange gains recyded 12
Profit on disposal of businesses 131
Attributable tax credit 31
Profit on disposal 1,402
Consideration recelved satisfied in cash 1926
Costs of disposal paid (72)
Net cash inflow 1854

¥ Consideration recerved was cash consideratlon of £1926 million less an adjustment for net borrowings items In the disposal balance sheet of £48 milion

For the Company, the cash inflow of £1 539 milllon was the net proceeds received from the sale of Boots Healthcare International companies owned
directly by the Company

Assets held for sale

The Group is In the process of selling a number of pharmacies as part of the undertaking to the Office of Fair Trading As such these are dassified as
disposal groups held for sale The majority of these were sold in April 2007 In the prior year two properties with a net book value of £1 million were
classifled as held for sale

In summary the following are classified as held for sale In the balance sheet

2007 2006
fmitlion Emillion
Retall pharmacy licences 24

Inventorles 2
29

Property, plant and equiprment 3 1
1
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6 Profit from operations before share of associates’ post tax earnings

Before
exceptional Amortisation
items and of customer
amortisation of related Before
customer related Exceptional  intangible exceptional  Exceptional
intangible assets items assets 2007 Items. tems 2006
frillion £rillion Emillion Emillion frmillion Emillton Ermillion
Revenue 11,502 - - 11,502 5027 - 5,027
Cost of sales (8.390) 4 - (8,391) {2782) - (2,782)
Gross profit 3112 n - 311 2,245 - 2,245
Selling distribution and store costs (2,218) {60) (31) (2,309} (1,687) (124) {1,811
Adminlstrative costs (345) {16) - {361) {222) 157 (65)
Profit from operations before share of assoclates
post tax earnings 549 {77} (31} 441 336 33 369
7 Exceptional items
2007 2006
Emillion Ermnillion
Costs in relation to merger synergies (23) -
Pharmacy systems harmonisation 2 -
Systerns rationalisation and supply chain reconfiguration’ (25) @n
French wholesale network restructuring? (10) -
Restructuring of Other Commercial Actlvities? (23) -
Health & Beauty pharmacy disposals* 7 -
Store refurbishment costs - (33)
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 7
Proflt on sale and leaseback® - 150
Other (1) -
{77} 33
1 Assoclated with the systems rationalisation and supply chain reconfiguration programme within the Health & Beauty business
2 Arnising from the restructuring of the warehouse network in France
3 Arising on restructuring decisions in contract manufacturing and own brand export business
4 Profit on disposal of Health & Beauty pharmacles sold in accordance with the undertakings given to the Office of Fair Trading
5 Profiton sale and leaseback of 312 stores in July 2005
8 Profit from operations
The following items have been included In arriving at profit from operations
2007 2006
Notes Emillion frullion
Amortisation of other intangible assets 63 27
Depreciation of property plant and equlprnent
—owned assets 153 125
— held under finance leases 24 22
Research and development costs 5 16
Staff costs 10 1,393 1,004
An analysis of the total remuneration pald to the Group's principal auditor 1s provided below
2007 2006
£millien Emilion
Audtt of the Group and Company financial statements 08 02
Audtt of subsidiary financial statements 06 05
Other services supplied as required by legislation 10 1
Other services relating to taxation 07 04
Services relating to corporate finance transactions 02 04
All other services - 01

As detalled in the Audit commuittee report, following the rmerger, KPMG Audit plc has continued as the Company's auditors and auditors of the former
Boots businesses and Deloitte & Touche LLP has continued as auditor to the former Alliance UniChem businesses Audit fees paid to Deloltte & Touche
LLP In respect of this audit work arnounted to £1 5 miflion Non audit fees paid to Deloltte & Touche LLP In the year amounted to £1 8 million Including
£1 4 million for the provision of Internal audit services to former Boots businesses under transitional arrangernents agreed prior to the merger




9 Acquisitions and disposals of businesses

Acquisitions

Alliance UniChem

On 31 July 2006 the Company acquired 100% of the ordinary shares of Alllance UniChern Plc (“Alliance UnIChem"} by means of a scheme of arangement
between Alliance UniChern and Its shareholders The schermne of arrangement was achleved by cancelling Alliance UniChem shares and Issuing new shares
In Boots Group PLC to existing Alllance UniChem shareholders under a fixed share ratio of 1332 Boots Group PLC shares for each Alllance UniChem share
On completion of the transaction Boots Group PLC was renamed Alliance Boots plc

The total purchase consideration of £3,850 milllon included £3,840 million for the Issue of 481 8 million ordinary shares at a fair valua of £797 per share,
£11 million for ordinary shares to be Issued in respect of outstanding share options, less £31 milllon for ordinary shares held in employee share trusts [n
addition, £30 milllon of costs were incurred on the acquisition

Alliance UniCherm Is a pan European distributor of healthcare products and provider of healthcare related services The Investment in Alllance UniChem
has been Included In the Company's balance sheet atits fair value at the date of acquisitlon

The book values of the identiflable assets and liabllities and their fair value to the Group at the date of acquisition were as follows

Book value
befare Fair value
acquisition adjustments Fair value
Ermitlion £million Emitlion
Intangible assets 790 572 1,362
Property plant and equipment 348 64 412
Investments in assoclates 398 205 603
Avallable-for-sale investments 42 - 42
Inventories 749 1 750
Assets held for sale 52 33 85
Trade and other receivables 1,525 - 1,525
Cash and cash equivalents 191 - 191
Borrowings (1,483) (20) (1,503)
Trade and other payables (1411} (58) (1,469)
Current and deferred tax liabilitles (148) (295) (443)
Retirernent benefit obligations {78) - (78)
975 502 1477
Minority interests (12)
Goodwilll arising on acquisition 2,385
3,850
Satisfied by
Falr value of shares Issued/to be issued 3,820
Costs associated with the acquisition 30
3,850

From the date of acquisition Alliance UnlChem contributed £124 million to the profit of the Group If the combination had taken place at the beginning
of the year, the profit for the Group would have been £438 million and revenue from continuing operations would have been £14 608 million

The goodwill of £2 385 million represents the Intanglble assets that could not be Individually separated and rellably measured due to their nature
This Included the increased ability to capitalise on the growth in demand for healthcare and beauty products the enhanced international growth
opportunities In new markets by utilising the complementary skills of the businesses the cost synergies achievable through the integration,
combined with revenue benefits from the application of retall pharmacy and wholesale skills across the enlarged Group

9 Acquisitions and disposals of businesses (continued)

Other acquisitions

Other acquisitions during the year included the acquisition of the trade and assets of Cardinal Health, the business being subsequently renamed Cordia
Healthcare the acquisition of 33 pharmacies In the UK and The Netherlands and eight retall outlets in Norway Total consideration was £67 million, which
after net assets falr valued at £55 million resulted in goodwill of £12 million arising on acquisition

Disposals
During the year the Group disposed of 68 pharmacies in accordance with the undertakings given to the Office of Fair Trading Proceeds were £58 million
which on net assets of £51 milllon led to a profit of £7 milllon recorded as exceptional items Disposals in the prior year are disclosed in note 5
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10 Staff costs

The average monthly number of persons employed by the Group including Directors and part-time staff, was

2007 2005
Number of Full time Number of Full tirme
heads equivalents heads  equivalents
Continuing operations
Retail 69477 42,078 60,843 35,954
Whoalesale 9893 9,234 - -
Other Commerclal Activitles & Corporate Costs 2,573 2477 2,999 2,870
81,943 53,789 63,842 38824
Discontinued operations - - 1,999 1907
81,943 53,789 65 841 40731
Costs incurred In respect of these employees were
2007 2006
£million frrullion
Wages and salaries 1,181 864
Soclal secunty costs 126 69
Pension costs 77 66
Share-based compensation 9 5
1,393 1004
There are no personnel expenses in the Company
11 Finance income
2007 2006
Emillion frnillion
Interest Income
Bank depaosit interest Income 43 17
Other finance income 22 7
65 24
Expected return on pension scheme assets 185 163
Gains on derivative financial instruments
Ineffectiveness on falr value hedges 1 —
251 187
12 Finance costs
2007 2006
Emillion frmilion
Interest expense
Bank loans and overdrafts 34 7
Other loans' 55 29
Finance charges on finance leases 7 4
26 40
Interest on pension scheme liabilities 180 167
276 207

1 Included in other loans is interest payable on the £300 million Eurobond of £16 million (2006 £16 milllon) interest payable on the €300 million Eurobond of £7 milion (2006 £5 million) and

Interest payabfe on serwor notes of £15 mitlion {2006 £nil)
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13 Tax

An analysis of the tax charge/{(credit) In the year was as follows

Continuing Continuing Discontinued Discontinued

2007 2006 2007 2006
£million fmillion Emillion fmilhon
UK corporation tax
Current tax on income for the year at 30% (2006 30%) 131 68 (15) (3)
Double tax relief (8) - - -
Ad|ustments In respect of prior years 24 (0 - 2
Exceptional adjustments In respect of prior years (14) - - -
85 58 {15} (1
Overseas tax
Current tax on Income for the year 25 6 - 1
Adjustments In respect of prior years 1 - - -
26 6 - i
Current tax charge 11 64 {15) -
Deferred tax
Deferred tax charge/{credit) relating to the origination and reversal of temporary differences
- UK 47) (29) - (5)
- overseas )] - . @
Remittable associates’ earnings 3 - - -
Adjustments In respect of prior years 16 (3 - -
Adjustrments due to changes In tax rates {8) - - -
37 (32) - 1]
Deferred tax charge on defined benefit pension schemes 15 13 - -
Deferred tax credit (22) {19) - 9
Tax charge/{credit) in the income statement 89 45 (15) ()]

The underlying tax charge, calculated before exceptional items, amortlsation of customer related intanglble assets, [AS 39 timing differences deferred
tax restatements for customer related Intangible assets and cther exceptional tax credits, reconclles to the tax charge in the year as follows

Continuing  Continulng Discontinued  Discontinued

2007 2006 2007 2006
£million £million Efmillion Emilllon

Underlying tax charge 158 96 - 23
Tax on -
— exceptional ltems (26) {39} 2 -
— amortisation of customer related Intangible assets )] - - -
— restating deferred tax on customer related intangible assets {6} - - -
Other exceptional credits (28) (12) (17) (32)

89 a5 (15) 9

The Groups principal operations are in Europe and therefore the appropriate standard rate of tax is the average of the standard tax rates in the countries
of operation, weighted by the amount of profit on ordinary activities before taxation The reconcillation of expected total tax charge is based on this
standard tax rate of 29 8%

The tax rate which we deflne as the tax charge expressed as a percentage of profit from operations before share of associates post tax earnings, net of
net finance costs, was 21 4% This compares to arate of 12 9% in the previous year The increase In the tax rate was mainly due to the utilisation in the
previous year of previously unrecognised losses to shelter the profit on a sale and leaseback transactlon, and also a release of a deferred tax liabllity no
longer required following this transaction

In the current period the effective tax rate Is lower than the expected rate of 29 8% malnly as a result of the recognition of previously unrecognised tax
losses the utilisation of previously unrecognised capltal losses and the release of provisions no longer required

The reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2006 has been restated to the same basis as for the cument year using a standard tax rate of 29 2% for
contlnuing operations and 29 9% for discontinued operations
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13 Tax (continued)

The reconclliation of the expected total tax charge was as follows

Continuing

Continuing Discontinued

Discontinued

2007 2006 2007 2006
£million £million £million Emillion
Profit before tax 455 349 6 1461
Less share of assoclates’ post tax earnings (39) — - —
416 349 6 1,461
Expected tax charge at standard tax rate 124 102 F4 437
Factors affecting charge for the year
Non-taxable/non-deductible items 5 2 {17 2
Depreciation on non-qualifying fixed assets 6 8 - -
(Profit}loss on disposal of non-qualifying assets (W) (45) - 1
Other movements in deferred tax (8) (L) - (2)
Non-taxable disposal of discontinued operations - - - (445)
Movements on unprovided deferred tax In respect of losses {18) - - {1
Deferred tax on unremitted associates’ earnings 3 - - -
Tax losses brought Forward and utilised In year (2) - - -
Unrelieved tax losses arising in year 1 - - -
Prior year deferred tax adjustment 16 ) - (3
Prior year corporatlon tax adjustment (23) 9 - 2
Prior year exceptlonal corporation tax adjustments {14} - - -
Total tax charge/{credit) 89 45 {15) 9)
Tax on items charged/{credited) to equity comprised
2007 2006
£million £rnilliorn
Tax credit on share-based compensation (3) -
Tax charge/(credit) on retirement benefit obligations 15 (23)
12 (23)

14 Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the welghted average number of shares In issue
during the year Diluted earnings per share Is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average

number of shares in Issue added to the dilutive potential shares assuming they had all converted to issued shares at the beginning of the year

2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
average average
number Earnings number Eamings
Profit of shares per share Profit of shares per share
Emillion mitlion pence Emiillion million pence
Total
Basic 387 800 484 1774 684 2594
Potentially dilutive share options — 2 — 1
Diluted 387 802 48 2 1,774 685 2590
Continuing operations
Basic 366 800 458 304 684 444
Potentially dilutive share optlons - 2 - 1
Diluted 366 802 456 304 685 444
Discontinued operations
Basic 21 800 26 1470 684 2150
Potentially dilutive share options - 2 - 1
Diluted 21 802 26 1,470 685 2146

The welghted average number of shares used in the basic earnings per share calculation excludes shares held by various employee share ownership trusts

The dilutive effect relates to options under an employee savings related scheme and executive option schemes
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15 Goodwill
Group Emillion
Cost
A1 April 2005 and 1 Aprll 2006 2
Businesses acquired 2,397
Currency translation difference {9)
At 31 March 2007 2,390
Impairment losses
At 1 Aprll 2005 1 April 2006 and 31 March 2007 2
Net book value
At 31 March 2006 -
At 31 March 2007 2,388
16 Other intangible assets
Retail
Product pharmacy Customer
rights licences relationships Software Total
Group £milhion £rillion frillion Emillion Emillion
Cost
At 1 April 2005 287 34 - 207 528
Additions - - - 43 43
Disposals {290} - - (56) (346)
Currency translation differences 3 - - - 3
At 1 April 2006 - 34 - 194 228
Addltions - - - 46 46
Businesses acquired - 829 515 a6 1,390
Disposals - - - mn (gh)]
Currency translation differences — — (3) - (3)
At 31 March 2007 — 863 512 275 1,650
Amortisation and impairment losses
At 1 Aprll 2005 29 g - 48 86
Charge for the year - 2 - 25 27
Impatrment charge - - - 1 1
Disposals {29) — - “@ (33)
At 1 April 2006 - Lk - 70 81
Charge for the year - - £} ] 32 63
Impalrment charge - - - 8 8
Disposals - - - (10) (10}
At 31 March 2007 - 11 31 100 142
Net book value
At 31 March 2006 - 23 - 124 147
At 31 March 2007 - 852 481 175 1,508
17 Impawrment testing of goodwill and other intangible fixed assets with indefinite lives
Goodwill acquired and retall pharmacy licences with Indefinite useful lives are allocated to the appropriate cash generating units {CGUs) identifled
according to the country of operation and business Those with significant amounts allocated at 31 March 2007 are given In the table below
Retail
pharmacy
Goodwill licences
£million Emillion
UK Health & Beauty 278 24
UK Community Pharmacy 807 823
Netherlands Retall 107 -
UK Wholesale 588 -
Norway Wholesale 121 -
Netherlands Wholesale 205 -
France Wholesale 144 -
Other 138 5

2,388 852
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17 Impairment testing of goodwill and other intangible fixed assets with indefinite lives (continued)

Goodwill and retatl pharmacy licences are subject to annual impalrment testing or more frequently if there are Indications of iImpairment The recoverable
amounts of the CGUs are determined from value-in-use calcufations which use discounted post tax cash flows from approved budgets and three year
forecasts and extrapolated cash flows for the perlods beyond these using estimated long term growth rates The key assurnptions are as follows

+ Long term average growth rates are used to extrapolate cash flows These are determined with reference to both Internal approved budgets
and forecasts and available external long term growth data for both the country and business of each CGU s operation

« Discount rates are calculated separately for each CGU and reflect the individual nature and specific risks relating to the business and the market
in which it aperates These have been calculated using a weighted average cost of capital approach

+ Gross margins used are determined based on past performance and management s expectations of market development No Improvement
to margin beyond perlods covered by approved budgets and forecasts has been assumed

The pre-tax discount rates used In the Impairment tests at 31 March 2007 for each of the CGUs above were as follows

Discount rate %

UK Health & Beauty 120
UK Community Pharmacy 120
Netherlands Retail 105
UK Wholesale 15
Norway Wholesale 10
Netherlands Wholesale 05
France Wholesale 1ns

Long term growth rates used in the impalrment tests at 31 March 2007 were 2 5% to 4% for retall businesses and 3% to 5% for wholesale businesses

18 Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures
fittings,
Land and Plant and tools and
builldings machinery equipment Total
Group £million Emillion £million £million
Cost
At 1 April 2005 657 278 1494 2429
Additions 4 27 136 167
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale Q)] - - {1
Disposals 143 (89) (37) (269)
Reclassifications 1 {1 - -
Currency translation differences i 1 - 2
At 1 April 2006 519 216 1,593 2,328
Additions ™ 32 161 204
Businesses acquired 266 26 120 412
Transfer to non-current assets held for sale - - Q)] m
Disposals (12) (30) (39) (81)
Currency translation differences (1} - (2) 3)
At 31 March 2007 783 244 1.832 2,859
Depreciation and impairment losses
At 1 Aprll 2005 55 167 754 976
Charge for the year 5 13 129 147
Impairment losses 2 14 1 17
Disposals {9 (60} (12) (81)
Currency translation differences - - i 1
At 1 April 2006 53 134 873 1,060
Charge for the year 10 18 149 177
Impairment losses - 8 5 13
Disposals {2 (26} 33 (61)
Currency translatlon differences - - (n 4]
At 31 March 2007 61 134 993 1,188
Net book value
At 31 March 2006 466 82 720 1,268
At 31 March 2007 722 110 839 1,671

Included within the net book values above are amounts In respect of assets held under finance leases of £34 million In land and bulldings (2006 £nil},
£13 million in plant and machinery (2006 £15 million) and £43 milllon In fixtures, fittings, tools and equipment {2006 £56 million)

Property, plant and equipment includes payments on account and assets In the course of construction of £nil (2006 £4 miltion) Disposals indlude
assets with a net book value of £5 million (2006 £49 million) assoctated with the disposal of businesses
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19 Investments In associates

Group Emillion
At 1 April 2005 and 1 Aprll 2006 -
Businesses acqulred 603
Share of post tax earnings 39
Additlons 2
Dividends {(14)
Currency translation differences (2)
At 31 March 2007 628

Detalls of the Group’s principal associates are provided in note 39

Included within the total carrying value of investments in assoclates was £267 mitlion (2006 £nil) in respect of listed companies Their market value,
based on the closing share prices at 31 March 2007 was £353 million (2006 £nil)

The aggregated assets and liabllities reported by associates at 31 March 2007 were as follows

£million
Total assets 2,599
Total liabilitles {1,668)
Net assets 931
Group share 330
The aggregated revenues reported by associates for the year ended 31 March 2007 were as follows

Emillion
Total revenue 4157
Group share 1,514
The aggregated post tax earnings reported by associates for the year ended 31 March 2007 were as follows

Emillion
Total post tax earnings 104
Group share 39

There were no investments In associates In the year ended 31 March 2006
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20 Investments in subsidiary undertakings

Shares in
subsidiary Loans to
undertakings subsidiary Total

restated’ undertakings restated’
Company £million fmillien £million
Cost
At 1 April 2005 3835 1,109 4,944
Additlons 65 45 110
Disposals (805) (440) (1 245)
Pre acquisition dividends (115} - {15)
Currency translation differences - 3 3
At 1 April 2006 2980 7 3,697
Additions 3,890 - 3,890
Disposals - {16) {16)
At 31 March 2007 6,870 701 7.571
Provision
At 1 April 2005 - 19 19
Movements 642 (10) 632
At 1 April 2006 642 9 651
Movements (642) (9) (651)
At 31 March 2007 - - —
Carrying value
At 31 March 2006 2,338 708 3046
At 31 March 2007 6,870 701 7,571

The principal subsidiary undertakings are [isted In note 39

1 The Directors have Identified that dividends received by the Company in the years ended 31 March 2005 (£200 million) and 31 March 2006 {£115 enillion) represented pre acquisitlon dividends
and should have been presented as reductions i the cost of Investment rather than income Consequently an Impaiment of £957 million recogrused in the year ending 31 March 2006 was
overstated by £315 million and transfers between the merger reserve arlsing on acquisition of the relevant subsidiary and retained earnings have been revised accordingly (see note 32)

The impact of these restatements is to reduce the cost of Investment In subsidiaries net assets and merger reserve at | April 2005 by £200 miftion (there was no impact on retained earnings)
to Increase profit for the year ended 31 March 2006 by £200 milllon and to revise the movemnents on cost of subsidiary and provisions thereon and transfers between the merger reserve and
retained earnings accordingly There is no impact on net assets or retalned earnings at 31 March 2006

21 Available-for-sale investments

Group £million
At 1 April 2005 and 1 April 2006 -
Businesses acquired 42
Additions 7
Movement in falr value 6
At 31 March 2007 35

Avallable-for-sale investments at 31 March 2007 comprised the following

Group Emitlion
Listed securities

— equity 47
— non-equity 7
Unlisted securities — equity 1

The Group held no available-for-sale Investments at 31 March 2006




22 Inventories

2007 2006

Group £million Emillion
Raw materlals 22 17
Work in progress 7 11
Finished goods 1,331 566
1,360 594

Included in the above are inventeries held at net realisable vatue of £18 million (2006 £26 milllon)

During the year £28 million (2006 £26 million) of inventorles were wrltten down as an expense in the Income statement and £2 million (2006 £3 million)

of Inventory provislons made In previous years were reversed

23 Trade and other receivables

Group Group Company Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Emillion £milllon Emillion frmillion
Non-current
Loans to customers 29 - - -
Qther recelvables 29 32 ~ 1
58 32 - 1
Current
Trade recelvables 1,659 346 - -
Owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 1,540 1215
Loans to customers 68 - - -
Prepayments and accrued Income 124 100 - n
Other recelvables 134 15 6 4
1,985 461 1,546 1230
All amounts within current trade and other receivables are due within one year
24 Cash and cash equivalents
Group Group Company Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£million Emillion £million £million
Bank balances 115 82 2 1
Short term deposits 289 774 288 773
Cash and cash equivalents 404 856 290 774
Bank overdrafts {169) (43) (14) (185)
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement 235 813 276 589

25 Deferred tax assets and hiabilities
Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax Is calculated in full on temporary differences under the llability method using the appropriate country tax rate Deferred tax assets and
liabllities have been offset where they relate to the same fiscal jurisdiction and when there Is also a legally enforceable right to offset the assoclated
current tax assets and llabilitles Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following after offset

Assets Liabilities Net

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Group fmillion £million £million fmilllon £million £million
Unrelieved tax losses 4 ~ 9 - 13 -
Accelerated capital allowances - - {96) (77) (96} (7N
Retirement benefit obligations - 17 10 - 10 17
Assets previously revalued - - (306) (15} (306) (15)
Business combinations - - {5 (3} (3) (3
Rolled over gains - - an - 1 -
Assoclate remittable earnings - - (93) - (93) -
Other temporary differences - 38 36 (2) 16 36
Net deferred tax assets/(habilities) 4 55 (456) (97} (452) {42}

9N
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25 Deferred tax assets and habilities (continued)

No deferred tax is provided on unremitted earnings of overseas subsidiaries except where the earnings are expected to be remitted in the foreseeable

future, or where the Group does not control the timing of the remittance of such earnings

Assets Liabilities Net
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Company fmillion £million £million frmillion £million Emiblion
Financial instruments 1 1 - - 1 1
Net deferred tax assets 1 1 - - 1 1
The movement in the net deferred tax balance Is as follows
Group Group Company Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
Emillion £milllon Emillion Emillion
At 1 April (42) (71} - -
Income statement credit — continuing 22 19 - 1
Income statement credit — discontinued - 9 - -
({Charged)/credited to equity (12) 23 - -
Businesses acquired (420) - - -
Businesses disposed - (22) - -
At 31 March (452) (42) - 1
The movement in deferred tax assets and llabllities during the year without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances In the same fiscal
Jurisdiction is as follows
Accelerated Retirement Assets Rolled Associate Other
Unreheved capital benefit  previously Bustness over remittable temporary
tax losses allowances obligations revalued combinations gains earnings differences Total
Emilllon £million £million Ermillion £million Emillion Emithon fmillion Emillion
Deferred tax assets
At 1 Apqil 2005 - - 27 5 - 48 - 55 135
Businesses disposed - - 4] - - - - (42) {46)
Income statement
{charge)/credit - - (29 m - (1 - 26 (15)
Credited te equity - - 23 - - - - - 23
At 1 April 2006 - - 17 4 - 37 - 39 97
Businesses acquired 15 - 23 2 14 - - 10 64
Income statement charge (2} - (15) {5} - {13) - {10) (45)
{Charged)/credited to equity - - (15) - - - - 3 {12)
At 31 March 2007 13 - 10 1 14 24 - 42 104
Deferred tax liabilities
At 1 Aprll 2005 - {88} (17} (32} (4} {48) - (18} (207)
Businesses disposed - 3 - - - 4 - 18 25
Income statement creditf{charge) - 8 17 13 1 7 - (3} 43
At 1 April 2006 - (77) - (19) {3) (3N - (3) (139)
Businesses acquired - (18) - - (355) 12) (90) ()] (484)
Income statement
{charge)/credit - lg)] - - 51 14 (5) 8 67
Currency translation
differences - - - - - - 2 (2) -
At 31 March 2007 - {96) - (19) (307) (35) (93) (6) (556)
Net deferred tax asset/{labilities)
At 31 March 2006 - (77) 17 {15) (3) - - 36 (42)
At 31 March 2007 13 (96) 10 (18) (293) {(11) (93) 36 (452)




25 Deferred tax assets and habilities (continued)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets and habilities

The Group has only recognised a deferred tax asset on deductible temporary differences unused tax losses or tax credits to the extent that future
taxable profits will be avallable agalnst which the asset can be utilised The assets recorded are after reviewing the financial forecasts of the Group’s
position, depreciation and potentlal capital expenditure for capital allowances Where it Is not considered probable that taxabla profit will arise against
which the temporary difference can be utllised no asset has been recognised Unprovided deferred tax on trading losses net of amortisation is

£13 million (2006 £11 million} and on capital losses Is £nil (2006 £45 million)

The Group obtained a current tax benefit of £16 miliion (2006 £115 milllon) from the utilisation of capital losses and a current tax benefit of £2 milllon
(2006 £2 million) from utilisation of trading losses on which no deferred tax asset was recognised at prior year ends

Of the unrelieved tax losses £5 millfon have expiry dates ranging from 2 to 20 years
In March 2007, it was proposed that the UK tax rate will reduce from 30% to 28% on 1 April 2008, which will result in a reduction in the Group net
deferred tax llability of £19 millon Changes proposed to the UK Industrial Building Allowances rules commencing on 1 April 2008 will lead to an

mcrease In the Group net deferred tax hability of £7 million

26 Trade and other payables

Group Group Company Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£million £rmifhion Emillion Emillion
Current
Trade payables 1,650 N - -
Due to subsidiary undertakings - - 935 728
Other taxation and social security 126 26 — 2
Accruals and deferred income 112 207 20 16
Financlal guarantees - - 2 -
Other payables 224 78 1 8
2112 632 978 754
All amounts within current trade and other payables are due within one year
Group Group Company Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£million Emillion £milhion froillion
Non-current
Financial guarantees - - 7 -
Other payables 30 30 — -

30 30 7 —
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27 Financial liabilities — borrowings
Qutlined below Is Information regarding the contractual terms of the Group s borrowings Further information on the Group's exposure to interest rate
and currency risk Is provided in note 28

The carrying amount of financial assets and liabllities is as follows

Group Group Company Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
£million fmillion fmillion fraillion
Current borrowings
Bank overdrafts repayable on demand {169} (43 (14) (185)
2008 Senlor notes 6 63% (US$57 milllon) (30) - - -
€300 million floating Eurcbond 2007 (204) - (204) -~
Medlum term notes (7) ) N (@)
Loan notes {1 - - -
Current portion of finance lease liabilities (22) (20) - -
Bank loans (123) (118) - (102}
Financing hinked to securitisatlon (9) — - -
(565) (183) (225) {291)
Non-current borrowings
£300 millien Eurobond 2009 5 5% (299) (302) (302) (303)
€300 million floating Eurobond 2007 - (207) - {207
2009 Senior notes 6 67% (US$113 million) (60) - - -
2011 Senlor notes 6 55% (US$173 million) (93) - — -
2011 Senlor notes 6 07% (€30 milllon) (22) - - -
2012 Sentor notes 719% (US$300 million) {166) - - -
2017 Senlor notes 701% (£50 million) (54 - - -
Medium term notes (12) 20 (12} (21)
Finance lease liabilities {40) (45) - -
Bank loans (18) - - -
(764) {575) (314) {531)
Total borrowings {1,329) (758) {539 (822)
Cash and cash equivalents 404 856 290 774
Total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents (925) 98 (248) (48)
Derlvative financial instruments — assets 5 3 - 1
Derivative financial Instruments — liabilities (128) (1) (2) -
Net (borrowings)/cash {1,048) 100 (251) 47}
Availlable-for-sale investments 55 - - -
Financlal guarantee - - (9 -
Trade payables (1,650) (321) - -
Trade receivables 1,659 346 - -
Loans to customers 97 - - -
Loans to subsidiary undertakings - - 701 708
Loans from subsidiary undertakings - - (40) -
Owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 1,540 1,215
Due to subsidiary undertakings - - (915) (728)
Net financial (habilities)/assets (887) 125 1026 1,148

The Group’s principal net borrowlngs arises from three sources

1 Abond of £300 million (2006 £300 milllon), issued an 26 May 1999 was transferred from The Boots Company PLC to the Company on 20 January
2003 at its market value on that date of £309 million For the Group the bond carries a fixed interest rate of 5 5% per annurn, and is due for repayment
on 26 May 2009 The Group has an interest rate swap agreement converting £150 million (2005 £150 million) of the liabllity to a floating rate (see
note 28) For the Company, the bond is held on the balance sheet at amortised cost

2 Abond of €300 mulhion {2005 €300 million} was issued on 19 October 2004 and is due for repayment on 19 October 2007 The bond carries a floating
interest rate of three month LIBOR plus 0 35% margin

3 The Group has issued Senior notes in US Dollars, Euros and Sterling with a range of maturities from 2008 to 2017, with fixed rates and maturities
shown in the table above The fixed rate notes have been swapped to floating interest rates, using cross currency and interest rate swaps

Loan notes totalling £1 million, classified withln current borrowings can be redeemed by the holders giving one month's notice before an interest
payment date However If no notice is glven these notes will fall due at their maturity dates, which are between 2007 and 2014

At 31 March 2007 the Group had a £9 million llabllity as a result of financing linked to securltisation This Is due to be repaid within 6 months of the
balance sheet date



27 Financial liabilities — borrowings (continued)
At 31 March 2007, the Group had available £875 million (2006 £600 milhon) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities

Maturity profile of financial habihities before the impact of dervative financial instruments

1 year

Total or‘;ess 1-2 years 2-5 years >5 years
Terms and borrowings repayment schedule 2007 — Group Emillion Ennilhon fmilhion £million £mithon
Fixed
£300 million Eurobond 2009 5 5% (299) - - (299) -
2008 Senior notes 6 63% (US$57 million) (30} (30) - - -
2009 Senior notes 6 67% (US$113 million) (60) - {60} - -
2011 Senior notes 6 55% (US$173 million) (93) - - {93) -
2011 Senlor notes 6 07% (€30 million) (22) - - (22} -
2012 Senlor notes 719% (US$300 million) (166} - - - (166)
2017 Senior notes 701% (£50 million) {54} - - - (54)
Medium term notes (3} - (3) - -
Finance lease liabilities (62) (22) (18) an {5
Bank loans {25) (25) - - -
Floating
€300 million Eurcbond 2007 (204) (204) - - -
Mediurn term notes (16} {Nn (9) - -
Bank loans (116) (98) 4 {12) (2)
Loan notes 1 (n - - -
Bank overdrafts (169) {169) - - -
Financing linked to secuntisation {9) (9) - — -
Total borrowings (1,329) (565) (94) (443) (227)
Trade payables {1,650) (1,650) - - -
Derlvative financial instruments — liabllitles (128) (7) (13) (46) (62)
Total financial habilities (3,107) (2,222) {107) (489) (289)

1 year

Total or less 1-2 years 2-5years >5 years
Terms and borrowings repayment schedule 2006 — Group Emillion £million Emillion £million £million
Fixed
£300 million Eurcbond 2009 5 5% {302 - - (302) -
Medium term notes 8) 4 - 4) -
Finance lease liabilities (65) (20) (18} (23) G
Bank loans (16) (16) - - -
Floating
€300 million Eurobond 2007 (207) - (207) - -
Medium term notes (7} - (¥4 (10} -
Barik loans (100} {100) - - -
Bank overdrafts {43) (43) - - -
Total borrowings (758} (183) (232) (339) 4)
Trade payables (321) (321 - - -
Derlvative financial instruments — liabilities (1) - - (1) -

Total financial liabilities (1,080) (504) (232) (340} (4
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27 Financial habilities — berrowings (continued)

Currency profile

The analysis of financial assets and liabilities by currency (before the effect of currency hedging) is as follows

Total Sterling Euros  US Doltars Other
2007 — Group £rmillion fmillion fmillion Emiltion £million
Bank overdrafts (169) (36) {123) - (8)
Bonds (503) {299} {204) - -
Senlor notes (425) (54) (22) (349) -
Medium term notes (19 - (7) - (12)
Bank loans (141) - (117) - (24)
Loan notes (4} (1) - - -
Finance lease llabilities (62) (56} (6) - -
Financing linked to securltisatlon )] - © - -
Total borrowings {1,329) (446) (490) (349) (44)
Cash and cash equivalents 404 337 39 4 24
Avallable-for-sale Investments 55 7 48 - -
Trade payables {1.650) (828) (676) {35) (k)]
Trade recelvables 1,659 718 829 4 108
Loans to customers 97 - 94 - 3
Derivative financlal Instruments
— assets 5 S - - -
— liabllities (128) {128) - — -
Net financial habilities {887) (335) {156) {376) (20)
Total Sterling Euros US Dollars Other
2006 - Group Ermillion Emillion £million frrulion £million
Bank overdrafts (43} (39 G)] - -
Bonds {509) (302) (207) - -
Medlum term notes (25} - (7 - (18)
Bank loans (116} (16} - - -
Finance lease liabilitles {65) (65) - - -
Total borrowings (758} (522) (218) - (18)
Cash and cash equlvalents 856 841 5 1 9
Trade payables (321} (309 © - 3)
Trade recelvables 346 330 9 2 5
Derivative financial instruments
—assets 3 3 - - -
— liabllitles (1} {H - - -
Net financial assets/{liabilities) 125 342 (213) 3 {7)
Finance lease habilities
Minimum Minimum
lease lease
payments Interest Principal payments Interest Principal
2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006
Group £million £million £million fmillion £rmillion Emilllon
Less than one year 26 4 22 24 4 20
Between one year and five years 41 6 35 49 8 4
More than five years 17 12 5 5 1 4
84 22 62 78 13 65
Under the terrms of the lease agreements no material contingent rents are payable
2007 2006
Present value of minimum lease payments — Group £mulhon Emillion
Less than one year 25 23
Between one year and five years 36 46
More than five years 13 3




27 Financial liabilities — borrowings (continued)

Effective interest rates and re-pricing analysis

In respect of income-earning financial assets and interest-bearing financial liabilities, the following table indicates their effective interest rates at
31 March 2007 and the periods in which they re-price, including the impact of derivative financial instruments

Effective 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-5 >5
interest Total or less months years years years

Group rate £milhon E£million fmillien £milhon £milhion £million
Cash and cash equivalents 31% 404 404 - - - -
Bonds
£300 million Eurobond 2009 - fixed rate 55% (299) — - - {299) -
Effect of swaps {01)% n {150) - - 149 -
€300 million floating Eurobond 2007 41% (204) (204) - - - -
Effect of swaps {0 6)% 1 86 (85) - - -
Senior Notes
Senior notes US$ — fixed rate 6 9% (349) - (30) (60) (93) (166)
Effect of swaps (2 1)% {118} (467) 30 60 93 166
Senior notes € — fixed rate 61% (22) - - - (22) -
Effect of swaps {0 5)% - (22) - - 22 -
Senlor notes f — fixed rate 70% (54) - - - - (54)
Effect of swaps (16)% - (54) - - - 54
Medium term notes
Euro floating rate 41% 7) {7} - - - -
Effect of swaps 17% — - - - — -
IPY floating rate 09% (9) (9) - - - -
Effect of swaps 51% {1) (1) -~ - — -
IPY fixed rate 07% (3 - — (3) - -
Effect of swaps 52% (1) {4) - 3 - -
Finance lease liabilities 60% (62) “an 1 {18) (17) {5)
Fixed rate bank loans 81% 23 (13) 12) - - -
Floating rate bank loans (Including loan notes) 43% (117) (117) - - - -
Bank averdrafts 40% (169) (169) - - - -
Financing linked to securitisation 39% (9 9) - - - -
Loans to customers 49% 97 93 1 3 - -
Other derivative financlal fnstruments {3) - m - — (2)
Net interest bearing financial habilities (951) (654) {108) {13) {167) (7)

Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand The interest rates applicable to bank overdrafts, bank loans and loan notes are all floating rates The effective
interest rates for these are very closely related to the relevant market Interest rate plus any margin as at the balance sheet date

Maturity profile of financial liabilities before the impact of derivative financial instruments

1 year

Total or‘;ess 1-2 years 2-5 years >5 years
Terms and borrowings repayment schedule 2007 — Company £million Emtllion £million fmillion Emillion
Fixed
£300 million Eurobond 2009 5 5% (302) - - (302) -
Medium term notes (3 - 3) - -
Floating
€300 million Eurobond 2007 {204) (204) - - -
Medium term notes (16) 73 ) - -
Bank overdrafts (14) {(14) - - -
Total borrowings {539) (225) (12) (302 -
Denvatlive financial instruments — liabilities {2) - (2) - -
Financial guarantee (9) (2) 2 )] n
Loans from subsidiary undertakings (40) {40} - - -
Due to subsidiary undertakings (915) (915} - -

Total financial liabilities {1,505) {1182) {16) {306) {1}
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27 Financial liabilities - borrowings (continued)

1 year

Total or’;ess 1-2 years 2-5 years »5 years
Terms and borrowings repayment schedule 2006 — Company fmillion £milhion Emillion Emillion Emillion
Fixed
£300 million Eurobond 2009 5 5% (303} - {2) (301 -
Medium term notes {8) 4) - (4) -
Floating
€300 milllon Eurobond 2007 (207) - (207) - -
Medlum term notes (17) - 7) {10) -
Bank overdrafts {i85) (185) - - -
Bank loans (102) (102) - - —
Total borrowings (822) (291) (216) (315) -
Due to subslidiary undertakings (728) (728) - - -
Total financial liabilities (1,550) {1,019) (216} (315) -
Currency profile
The analysis of financial assets and liabllities by currency Is as follows

Total Sterling Euros  US Dollars Other
2007 - Company £million £million £million fmillion £million
Bank overdrafts (14) (13} - 4] -
Bonds {506) (302} (204) - -
Medium term notes {19) - (7 — {12)
Total borrowings (539 (315) {211) (1) {12}
Financial guarantee 9 (9) - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 290 288 2 - -
Derivative financial Instruments — liabilities (2) {2} - - -
Loans to subsidiary undertakings 701 685 2 - 14
Loans from subsidiary undertakings 40) (32) (8) - -
Due from subslidiary undertakings 1,540 1119 421 - -
Due to subsidiary undertakings {915) (888) {26) (1) —
Net financial assets/(liabilities) 1,026 846 180 (2) 2

Total Sterling Euros US Dollars Qther
2006 — Company £million fmillion £milllon Emillion fmillion
Bank overdrafts (185) (185} - - -
Bonds (510) (303} {207) - -
Medium term notes 25) - N - (18}
Bank loans (102) {102) - - -
Total borrowings {822) {590} (214) - (18)
Cash and cash equivalents 774 773 - - 1
Derlvatlve financial instruments — assets 1 i - - -
Loans to subsidiary undertakings 708 688 3 - 7
Due from subsidlary undertakings 1215 1215 - - -
Due to subsidiary undertakings (728) (650) (78) - -
Net financial assets/(liabilities) 1148 1,437 (289) - -




27 Financial habiities - borrowings (continued)

Effective Interest rates and re-pnicing analysis

In respect of income-earning financlal assets and interest-bearing financial liabllitles the following table indicates ther effective Interest rates at
31 March 2007 and the perlods In which they re-price

Effective 6 months 6-12 1-2 2-3 >5
interest Total of less months years years years
Company rate Emillion frillton £million Emilhon Emillion fmillion
Cash and cash equivalents 53% 290 290 - — - ~
Bonds
£300 milllon Burobond 2009 — fixed rate 55% (302) - - - {302) -
€300 million floating Eurobond 2007 41% (204) (204) - - - -
Medium term notes
Euro floating rate notes 41% (7) (N - - - -
Effect of swaps 17% - - - - - -
JPY floating rate notes 09% (9) (9) - - - -
Effect of swaps S51% (1) [(}] - - - -
IPY fixed rate notes 07% {3) — - (3) - -
Effect of swaps 52% {1 (4) — 3 — -
Bank overdrafts 63% (14) (14) - - - -
Loans to subsidiary undertakings 56% 701 701 - - - -
Loans frorm subsidiary undertakings 43% (49Q) (40) - - - -
Owed by subsidiary undertakings 58% 1,540 1,540 - - - -
Due to subsidiary undertakings 42% (915) (915) - - - -
Net interest bearing financial assets/(liabilities) 1,035 1,337 - - (302) -

28 Financial instruments

Fair values of financial instruments — Group

A comparison of carrying values and fair values of the Group s financial assets and liabilities held to finance the Group’s operations as at 31 March 2007
1s set out below

Carrying Carrying

value Fatr value value Fair value

2007 2007 2006 2006
Group £milhon Emillion £million £milillon
Bonds (503) (499) {509) (510
Senior notes (425) (426) - -
Medium term notes (19 19 (25} {25)
Loan notes {n {1) - -
Bank loans {141) (141) (16) {116)
Bank overdrafts (169) (169) (43) 43)
Finance lease liabilities (62) (74) {65) (72)
Financing linked to securltfsation (9) {9) - -
Total borrowings (1,329) (1,338) (758) {766)
Cash and cash equivalents 404 404 856 856
Derivative instruments held to manage the interest rate and currency profile
— interest rate derlvatives (1) (1) 2 2
— CIOSS CUITENcy swaps (127) {121) 1)) (1)
~ forelgn exchange forward contracts (1)} (1) 1 1
Net (borrowings)/cash {1048) {1.057) 100 92
Avallable-for-sale Investments 55 55 - -
Loans to customers 97 97 - -
Trade payables (1.650) (1.650) {321) {321)
Trade receivables 1,659 1,659 346 346
Net financial (liabilities)/assets (887) (896) 125 117

Fair values of bonds available-for-sale investments and foreign exchange contracts have been determined with reference to quoted market prices
The fair value of the Senlor notes Is calculated using discounted cash flow methodology, based on third party estimates of the Group's credit spread
above the benchmark swap curve

The fair values of interest rate derlvatives and cross currency swaps have been calculated by discounting the future cash flows of the Individual contracts
using the appropriate market interest curve and foreign exchange rate prevailing at 31 March 2007

The fair value of bank loans, loans to customers and financing linked to securltisation approximate to their carrying value due to either thelr short term
nature or being re-priced at variable Interest rates

All fair values are shown at thelr clean prices excluding accrued interest

99



100

Alllance Boots - 2007 Annual Report Financial statements (continued)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2007

28. Financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk — Group

The Group Invests surplus funds In high quality llquid market Instruments including money market deposits and money market funds Such Investments
have an initial maturity no greater than three months The difference between the book and fair value of these instruments is not significant

The Group's exposure to credit risk is controlled by setting a palicy for limiting exposure to counterparties which Is reviewed annually The abjective Is
to reduce the risk of loss through default by counterparties, by spreading transactions, including bank deposits across an approved list of high quality
banks and cash funds Counterparty credit positions are monitored on a regular basis The Group considers the possibllity of significant loss in the event
of non-performance by a financlal counterparty to be unllkely

At 31 March 2007 there were no significant concentrations of credit risk The maximum exposure to credt risk Is represented by the carrying amount
of each financlal asset, including derivative financial Instruments, at the balance sheet date

Currency risk — Group
The Group Is party to a varlety of currency derlvatives in the management of exchange rate exposures Including forelgn exchange contracts and cross
currency swaps

Forward exchange contracts
At the balance sheet date the total notlonal amount of cutstanding forelgn exchange contracts that the Group has committed tois as follows

2007 2006
Group Emillion fmiltlon
Total foreign exchange contracts 21 152

At 31 March 2007 the fair value of the Group's outstanding forward exchange contracts is a £1 million liability and is included in trade and other payables

Movements In the fair value of all forward exchange contracts other than those designated and effective as cash flow hedges or net Investment hedges
are reported directly In the income statement

Cross currency swaps

The Group has a number of cross currency swap contracts in place to manage the currency and interest rate risk of foreign currency denominated
borrowings At 31 March 2007, the fair value of the Group's cross currency swaps is a liabillty of £122 milllon (2006 £1 milllion liabllity) £102 million (2006
£1 million) of the liabllity relates to currency swaps designated as falr value hedges of fixed rate borrowings Movements in fair value are reported directly
In the Income statement along with the exchange gain or loss of the hedged item The remaining £20 million liabllity {2006 £nil) relates to currency swaps
designated as net Investrnent hedges of foreign currency net investments Movements in fair value are deferred in equity until the underlying hedged
Investment Is sold

Currency translation risk — Group

The Group has significant foreign currency net Investments denominated In Euro Swiss Francs, Norwegian Kroner and Czech Koruna The Group uses
derivative financial instruments specifically cross currency swaps, forward foreign exchange contracts and forelgn currency borrowings to hedge the
forelgn currency risk

The effect of currency swaps and forward contracts to manage translation risk on borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents is shown below

Before After Before After

hedging hedging hedging hedging

2007 2007 2006 2006

Group £million Emillron Emillion Emillion
Sterling (232) 252 321 124
Euro (451) (1183) (213) (34)

US Dollar (345) 4 1 1
Swiss Franc - (55) - -
Czech Koruna (8) (28) - -
Norweglan Kroner 15 {23) - -
Other (27) {15} 9 9
Total net borrowings (1,048) (1,048) 100 100

Currency transactlon risk - Group
The Group utllises forward exchange derivatives to hedge significant committed and highly probable future transactions and cash flows

At 31 March 2007, the Group had outstanding forward forelgn exchange contracts with a notional principal of £70 milllon (2006 £16 milllon) that are
deslignated and effective as cash flow hedges of committed and highly probable future transactions Fair value movernents of these contracts are
deferred in equity until the hedged transaction takes place Forward exchange contracts with a notional principal of £7 milllon mature within 1-2 years
The remaining contracts all mature within 12 months of the balance sheet date
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28 Financial instruments (continued)

A £1 million foss has been deferred in equity as at 31 March 2007 (2006 £nil) in respect of these contracts, which Is expected to be recycled through
the income statement within 12 months of the balance sheet date A loss of £1 million has been transferred to the income statement In respect of
contracts designated as cash flow hedges that have matured during the 12 month perlod to 31 March 2007

Interest rate risk — Group

The Group has a mixture of fixed and floating rate borrowings Before the Impact of derivative financlal instruments, £814 milllon (61%) of borrowings
are at fixed interest rates {predominantly relating to the Senior notes and £300 million Eurcbond)} The re-pricing risk of the fixed borrowings coincldes
with thelr maturity details of which can be found In note 27 The floating rate borrowings re-price within 6 months of the reporting date based on
short terrm borrowing rates for the relevant currency

The Group has an [nterest rate swap with a notlonal principal of £150 million to swap £150 miflion of the £300 million Eurobond from fixed to floating
interest rates

The fixed rate senior notes have been swapped to floating interest rates using cross-currency swaps for their remaining life

The Group holds Interest rate swaps with a notional principal of £153 milllon that are used to swap exposure from floating Interest rates {principally
hedging the €300 million Eurobond) to fixed rates

After taking Into account the Impact of derlvatlve financial Instruments £322 milllon (24%) of the Group’s borrowings is at fixed interest rates, with
all other borrowings re-pricing within 6 months of the reporting date

A more detalled explanation of the Group’s interest rate risk policy Is detalled in the Financial review

Derivative Financial Instruments — Group

Achleving hedge accounting under 1AS 32 and IAS 39 is based on measuring the effectiveness of the derlvative as a hedging instrument as well as
fulfilling hedge documentation rules The effectiveness test compares the change in the fair value of the designated derivative and the change in the
fair value of the hedged Item, to determine if this ratfo falls within the permitted range of 80% to 125% Any derlvative that falls outside the permitted
range Is classifled as held-for-trading Gains or losses on the derivative are recognised immediately in the income staternent except where the derivative
is designated within an effective cash flow or net investment hedge relationship in which case the gains and losses are deferred in equity and are
recycled through the income statement at the time that the hedged item Is recognised In the income statement The hedge accounting treatment is
described further In the Accounting policles

Where a derivative does fall within the permitted range but is not 100% effective, the Ineffective element is recognised in the income statement
immediately This gives rise to a gain or loss which Is recognised under Finance Income or Finance costs as appropriate These galns or losses represent
timing differences that will reverse over the life of the financial instruments

Fair values of financial instruments - Company
A comparison of carrying values and fair values of the Company s financial assets and liabilities held to finance the Company s operations as at
31 March 2007 Is set out below

Carrying Carrying

value Fair value value Fair value

2007 2007 2006 2006
Company fmithion £million fmillion fmillion
Bonds (506) (499) (510) (510}
Medlum term notes (19) (19) (25) (25}
Bank loans - - {102) (102}
Bank overdrafts (14) {14) {185) (185)
Total borrowings {539) (532) (822) (822}
Cash and cash equivalents 290 290 774 774
Derlvative Instruments held to manage the interest rate and currency profile
— Cross CUrrency swaps (2} (2) - -
— forelgn exchange forward contracts — — 1 1
Net borrowings (251} (244) 47) 47
Financial guarantee {9) (9) - -
Loans to subsidiary undertakings 701 700 708 709
Loans from subsidiary undertakings (40} (40) - -
Owed by subsidlary undertakings 1540 1,540 1,215 1,215
Due to subsidlary undertakings (915} {915) (728) (728)
Net financial assets 1026 1,032 1,148 1,149

Fair values of bonds, available-for-sale assets and foreign exchange contracts have been determined with reference to quoted market prices All other fair
values have been determined by discounting expected future cash flows at Interest rates prevalling at 31 March 2007 All fair values are shown at their
clean prices excluding Interest accruals
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28 Financial instruments {(continued)

Derivative financial instruments - Company

The Company has used derivative financial instruments to hedge its and the Group's expasure to fluctuations In interest and forelgn exchange rates
Derivative financial Instruments are designated as hedges in line with the Group’s risk management policies All derivatives are measured at fair value
The only derlvative financial instruments which are designated as a hedge relationship for the Company are fair value hedges Galns and losses on these
instruments are recognised in the Income statement and the carrying value of the hedged Item Is adjusted to reflect movement associated with the
hedged risks

Any derivative that falls outside the permitted range of effectiveness should be classifled as held-for-trading Where a derivative does fall within the
permitted range but Is not 100% effective, the ineffective portion is recognised in the income statement immediately This gives rise to a gain or loss
which 1s recognised under Finance income or Finance costs as appropriate

Loans held by the Company are measured at amortised cost except where the underlying transaction Is designated within an effective fair value hedge
relationship In these cases the carrying value is adjusted to reflect movements assoclated with the hedged risk

29 Analysis of movement in net (borrowings)/cash
Set out below is a reconciliation of the net (decrease)increase In cash and cash equivalents to the {Increase)/decrease In net (borrowings)/cash
Net {borrowings)/cash are defined by the Group as borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents and derivative financial instruments

Group Group Company Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

£million frnillion Emillion fmillion

Net {decrease)/Increase in cash and cash equivalents {578) 73 {313) 592
Cash and cash equivalents outfow/(inflow) from decrease In debt and lease financing 812 31 104 {20}
Maovement In net (borrewings)/cash resulting from cash flows 234 762 (209) 572
Borrowings acquired with businesses {1.390) - = -
{1156) 762 (209) 572

Finance leases entered Into (8) 24 - -

Currency translation differences and fair value adjustments on financial Instruments 16 3 5 1
Movement in net (borrowings)/cash in the year (1148) A1 (204) 573
Net cash/{borrowings) at 1 April 100 (641) (47) (620)
Net (borrowings)/cash at 31 March {1,048) 100 {251) (47)

Set out below Is an analysis of the movement in net (borrowings)/cash during the year

Borrowings Borrowings

within within  Derivative Net
Cash and cash current non-current financial (borrowtngs)/

equivalents liabihties habilities instruments cash

£million £million £million £million £million

At 1 April 2006 856 (183) (575) F4 100
Decrease In cash and cash equivalents 452) (126) - - (578)

Decrease In borrowings - 448 364 - 812
Borrowings acquired with businesses - (457) (808) (125) (1,390)
Finance leases entered into - (4 4 - 8

Other non-cash movements - (248) 248 - -

Currency translation differences and fair value adjustments on financial instrurnents - 5 " - 16
At 31 March 2007 404 {565) {764) {123) {1,048)

In the Group cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts which are classified within borrowings within current liabilities In the

balance sheet which amounted to £169 milfion at 31 March 2007 (2006 £43 million)

30 Net cash (outflow)/inflow on acquisitions and disposals

2007 2006

Emillion £million

Acgulsition of businesses (96) -
Net cash of businesses acquired 7% -
Disposa) of businesses 58 -
Purchase of investments in associates (2) -
Borrowlngs acquired with businesses (1,390) -
Cash outflows on acquisitions and disposals — continuing operations (1.354) -
Cash flows arising from dispesal of discontinued operations (13) 1854

{1,367) 1,854




31 Provisions

Refurbishment Closure or

and Vacant terminsation of
reorganisation  property operations Other Total
Group Emilhion £million fmilhon £million fmilhion
At 1 April 2006 111 10 28 - 149
Businesses acquired - - - 5 5
Provisions created during the year 17 7 20 - 44
Provistons utilised during the year {50) Y] @) - (58)
Provisions released during the year 2 - 9 - {1
At 31 March 2007 76 13 35 5 129
Current 35 6 3 3 75
Non-current 41 7 4 2 54
76 13 35 5 129

Refurbishment and reorganisation

The refurbishment and reorganisation provision relates primarily to the UK Health & Beauty store refurbishments and supply chain reorganisation
and the reorganisation of the French wholesale operation The majority of these costs are expected to be incurred in the next two years Inrespect
of the store refurblshment programme estimates of expected costs have been based on a store-by-store survey and comprise management's view
of lease obligations

Vacant property
The vacant property provisions represent recognition of the present value expected net costs arising from vacant properties and sub-let properties
The exact timing of utilisation of these provistons will vary according to the Individual properties concerned

Closure or termination of operations

The provision for closure or termination of operations relates mainly to restructuring of Other Commercial Activities, supply chaln configuration and
the balance of the provision for the onerous supply contract following the disposal of Boots Healthcare International In the previous year The majority
of the costs are expected to be incurred within the next year

32 Capital and reserves

Shares Capital

Share Share tobe Retained Merger redemption  Other Shareholders’ Minonty Total
Reconciliation of movermnent capital premium issued earnings reserve reserve reserves equity interests equity
in capital and reserves — Group fmilien £million £million  £milten £millon  £million £million fmillion  £milkon  Emillion
At 1 April 2005 183 2 - 1096 3n 27 1 1620 1 1621
Total recognised Income and expense for the year - - - 1720 - - (3 1717 (1) 1716
Share-based compensation - - - 5 - - - 5 - 5
DlIvidends to equity shareholders - - - {1,640) - - - (1,640 - (1640)
Repurchase of own shares (2) - - (50) - 2 - {50) - (50}
AL 1 April 2006 181 2 - 1131 in 29 {2) 1,652 - 1,652
Total recognised income and expense for the year - - - 430 — - (3) 425 - 425
Share-based compensation - - - 9 — - - 9 - 9
Dividends to equity shareholders - - - (149) - - - (149) - (149)
Businesses acquired 179 - 1 {31) 3661 - - 3,820 12 3832
Disposal of own shares — - — 3 — - — 3 — 3
At 31 March 2007 360 2 11 1,393 3972 29 {7) 5,760 12 5772

The retalned earnings include the cost of the Company's own shares held by the Group In employee share ownership trusts At 31 March 2007 the cost
of own shares held by the Group was £134 milllon (2006 £119 million)

Shares to be issued
Shares to be issued reflects the falr value at the date of the acquisition of Alliance UniChem of ordinary shares expected to be issued In respect of
outstanding share optlons

COther reserves
Other reserves comprise

Translation reserve

The translaticn reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations that
are not integral to the operations of the Company as well as from the translation of [1abilities that hedge the Company's net Investment in forelgn
subsidiaries The balance of the translation reserve at 31 March 2007 was a £13 million debit (2006 £2 miilion debit}
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32 Capital and reserves (continued)

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments related to hedged
transactions that have not yet occurred The balance of the hedging reserve at 31 March 2007 was £nil (2006 £nil)

Avatlable-for-sale reserve
The avallable-for-sale reserve includes the cumulative net change In the falr value of available for-sale investments, untll the investrment is derecognised
The balance of the fair value reserve at 31 March 2007 was £6 million (2006 £nil)

Shares Retained Merger Capital Total
Share Share to be earnings reserve redemption equity
Reconciliation of movement capital premium issued restated’ restated’ reserve restated’
in capital and reserves — Company £million £millien Emillion £million Emillion Emillion Emillion
At 1 April 2005 183 2 - 1,043 2,880 27 4135
Proflt for the year - - - 1,045 - - 1,045
Share-based compensation - - - 5 - - 5
Dividends to shareholders - - - (1640) - - (1,640)
Transfers - - - 757 (757) - -
Repurchase of shares {2} - - (50) - 2 (50)
Movement In own shares - - (6) - - ®
At 1 April 2006 181 2 - 1154 2123 29 3,489
Profit for the year - - - 694 - - 694
Dividends to shareholders - - - (149) - - {149)
Businesses acquired 179 - 1 - 3,661 - 385
Transfers - - - {642) 642 - -
Movement In own shares - - - {5) - - {5
At 31 March 2007 360 2 " 1,052 6,426 29 7880

£6,426 million of reserves of the Company relate to Group restructurings and are not distributable These are all held In the merger reserve

The Company has not presented its own income statement as permitted by section 230 (4) of the Compantes Act 1985 The Company reported a profit
for the year of £694 million {2006 £1,045 milllon)

1 As explained in note 20 the merger reserve as at 1 April 2005 has been reduced by £200 million The transfer between merger reserve and retatned earnings during the year ending 31 March 2006
has been restated From £957 million to £757 milllon The Company s profit for the year ending 31 March 2006 has been restated from £845 millien to £1 045 million

33 Dividends

The following dividends to equity shareholders were recognised in the year

2007 2006
pence per pence per

share Emillion share Ernlilion
Final dividend — year ended 31 March 2006/2005 210 101 210 150
Interim dividend — year ended 31 March 2007/2006 - - 91 64
Special dividend 100 48 2000 1,426
149 1,640

The Board would ordinarlly be recommending in the normal course of business a final dividend covering the period from 31 July 2006 untll 31 March
2007 However, the terms of the recommended offer for the Company by AB Acquisitions Limited announced on 20 April 2007 are such that the offer
price Is inclusive of any final dividend Accordingly, no such final dividend will be paid However if the Company is not acquired by AB Acquisitions Limited
(or any alternative offeror), the Board intends that the Company pay in due course an interim dividend, in respect of the year ended 31 March 2007 of an
amount equal to the finat dividend that would have been paid




34 Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of share-based compensatlon schemes for employees These take a varlety of forms and detalls of active schemes are
given below On acquisition of Alliance UniChem all former Alliance UniChem schemes vested and were exercised on merger apart from the Save As
You Earn scheme and certain Executive Share Option Plans as detailed below

The Group operates an All Employee Share Ownership Plan {AESOP) for eligible ermployees Under the free share part of the plan, employees in service
for the whole of the preceding financial year are awarded a grant of free shares conditional on completion of three years further service from the date
of grant and a profit target belng met Shares are held in trust for employees from the date of grant The cost of this plan [s calculated by charging the
entitlement to shares based on the Groups estimate of the number of shares likely to vest. Fair value is determined by an external valuer by reference
to the market value of the share at the date of the grant incorporating future dividends

The Group also has a Long Term Bonus Scheme under which executive Directors and certaln senior executives can receive ordinary shares if a
performance condition based on Total Shareholder Return (TSR} is met Further detalls of the scherne are set out In the Board report on remuneration
Awards are made from shares purchased in the market held in an ESOP trust The performance condition is 2 market based condition Falr value Is
estimated at the beginning of each performance period based on expected performance and thereafter adjusted only for the impact of leavers

The Long Term Bonus Scheme was replaced with a new Performance Share Plan for performance periods commencing from 1 April 2005 Under the
new scheme executive Directors and certain senlor executives can recelve ordinary shares if a performance condition based on TSR relative to a UK
retail index comprising the FTSE 350 General Retallers Index and the FTSE 350 Food and Drug Retailers index (weighted 50% each) or based on the
Groups Earnings Per Share growth depending on the individual s award Further details of this scheme are set out In the Board report on remuneration
Falr value for the TSR element Is estimated at the beginning of each performance perlod based on expected performance and thereafter adjusted only
for the Impact of leavers Fair value Is determined by an external valuer using a “Monte Carlo Pricing Model” for the TSR element and by reference to
the market value of the share at the date of the grant with future dividends included

Under an Executlve Share Option Plan executive Directors and certaln senior executives have been granted optlons to subscribe for ordinary shares
subject to a performance condition based on the Group s Earnings Per Share growth Further detalls of the Plan are set out in the Board report on
remuneration New shares are Issued to satisfy awards under this scheme (none have so far vested) Latest estimates of future EPS performance predict
that none of the awards granted after 7 November 2002 are likely to vest A number of optlons from certain Alliance UniChem Executive Share Option
plans remaln These became exercisable on the acquisition of Athance UniChem

Under a Co-investment plan executive Directors are entitled to Invest up to 50% of their short term bonus for the previous year in Alllance Boots shares
in return for a matching opportunity of up to 21 depending on Earnings Per Share performance over a three-year perlod Short term bonus paid In
respect of year ending 31 March 2006 was Invested by some of the executive Directors Further detalls of the scheme are set out In the Board report on
remuneration

The Group provides UK employees with the opportunity to participate in the Group’s Save As You Earn {SAYE) schermne which allows qualifying employees

the opportunity to make regular savings over a fixed perlod of three, five or seven years These savings accumulate with interest at a guaranteed rate

At the end of the savings contract a bonus is added to the savings and particlpants have the optlon to use thelr savings to buy shares in Alliance Boots plc
at a flxed price In common with other UK companles, the optlon price Is set at a 20% discount to the market price of the Company's shares at the date of

grant Exercise of an option Is subject to continued employment The Alliance UniChem SAYE scheme existing at the date of merger has been contlnued
with the exercise price being adjusted to reflect being part of Alliance Boots The falr value of options on the date of grant has been estimated by an
Independerit third party using a proprietary valuation model based on the binomial option pricing mode! The Inputs into the model for options granted
In the period were option price (£6 37} expected annual volatility (18-20%) based on historic volatility expected dividend yield (3 7%), a share price of
£8 07 and a risk-free rate (4 7-4 9%)
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34 Share-based compensation {(continued)
The terms and conditions of the grants made after 7 Novemnber 2002 whereby all rights will be satisfled by the dellvery of shares are as follows

Contractual
Number of Vestng life of
Grant date instruments Conditions shares/options
Executive Share Option Plan
29 November 2002 63,842 EPS performance target after 10 years
three years {retested If necessary at the
end of 4,5 and 6 years)
23 June 2003 1,568 547 As above 10 years
18 September 2003 272925 As above 10 years
4 Decemnber 2003 50385 As above 10 years
14 June 2004 1444474 EPS performance target after 10 years
three years (retested if necessary at the
end of 5 years}
8 November 2004 35981 As above 10 years
AESOP
27 June 2003 1,225 378 Employment throughout the -
3 year period from grant
2 July 2004 1,021,063 As above -
16 June 2005 1,107,830 As above -
12 June 2006 881883 As above -
SAYE
23 November 2006 1461946 Employment over 3 5or 7 years 31 Juty 2010 for 3 year plan,
31 July 2012 for 5 year plan and
31 October 2014 for 7 year plan
Long Term Bonus Scheme
1 April 2004 1085170  Total shareholder return ranking agalnst -
a peer Group of 10 other companies
Perfermance Share Plan
1 April 2005 1094 796 Total shareholder return relative -
to a UK Retail index (FTSE 350)
290 September 2006 192,186 Total shareholder return relative to a -
UK Retail index (FTSE 350)
26 September 2006 2099361 EPS performance over a -
three year period
Co-investment plan
13 July 2006 222325 EPS performance over a -
three year period
28 July 2006 16 627 As above -
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34 Share-based compensation (continued)
The number and weighted average exercise prices of executive optlons granted are as follows

2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
BVEIGEE average
exercise price  Number of exercise price Number of
£ options £ options
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year' 631 3704432 629 4636867
Buslnesses acquired 434 826,093 - -
Forfelted during the year' 626 (1,212854) 626 (932 435)
Exercised during the year 367 (19,980) - -
Qutstanding at the end of the year' 584 329769 631 3704432
Exercisable at the end of the year 435 806,113 — —

1 Included within these amounts were 1 261 323 options outstanding at the beginning of the year 494 010 options forferted during the year and 767 313 options cutstanding at the end of the year
that were not recognlised in accordance with IFRS 2 as the options were granted on or before 7 November 2002 These options have not been subsequently modified and therefore do not need to
be accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2

The exercise price range and average contractual life of executive optlons outstanding as at 31 March is as follows

2007 2006
Exercise price range £367 to £710 E576t0£710
Weighted average contractual life 30 years 78 years
The number and welghted average exercise prices of SAYE options granted are as follows

2007

Weighted

average
exercise price Number

£  of options

Qutstanding at the beginning of the year - -
Businesses acquired £343 1966742

Forfeited during the year £527 (66,938)
Granted during the year £637 1,461946
QOutstanding at the end of the year £467 3,361,750

Exercisable at the end of the year - -

The weighted average fair value of SAYE options granted during the year was £2 02 per share

The exercise price range and average contractual life of SAYE options outstanding as at 31 March is as follows

2007

Exercise price range £218 to £6 37

Welghted average contractual life 29 years

The falr value at measurement date for equity Instruments (other than share options) granted during the year was as follows

Weighted Weighted

average 2007 average 2006

fair value £million fair value Emillion

All employee share ownership plan £7 55 7 £595 7

Co-investment plan awards £759 2 - -

Performance share plan awards £747 17 £194 3

The total expense recognised in the year In respect of share-based compensation was £9 milllon {2006 £5 milllon) arlsing entirely from equity settled
share-based compensation transactions
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35 Share capital

2007 2006
Number Number
of shares 2007 of shares 2006
million Eollion milllon Emillion
Ordinary shares of 37 /3, pence each
Authorised 1,288 479 807 300
Allotted called up and fully paid 968 360 486 181
2007 2006
Number Number
of ordinary of ordinary
shares shares
million milllion
[nIssue at 1 April 486 73
Repurchase of shares - (8}
Shares Issued 482 -
Share consalidation - (237)
In issue at 31 March 968 486

Shares issued
As consideration for the acquisition of Alliance UniChem 482 million ordinary shares were Issued on 31 July 2006

Share consolidation

In the year ended 31 March 2006, after the sale of Boots Healthcare International, £1,426 mllilon was returned to shareholders by means of a special
dividend of 200 pence per share A share consolidation was performed on 13 February 2006 in the ratio of 39 new shares for every 58 shares held

Own shares

At 31 March 2007 the number of own shares held by the Group was 12 million {2006 9 million) These were held in the varlous employee share ownership

trusts The market value of these shares is £127 milllon (2006 £68 million)

36 Operating leases
The operating lease rental expense in the year was

2007 2006
£millten Emilllion
Land and bulldings 265 224
Other 8 10
273 234

At 31 March 2007 the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall

due as follows

2007 2006
Emillion Emillion
Less than one year 246 204
Between one and five years 858 777
More than five years 1,282 1,386
2,386 2 367

The Group leases a large number of Its propertles under operating leases The leases run predominantly for periods from 1 to 25 years, with options to
renew the leases at the end of the period Lease rentals are Increased inregular intervals to reflect market rentals None of the leases include material

contingent rentals

Rental income from subleased properties was £12 million (2006 £11 million)



37 Commitments and contingent liabilities

Commitments

Future capital expenditure approved by the Directors and not provided for In these financial statements at 31 March 2007 was £39 million
(2006 £61 million}

Contingent habilities

Knoll Pharmaceutical Co {('Knolt) has been a defendant in a number of consumer class actions In 30 states of the USA Canada and Puerto Rico Knoll was
the successor to Boots Pharmaceuticals Inc , formerly an indirect subsidiary of the Company which was sold to the BASF Group under agreements made
by the Company in March 1995 The Company was named as a defendant in some of these actions which allege that the marketing of the preduct
Synthroid did not comply with consumer protection and business practice laws A settiement by Knoll of consumer actions and clalims of Insurers and
state attorneys general in the United States has been approved and a settlement of most of the actions in Canada has been approved The Company
asserted that the relevant courts in North America had no Jurisdiction over it in these cases and this was approved by a state court In lllinois In the light
of current information, the Directors belleve that the Company has good defences to such claims as may arise concerning Synthrold including any that
rmight be brought by BASF and, while the outcome of such claims as may arise remains uncertain they believe that it should not have a materlal adverse
impact on the Group

38 Pensions
The Group operates a number of pension schemes in UK and overseas including both defined benefit and defined contribution schemes The Company
does not particlpate in or sponsor any of the Group schemes

2007 2006
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet £milhon Frnillion
Present value of defined benefit obligation (3.787) (3 524)
Fair value of plan assets
- bonds 2,972 2919
- equities 527 406
— other plan assets 262 143
3,761 3,468
Retirement benefit obligations (26} (56)
2007 2006
Changes in the present value of the defined beneft obligation frmilhon frmillion
At 1 April 3,524 3096
Current service cost 69 62
Past service cost 2 6
Curtailments (2) (16}
Interest cost 180 167
Employee contributions 20 17
Business combinations 267 -
Transfers 7 -
Actuarial gains and losses (161) 300
Benefits pald (119 {108)
At 31 March 3,787 3524
2007 2006
Changes in the fair value of plan assets fmillion fmillion
At 1 Aprll 3468 3059
Contributlons 117 112
Employee contributions 20 17
Expected return 185 163
Business combinations 189 -
Transfers 7 -
Actuarial gains and losses (106) 225
Benefits paid (119) {108)

At 31 March 3,761 3,468

109



110 Alliance Boots — 2007 Annual Report Financial statements (continued)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2007

38 Pensions (continued)
The Group expects to contribute £90 milllon to its defined benefit pension schemes In the year ended 31 March 2008

2007 2006

Expense recognised in the income statement £million Emillion

Current service cost 69 62

Past service cost 2 6
Curtailments (2) {16)

Interest on pension scheme llabilities 180 167
Expected return on pension scheme assets {185) (163)
64 56

The expense is recognised in the following line items in the income statement

2007 2006

fmullion frrullion

Profit from operatlons 69 65
Profit on sale of discontinued operations - (13)
Finance costs 180 167
Finance income (185) {163)
64 56

2007 2006

Amounts recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense Emillion frmillion
Experience gains and losses on assets (106) 225
Experience gains and losses on the scheme liabilities (20) 10
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme liabilitles 181 (3100
55 {75)
Cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised in the SORIE {4) {59)
2007 2006

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date UK Qverseas UK
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 54% 48% 49%
Inflation 30% 21% 29%
Rate of general long-term Increase In salarles 45% 26% 44%
Rate of increase to pensions in payment 29% 16% 28%
2007 2006

Expected return on plan assets UK UK
Bonds 53% 48%
Equities 75% 75%
Property 6 5% 65%
Other net assets 52% 4 6%

The expected return on plan assets of overseas pension plans was 5% to 6 9% The expected rate of return on plan assets has been determined with
reference to market returns at the balance sheet date Actual return cn plan assets was £79 milllon (2006 £3388 million)

The mortality assumption used to value the majonity of scheme labilities is based on PA 92 tables projected to 2014 for pensioners and 2024 for non
pensioners allowing for short cohort improvements This has been adjusted to take account of the actual experience of schemes where this data is of
sufficient size The impact of short cohort improvements has been included for the first time this year recognising the recent improverments in published
mortallty investigation data The mortality assumptions will continue to be reviewed ta ensure they remain appropriate



38 Pensions (continued)

2007 2007 2006 2006
Currently Currently Currently Currently
Projected life expectancy from age 60 aged 45 aged 60 aged 45 aged 60
Male 251 243 238 230
Female 269 261 258 250
A sensitivity analysis on the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities is as follows
Change in assumption Impact on scheme
Discount rate Increase by 0 25% Decrease by 4 4%
Rate of Inflation Increase by 0 25% Increase by 3 6%
An Increase of one year In the assumed life expectancy at age 60 would increase the defined benefit obligation by 3 4%
2007 2006 2005
Amounts for the current and previous two years Emtllion fmillion frmillon
Defined benefit obligation (3.787) (3 524) {(3.097)
Plan assets 3,761 3,468 3059
Deficit {26) {56) (38)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities (20) 10 96
Experience adjustments on plan assets (106) 225 60

Defined contribution schemes

The Group operates a number of defined contribution pension arrangements Durving the year the Group contributed £8 million (2006 £4 million)

39 Related parties
Subsidiary undertakings

The principal subsidiary undertakings all of which were Indirectly held were

Percentage
Percentage held by
held by subsidiary Country of Country of
Company undertakings  operation incorporation Main activity

Alleanza Salute [talia SpA - 100 ltaly Iualy Pharmaceutical wholesaler and
helding company

Alllance Healthcare — Repartition SA S - 999  France France Pharmaceutical wholesaler

Alllance Healthcare Spo - 971 Czech Republic Czech Republic Pharmaceutical wholesaler

Alliance UniChem Norge A S - 100 Norway Norway Retall pharmacy operator

Alliance UniChem Plc 100 - UK England and Wales Holding company

Apteka Holding ZAQ - 96  Russia Russia Pharmaceutical wholesaler

Boots Beauty Internaticnal Limited - 100 UK England and Wales Sale of Boots branded products
internationally

The Boots Company PLC 100 - WK England and Wales Manufacturing, marketing and distribution
of healthcare and consumer products

Boots Optlcians Limited - 100 UK England and Wales Provision of opticians’ services

Boots Propertles Limited - 100 UK England and Wales Property holding company

Boots Retall (Ireland) Limited - 100 Eire Eire Retail chernists

Boots The Chemists Lirnited - 100 UK England and Wales Retail chemnists

De Vier Vijzels BY - 100  The Netherlands  The Netherlands Retail pharmacy operator

£ Moss Limited - 100 UK England and Wales Retail pharmacy operator

Holtung A S - 100  Norway Norway Pharmaceutical wholesaler

[nterpharm BV - 100  The Netherlands  The Netherlands Pharmaceutical wholesaler

Safa Galenica S A - 992  Spain Spain Pharmaceutical wholesaler

UniChem Limited - 100 UK England and Wales Pharrmaceutical wholesaler

As permitted by Section 231(5) of the Companies Act 1985 only principal undertakings are shown A complete list of all subsidiary undertakings is filed

with the Company's annual return
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2007

39 Related parties {(continued)
Associates
The Group's principal associates were

Percentage
Interest in
ordinary share
capitaland  Country of Country of
Company votingrights  operation incorporation Main activity
Alliance Healthcare S A 49  Portugal Portugal Pharmaceutical wholesaler
Andreae-Norls Zahn AG 2999  Germany Germany Pharrmaceutical wholesaler
Galenica AG 255  Switzerland Switzerland Pharrmaceutical wholesaler
Hedef Alllance Holding A S 50 Turkey Turkey Pharmaceutical wholesaler
Pharmapartners BY 40  TheNetherlands  The Netherlands Pharmaceutical software
UniDrug Distribution Group Limited S0 UK England and Wales Pre-wholesaler
Unifarma Distribuzione S 36 ltaly [taly Pharmaceutical wholesaler
Transactlons with associated undertakings, all of which are carried out on an arm’s length basis were
2007 2006
Emillion £mullion
Revenue tn year 13 -
Purchases In year (9 -
Amounts due from 3 - }
Amounts due to {1 -

The remuneration of the key management perscnnel of the Group Is set out below Detalls of the remuneration, long term incentive plan Interests,
shareholdings share options and pension entitlements of individual Directors are included In the Board report on remuneration

2007 2006

£million £million

Short-term employee benefits 7 3
Post-employment benefits 1 -
Other long term benefits - 1
Termination benefits 2 1
Share-based compensation 1 -
11 7

The Group has a related party relationship with Its subsidiary undertakings and with Its Directors and executive officers Transactlons between the
Company and its subsidiaries have been eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note

The Company has a number of loans and balances with its subsidiary undertakings All balances are repayable on demand and are predominantly interest
bearing At 31 March 2007 loans to subsidlary undertakings totalled £701 million (2006 £708 million) and loans from subsidiary undertakings were

£40 million (2006 £nil} Other amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings totalled £1 540 million {2006 £1,215 million) and amounts owed to subsidiary
undertakings were £915 million {2006 £728 million}

Interest receivable on the Interest-bearing loans and balances was £122 million (2006 £268 milllon} and interest payable was £42 million
(2006 £184 million)

During the year the Company recelved a dividend of £10 million from a subsidiary company (2006 £1,000 million)

During the year, the Company received charges from ancther Group company for the provision of management services of £24 milllon (2006 £16 million)



40 Accounting estimates and judgements

In preparing the consolldated financial statements the management of Alliance Boots plc are required to make estimates and jJudgements The matters
described below are considered to be the most Important in understanding the judgements that are involved in preparing these statements and the
uncertaintles that could impact the amounts reported In the results of operations financial position and cash flows The Group accounting policies are
described in note 2

Fair value measurement on a business combination

The measurement of falr values on a business combination requires the recognition and measurement of the identifiable assets liabillties and contingent
liabllities The key jJudgements Involved are the identification and valuation of intangible assets which Involves estimation of future cash flows and the
selection of a sultable discount rate

Impairment of indefinite life intangible assets {including goodwll)

The Group has significant carrying values of goodwill and Intangible assets such as pharmacy licences and customer relatlonships following the
acquisition of Alliance UniChem Goodwill and other indefinite life Intangibles such as pharmacy licences are held at cost and tested annually for
Impairment. Amortised intangible and tangible assets are tested for impalrment where events show an Indication of impalrment The impalrment test
involves estimation of future cash flows and the selection of a sultable discount rate This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash
generat(ng units to which the intangible assets are allocated (see note 17)

Measurement of defined benefit pension obligations

The Group accounts for pension costs relating to retirement plans in accordance with 1AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits In applying IAS 19 the pension costs
are assessed In accordance with the advice of Independent quallfled actuarles This requires the exerclse of significant judgements in relation to the
estimatlon of future changes in salarles and Inflation as well as mortallty rates the expected return on assets and the selection of a suitable discount
rate More detall Is provided In note 38

Revenue
For retall sales relmbursement of dispensing revenue from the Natlonal Health Service is estimated because the actual reimbursement Is not known
for three months after the month of sale

In respect of the Boots loyalty scheme {the Advantage Card) a liabllity Is recorded to estimate the proportion of the points Issued which will be
redeemed by customers

Supplier rebates
The recognition of suppller rebates can require estimation when the reporting period end is not coterminous with the end of the predetermined period
over which the rebate is earned

Provisions

Provisions are recognised In the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events
which can be reasonably estimated The timing of recognition requires the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances which can be
subject to change

Estimates of the amounts of provisions recognised are based on current legal and constructive requirements, technology and price levels Actual
outflows can differ from estimates due to changes in laws regulations, public expectations technology prices and conditlons, and can take place
many years in the future and therefore the carrylng amounts of provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to take account of such changes

41 Post balance sheet events

After the balance sheet date, and as a pre-condition to AB Acquisitions announcing their formal offer for Alliance Boots, the Group has agreed In
the implementation agreement to pay a break fee to AB Acquisitions of £106 million if a competing proposal is announced or the Board of Alllance
Boots withdraws qualifies or adversely modifies Its recommendation of the transaction, and in elther case the transaction lapses or Is withdrawn

n3
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Group financial record — IFRS

The Group financlal record shows the statutory results of the Group for each financial year

Group Income statements for the years ended 31 March

2007 2006 2005

Emillion £milllon £rmillion
Continuing operations
Revenue — continulng operations 11,502 5027 4936
Profit from operations before share of associates post tax earnings 441 369 40
Share of assoclates post tax earnings 39 - h
Profit from operations 480 369 40
Finance income 251 187 153
Finance costs {276) (207} (194)
Profit before tax 455 349 360
Tax (89) (45) (105)
Profit after tax from continuing operations 366 304 255
Discontinued operations
Profit after tax from discontinued operations 21 1470 11
Profit for the year 387 1774 266
Attributable to
Equity shareholders 387 1774 265
Minority Interest - - 1

387 1774 266




Group balance sheets as at 31 March

1ns

2007 2006 2005
£milhon Emillion frvllion
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwlil 2,388 - -
Other Intangible assets 1,508 147 442
Property plant and equipment 1,671 1268 1453
Investments in associates 628 - -
Avallable-for-sale investments 55 - -
Other receivables 58 32 59
Derivative financial instruments 3 2 -
Deferred tax assets 4 55 65
6,315 1504 2,019
Current assets
Inventories 1,360 504 713
Trade and other receivables 1,985 461 522
Current tax assets 2 14 12
Cash and cash equivalents 404 856 129
Derlvatlve financial instruments 2 1 -
Assets held for sale 29 1 1
3782 1927 1377
Total assets 10097 3431 3,396
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Borrowlngs (565) {183) (184
Trade and other payables 2112) (632) {658)
Current tax liabllities {115) {56) {95)
Provisions (75) 62) (12)
Derivative financial Instruments {7) (1) n
(2.874) (934) (950)
Net current assets 908 993 427
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings (764) {575) (587}
Other payables (30} (30) (51)
Deferred tax labilitles {456) 97) (137}
Retirement benefit obligatlons (26) (56) (38)
Provisions (54) 87) (12)
Derivative financlal instruments {121) - -
(1,451) {845) (825)
Net assets 5772 1652 1621
Equity
Share capital 360 181 183
Share premium 2 2 2
Shares to be issued 1" ~ -
Retained earmings 1,393 1131 1096
Merger reserve 3,972 m n
Capital redemption reserve 29 29 27
Other reserves {7} (2) 1
Shareholders equity 5,760 1,652 1,620
Minority interests 12 - 1
Total equity 5,772 1652 1621
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Financial statements {continued)

The informatlon below is presented on a UK GAAP basis, restated to show Boots Healthcare International as a discontinued operation

2005 2004 2003
Profit and loss account Emillion £million £million
Group turnover frorn continuing operations 4935 4,795 4594
Discontinued operations 534 530 726
Total Group turnover 5469 5,325 5,320
Operating proflt from continuing operations 421 490 509
Discontinued operations 81 60 51
Group operating profit before exceptional ltems 502 550 560
Share of operating loss of joint ventures (1) (1) (13)
Total operating profit before exceptional items Including share of [cint ventures 501 549 547
Exceptional iterns (54) 36 {153)
Profit on ordinary activities before interest and taxation 447 585 394
Net interest (payable)/receivable and similar iterns (20) (5) 104
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 427 580 498
Taxation (124) {168) (192)
Profit on ordinary activities after taxation 303 412 306
Minority interests )] m (1
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders 302 4an 305
Dividends paid and proposed {216) (226) (230)
Retained profit for the financial year 86 185 75

2005 2004 2003
Balance sheet fmillion Emilllion £million
Intanglble fixed assets 284 282 K1)
Tangible fixed assets 1593 1499 1,517
Net current assets 502 587 630
Creditors Amounts falling due after more than one year (589) (383) {402}
Provisions for liabilities and charges (179 (77) (161)
Net assets 1611 1,808 1,885
Represented by
Equity shareholders funds 1610 1807 1.884
Minority interests 1 1 1

1611 1808 1885

* Unaudited



